
 
 

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR 
 
C.Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf  
Y Pafiliynau  
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian  
Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX 
 
Dolen gyswllt: Tracy Watson - Uwch Swyddog Democrataidd a Craffu  (07747 
485567)  
 
DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod ar-lein o PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - ADDYSG A 
CHYNHWYSIANT gynnal ar DYDD IAU, 14EG MEDI, 2023 am 5.00 PM. 

 
Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor  ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd gyfrannu 
yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn ôl doethineb y 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn Dydd 
Mawrth, 12 Medi 2023 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, gan gynnwys rhoi 
gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg. 

 
AGENDA  

Tudalennau 
 
YMCHWIL A CHRAFFU 
 
Mae cyfleuster ymchwil craffu ar gael yn Uned Busnes y Cyngor i 
gynorthwyo Aelodau â'u cyfrifoldebau craffu a'u rolau'n Aelodau 
Etholedig. Mae ymchwil o'r fath yn cryfhau rhaglenni gwaith y 
Pwyllgorau Craffu er mwyn sicrhau bod pynciau sy'n seiliedig ar 
ganlyniadau yn cael eu nodi. Os oes gyda chi unrhyw ymholiadau 
ynghylch gwaith ymchwil, e-bostiwch: Craffu@rhondda-cynon-
taf.gov.uk  
 

 
 

 

 
1. DATGAN BUDDIANT   
 Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â'r 

Cod Ymddygiad. 
 
Nodwch: 
 

1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 

 

mailto:Craffu@rhondda-cynon-taf.gov.uk
mailto:Craffu@rhondda-cynon-taf.gov.uk


hwnnw; a 
 

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu 
buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd 
pan fyddan nhw'n gadael. 

    
2. COFNODION   
 Cadarnhau'r cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a 

Chynhwysiant a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Gorrffennaf 2023, yn rhai cywir. 
 

  5 - 16  
ADRODDIADAU'R CYFARWYDDWR GWASANAETH - GWASANAETHAU 
DEMOCRATAIDD A CHYFATHREBU  

 

    
3. DOLENNI YMGYNGHORI   
 Gwybodaeth mewn perthynas ag ymgynghoriadau perthnasol i'w 

hystyried gan y Pwyllgor. 
 

    
4. CYNNIG I DDATBLYGU YSGOL ARBENNIG NEWYDD YN 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF  
 

 Trafod yr ymgynghoriad sy’n cynnig datblygu ysgol arbennig 3-19 oed 
newydd yn Rhondda Cynon Taf (RhCT), fel sydd wedi’i amlinellu yn yr 
adroddiad. 

 

  17 - 118  
5. YMGYNGHORIAD AR Y CYNIGION I AD-DREFNU DARPARIAETH 

DOSBARTHIADAU CYNNAL DYSGU PRIF FFRWD - ANGHENION 
DYSGU YCHWANEGOL YN RHONDDA CYNON TAF  

 

 Rhag-graffu – Yr Aelodau i graffu ar yr adroddiad a gwneud unrhyw 
argymhellion cyn ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet. 

 

  119 - 244  
6. ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD Â'R CYFARFOD I BEN   
 Myfyrio ar y cyfarfod a'r camau gweithredu i'w dwyn ymlaen.  
    
7. MATERION BRYS   
 Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion 

brys yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig. 
 

   
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
 
Cylchreliad:- 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol Y Cynghorydd S.Evans a Y Cynghorydd K Webb – 
Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd, yn y drefn honno 
 

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/CY/Council/Scrutiny/InformationReports/ConsultationInformation/ConsultationInformation.aspx


Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol: 
 
Y Cynghorydd M Ashford, Y Cynghorydd J Brencher, Y Cynghorydd J Cook, 
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott, Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel, Y Cynghorydd R Evans, 
Y Cynghorydd S Hickman, Y Cynghorydd C Lisles, Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub, 
Y Cynghorydd C Preedy, Y Cynghorydd J Smith and Y Cynghorydd D Wood 
 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig  
 
Mr P Booth, Cynrychiolydd Awdurdodau Esgobaethol â'r hawl i bleidlais 
Mr M Cleverley, Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Genedlaethol yr Ysgolfeistri ac Undeb yr 
Athrawesau a'r Panel Athrawon 
Ms A Jones, Cynrychiolydd UNITE 
Mr C Jones, Cynrychiolydd GMB 
Mrs R Lydon, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol 
Mr L Patterson, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol 
Mr D Price, Cynrychiolydd UNSAIN/UNISON 
Mr M Thomas, Cynrychiolydd NEU 
Mr M Veale, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol 
 



Tudalen wag



 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - ADDYSG A CHYNHWYSIANT 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant a gynhaliwyd Dydd Mercher, 19 

Gorffennaf 2023 am 5.00 pm ym . 
 

Cafodd y cyfarfod yma ei ddarlledu'n fyw, ac mae modd gweld y manylion yma 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol – Roedd y Aelodau Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a 
Chynhwysiant canlynol yn bresennol yn Siambr y Cyngor:- 

 
Y Cynghorydd S.Evans (Cadeirydd) 

 
Y Cynghorydd M Ashford Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel 

Y Cynghorydd S Hickman Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub 
Y Cynghorydd C Preedy  

 
 

Roedd y Aelodau Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant canlynol yn bresennol ar-lein:- 
 

Y Cynghorydd K Webb Y Cynghorydd J Brencher 
Y Cynghorydd J Cook Y Cynghorydd C Lisles 

 
 

Aelodau cyfetholedig a oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mrs R Lydon, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol 
Mr M Thomas, Cynrychiolydd NEU 

Mr M Veale, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Ms G Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant 
Ms C  Edwards, Pennaeth Trawsffurfio Gwasanaethau a Systemau Data 

Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Mr T Britton, Pennaeth Cyflawniad RhCT - Sector Cynradd 

Mr P Nicholls, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 
Mr R Evans, Cyfarwyddwr - Materion Adnoddau Dynol 
Mrs T Watson, Uwch Swyddog Democrataidd a Craffu 

 
 
 
6   YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB  

 
 

 Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol 
Smith a Chynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Wood, a'r Aelod Cyfetholedig Mr Booth. 
 

 

7   DATGAN BUDDIANT  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, ni wnaethpwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau 
mewn perthynas â'r Agenda. 
 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2

https://rctcbc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

8   COFNODION  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfodydd a gynhaliwyd ar 27 
Ebrill a 20 Gorffennaf 2023 yn rhai cywir. 
 

 

9   DOLENNI YMGYNGHORI  
 

 

 Yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriadau agored gafodd eu cynnal gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn 
ddiweddar, cafodd yr Aelodau eu hatgoffa am yr ymgynghoriad fydd efallai o 
ddiddordeb iddyn nhw. 
 

 

10   RHAGLEN WAITH DDRAFFT 2023-24  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu ei adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn i'r Aelodau gymeradwyo Rhaglen 
Waith ddrafft y Pwyllgor ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2023/24 a chyflwyno 
sylwadau mewn perthynas â'r rhaglen waith yma. Cafodd yr Aelodau wybodaeth 
gefndirol yn Adran 4.1 i Adran 4.3 a rhoddwyd gwybod bod y rhaglen 
ddiwygiedig wedi cael ei thrafod gan y Cabinet, a bydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu yn trafod y rhaglen ym mis Medi cyn rhoi adborth i'r Pwyllgor yma. Aeth 
y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
ymlaen i drafod Adran 5 o'r adroddiad, meysydd craffu i'w trafod, gan bwysleisio 
y dylai Aelodau nodi ble mae modd cyflawni'r gwerth mwyaf posibl wrth fynd ati i 
drafod unrhyw feysydd y maen nhw'n dymuno eu diwygio neu'u hychwanegu. 
Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth wedi cydnabod bod y Pwyllgor yma'n 
bwyllgor prysur gyda chylch gorchwyl eang, felly roedd hi'n bwysig nodi a 
chanolbwyntio ar faterion a allai ychwanegu gwerth a llywio gwaith datblygu 
polisïau.  
 
Roedd y Cadeirydd wedi diolch i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu am gyflwyno'r adroddiad. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth rhwng Aelodau a Swyddogion, cafodd y 
diwygiadau/ychwanegiadau canlynol eu cymeradwyo: 
 
 Symud adroddiad Argymhellion Estyn i dymor yr Hydref; 
 Symud yr adroddiad ar ddata Mynychu'r Ysgol o dymor y Gwanwyn i 

dymor yr Hydref; 
 Symud yr adroddiad ar gynnig y Cwricwlwm Ôl-16 i dymor y Gwanwyn. 
 Ychwanegu eitem ar Gynlluniau Teithio i'r rhestr o eitemau heb 

ddyddiad.  
 

Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Cytuno ar y materion a fydd yn cael eu cynnwys yn Rhaglen Waith 
2023/24 y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant (fel sydd 
wedi'u nodi yn Atodiad A) gan nodi'r diwygiadau perthnasol yn ôl 
yr angen; 

 
2. Gofyn bod y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 

Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu yn rhoi gwybod i'r Aelod perthnasol 
o'r Cabinet a'r Swyddog perthnasol am y materion sydd wedi'u nodi 

 

Tudalen 6



 

fel materion a fydd yn cael eu craffu cyn i'r Cabinet eu trafod.  
 

3. Cytuno y bydd y Rhaglen Waith yn cael ei hadolygu'n rheolaidd i 
sicrhau bod y materion sydd wedi'u nodi fel materion i'w trafod yn 
berthnasol a sicrhau bod unrhyw atgyfeiriadau pellach yn cael eu 
cynnwys; a 

 
4. Trafod, ble y bo'n addas, unrhyw eitemau y byddai modd eu 

cyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor fel adroddiadau gwybodaeth, er mwyn rhoi 
mwy o hyblygrwydd i Aelodau drafod unrhyw eitemau brys neu roi 
cyfle i Aelodau drafod eitemau sydd heb ddyddiad wedi'i bennu 
ond sydd wedi'u nodi gan y Pwyllgor fel eitemau i'w trafod.  

 
5. Trafod a phennu unrhyw eitemau y mae'r Aelodau'n dymuno craffu 

arnyn nhw yn ystod y cyfnod yma. 
 

11   ADRODDIAD AR Y CYLCH GORCHWYL A GORFFEN MEWN PERTHYNAS 
Â'R ADRODDIAD AR FODERNEIDDIO YSGOLION – YR WYBODAETH 
DDIWEDDARAF AM RAGLEN  CYMUNEDAU DYSGU CYNALIADWY BAND 
B  
 

 

 Rhannodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am yr adroddiad ar y cylch gorchwyl a 
gorffen mewn perthynas â'r adroddiad ar foderneiddio ysgolion – yr wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf am Raglen Cymunedau Dysgu Cynaliadwy Band B. Rhannodd y 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
wybodaeth gefndirol yn Adran 3, gan nodi bod Aelodau wedi gweld yr Adroddiad 
gan Estyn am Wasanaethau Addysg Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon 
Taf, yn ystod y cyfarfod pwyllgor ar 20 Mehefin 2023. Tynnodd sylw at yr ymateb 
gan Estyn, ym mharagraff 3.4 o'r adroddiad, cyn esbonio'r ffordd ymlaen a'r 
camau nesaf.  
 
Roedd y Cadeirydd wedi diolch i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu am gyflwyno'r adroddiad. 
 
Roedd Aelod yn gwbl gefnogol o'r Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, ond roedden nhw'n 
ystyried y broses yn broses dwy gam, felly roedd angen adroddiad ysgrifenedig 
neu ddadansoddiad er mwyn cyd-fynd ag unrhyw ymweliadau. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu mai'r gobaith yw manteisio ar adnoddau craffu er mwyn casglu a 
rhannu'r adborth sy'n cael ei ddarparu drwy'r cylchoedd trafod, ac ar adegau 
allweddol drwy gydol y broses, a rhannu'r adborth yma gyda’r Pwyllgor. O 
safbwynt craffu, roedd y Cyfarwyddwr yn gobeithio y byddai modd defnyddio hyn 
i ddarparu argymhellion ystyrlon, ac felly pe byddai'r Cyngor yn ystyried bwrw 
ymlaen â'r cynigion ad-drefnu strategol yma, byddai modd i'r Cyngor gadw'r 
materion yma mewn cof. Yna byddai modd i'r Cabinet benderfynu pa 
argymhellion sy'n cael eu mabwysiadu, a hynny gyda chyngor y Cyfarwyddwr. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant ei bod hi'n 
effro i'r ffaith bod y Rhaglen Band B ar waith ar hyn o bryd, felly os oedd y 
Pwyllgor yn awyddus i weld gwerthusiad o'r effaith y mae hyn yn ei chael ar 
fuddsoddi yna efallai dylai'r Pwyllgor edrych ar ysgolion Band A, a hynny gan fod 

 

Tudalen 7



 

y rhaglen yma wedi'i chwblhau ers sawl blwyddyn. Byddai cynnal asesiad a 
gwerthusiad o'r materion sy'n codi, yr heriau, a manteision Rhaglen Band B ar 
hyn o bryd yn heriol gan fod y datblygiadau yn cael eu cwblhau o hyd.  
 
Ar ôl darllen yr adroddiad, nododd Aelod Adran 3.4 o'r adroddiad, gan ofyn am 
eglurhad mewn perthynas â gwerth y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, gan ystyried 
bod ysgolion Band B bellach yn y cam gweithredu. 
 
Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu wedi cydnabod bod heriau'n codi o hyd wrth lunio rhaglenni gwaith 
y pwyllgorau craffu, weithiau mae gallu'r Aelodau i ennill dealltwriaeth well o rai 
materion wedi'i gyfyngu gan amgylchedd y Pwyllgorau. O ran pwrpas y Grŵp 
Gorchwyl a Gorffen, mae'r Grŵp yn ychwanegu gwerth drwy roi cyfle i Aelodau 
ymchwilio i fater ymhellach, felly mae'n bwysig mabwysiadu dull sy'n ceisio 
datblygu argymhellion penodol iawn, i lywio cynigion yn y dyfodol. 
 
Awgrymodd y Cadeirydd ei bod hi bron fel dechrau yn y man gorffen, e.e. beth 
ydy'r grŵp eisiau ei gyflawni? beth ydyn nhw eisiau dysgu?, felly roedd hyn yn 
glir iawn cyn cychwyn ar y darn o waith, gan gydnabod yr adborth cadarnhaol 
gan Estyn. 
 
Nododd Aelod eu bod nhw wedi cael gwybod mewn cyfarfod blaenorol nad oedd 
unrhyw waith gwerthuso mewnol wedi'i gynnal mewn perthynas â phrosesu a 
datblygu ysgolion Band A. Roedd y Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen yn cynnig cyfle i 
wneud hynny, fel bod modd defnyddio'r hyn a ddysgwyd pe byddai cynlluniau 
tebyg yn cael eu cynnal yn y dyfodol, gan fanteisio i'r eithaf ar adnoddau ac 
arbed arian. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad ynghylch y cyfeiriad at ysgolion 3-19 oed, roedd 
yr Aelod wedi cymryd yn ganiataol bod ysgolion pob oed wedi'u cynnwys yn hyn, 
nid un categori penodol yn unig. 
 
O ran deilliannau Ysgolion Band A, esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod deilliannau'r ysgolion wedi'u cynnwys yn rhan 
o’r adroddiadau CCD, adroddiadau ar waharddiadau ac adroddiadau mynychu'r 
ysgol sy'n cael eu cyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor bob blwyddyn. Yn ogystal â hyn, roedd 
CCD wedi darparu crynodeb o ddeilliannau Estyn, felly roedd rhywfaint o 
dystiolaeth am gyflawniad yr ysgolion hynny sydd wedi elwa o fuddsoddiad Band 
A. Mae gwerthuso'r rhaglen Band A yn faes cymhleth, ac mae'n bwysig ein bod 
ni'n canolbwyntio ar y materion cywir wrth gynnal y gwaith yma. 
 
Ar ôl trafod, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a thrafod y camau nesaf a'r ffordd 
ymlaen arfaethedig; a  
 

2. Gofyn i'r Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu wneud y trefniadau angenrheidiol. 
 

(Nodwch: Roedd y cynnig aflwyddiannus i beidio â sefydlu grŵp gorchwyl a 
gorffen gan ystyried nad oedd gan Estyn unrhyw argymhellion na phryderon a 
gan fod Estyn yn cytuno bod y cynigion trefniadaeth ysgolion yn ystyried 
anghenion y gymuned, yn hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb a darpariaeth ar gyfer 
disgyblion, a gan fod ysgolion Band B bellach yn y broses weithredu, a gan 

Tudalen 8



 

ystyried rhaglen waith brysur y Pwyllgor, wedi'i gynnig gan y Cynghorydd S 
Emanuel). 
 

12   DATA'R GWEITHLU ADDYSG  
 

 

 Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant y newyddion 
diweddaraf i Aelodau mewn perthynas â data'r gweithlu addysg yn y 115 ysgol 
ledled Rhondda Cynon Taf, yn ogystal â data penodol am weithlu'r sector 
cyfrwng Cymraeg, gan nodi bod yr adroddiad yma'n adroddiad a gafodd ei lunio 
ar y cyd â chydweithwyr o'r adran AD, gan ddefnyddio 3 adnodd data allweddol. 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant y cyd-destun 
yn Adran 4, cyn trafod Adran 5 sy'n ymwneud â data iTrent. Yna, aeth y 
Cyfarwyddwr ati i ddarparu trosolwg o ddata staff addysgu (ym mhob sector) fel 
sydd wedi'i nodi yn Atodiad 1; data staff addysgu (cyfrwng Cymraeg) yn Atodiad 
2; a data staff cymorth fel sydd wedi'i nodi yn Atodiad 3, cyn rhannu data CYBLD 
yn Adran 6. Aeth y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant ati i 
drafod Data ynglŷn â'r Gymraeg yn Adran 7 cyn crynhoi'r casgliadau yn Adran 
14 o'r adroddiad. 
 
Roedd y Cadeirydd wedi diolch i'r Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant am gyflwyno'r adroddiad. 
 
Roedd Aelod wedi gofyn am eglurhad ynghylch cadw staff mewn pynciau craidd 
e.e. Ffiseg. 
 
Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant wedi cydnabod 
bod recriwtio athrawon ar gyfer pynciau craidd yn heriol yn y sector addysg 
cyfrwng Saesneg a'r sector addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg, ond mae hi'n arbennig o 
anodd yn y sector addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg.  Mae yna her o ran cynyddu nifer yr 
athrawon sydd ar gael, ac roedd hi'n ansicr ynghylch sut y bydd Prifysgolion yn 
llwyddo i gwrdd â thargedau uchelgeisiol Llywodraeth Cymru o ran addysg 
gychwynnol i athrawon. Roedd y gwasanaeth yn effro iawn i'r ffaith bod pobl yn 
symud o fewn y system ac mae cadw staff yn her fawr.  
 
Holodd Aelod pa waith sy'n cael ei wneud i annog staff sydd ddim yn siarad 
Cymraeg i fanteisio ar gyfleoedd i ddysgu Cymraeg. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod yr Adran 
AD wedi mynd i ysgolion gwahanol i recordio unigolion er mwyn rhannu'u 
profiadau gwahanol a chyhoeddi'r llwyddiannau ar wefan y Cyngor, i ddangos 
sut mae modd i bobl symud i rolau a sectorau gwahanol. Yn rhan o ddeilliant 7 y 
Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg, sy'n canolbwyntio ar sicrhau staff 
digonol yn y sector addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg, mae modd i ni weld nad oes digon 
o gynnydd wedi'i wneud yn y maes yma. Mae angen gwneud rhagor er mwyn 
annog unigolion i fanteisio ar yr hyfforddiant sydd ar gael. Mae is-grwp 
marchnata wedi'i sefydlu er mwyn hyrwyddo'r neges, ynghyd ag ailwampio'r 
wefan i ddenu staff posibl. Mae llawer o staff yn y sector addysg cyfrwng 
Saesneg sydd heb ddigon o hyder i addysgu yn Gymraeg, ond gyda'r cymorth 
iawn mae'n bosibl y byddai modd iddyn nhw symud i addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg. 
Mae llawer o waith i'w wneud ac mae sicrhau cynnydd o ran niferoedd staffio yn 
mynd i fod yn heriol, ond mae'r Cyngor wedi ymrwymo i geisio gwella'r elfen 
yma.  
 
Holodd Aelod pa mor aml ydy disgyblion yn mynychu gwers lle dydy'r athro ddim 
yn arbenigwr. 

 

Tudalen 9



 

 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant nad oedd y 
data yma wedi cael ei gasglu ond mae'n rhaid i'r sector addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg fod yn greadigol iawn wrth uwchsgilio staff, sydd efallai ddim yn 
arbenigwyr mewn pynciau penodol, fel bod modd iddyn nhw addysgu ystod eang 
o bynciau, gan ei bod hi'n bwysig sicrhau bod gan y person sy'n addysgu'r plant 
y sgiliau a'r wybodaeth gywir. Roedd hi'n bwysig sicrhau mynediad i'r cyfleoedd 
dysgu proffesiynol cywir a manteisio ar gymorth CCD, yn ogystal â hyrwyddo 
llwybrau gwahanol i faes addysgu, e.e. annog graddedigion i ymgymryd â 
swyddi cymorth dysgu er mwyn manteisio ar hyfforddiant pellach i ddod yn 
athrawon. Roedd llawer o ddulliau creadigol ar waith er mwyn mynd i'r afael â 
hyn, ond does dim ateb cyflym i'r her genedlaethol yma. 
 
Holodd yr Aelod a yw'r her yma wedi cael effaith ar ddeilliannau Addysg. 
 
Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant wedi cydnabod 
bod pob arweinydd eisiau sicrhau bod gan y plant fynediad i staff arbenigol, ac 
un o flaenoriaethau strategol y Gyfarwyddiaeth yw sicrhau bod pob plentyn yn 
derbyn addysg yn rhan o gwricwlwm trawsnewidiol, sy'n gwella deilliannau. 
Mae'r holl ddysgu proffesiynol sy'n cael ei ddarparu gan GCD yn canolbwyntio ar 
uwchsgilio'r gweithlu, er mwyn sicrhau bod ganddyn nhw'r sgiliau angenrheidiol i 
ddarparu cwricwlwm cyffrous. Y gobaith oedd y byddai'r diffyg o ran staff 
arbenigol wedi lleihau'n sylweddol ers y pandemig, ond roedd absenoldebau 
staff a heriau o ran recriwtio yn parhau i fodoli.  Roedd y data'n dangos bod 
iechyd meddwl yn broblem, ond mae'r garfan AD yn gwneud llawer o waith i 
gefnogi lles y gweithlu drwy gynnig cymorth iechyd galwedigaethol, gyda 
gweithwyr proffesiynol sy'n codi ymwybyddiaeth yn ogystal â chefnogi pobl i 
ddychwelyd i'r gwaith.  
 
Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol hefyd wedi rhannu gwybodaeth 
am y cymorth sydd ar gael i staff, gan esbonio bod y cymorth sydd ar gael i staff 
ysgol yn cael ei ddarparu ar ôl 3pm, er mwyn sicrhau nad oedd hyn yn effeithio 
ar y diwrnod ysgol, yn ogystal â chyflwyno CARI - er mwyn cefnogi iechyd 
meddwl. 
 
Holodd Aelod am y ganran uchel o bobl sy'n gadael y swydd ar ôl blwyddyn, gan 
ofyn am eglurhad pellach mewn perthynas â'r ganran yma ac a yw gwaith 
monitro yn cael ei gynnal mewn perthynas ag athrawon newydd gymhwyso. 
 
Cytunodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod y cymorth 
yma'n allweddol. Mae Adroddiadau Blynyddol CCD sy'n cael eu cyflwyno i'r 
Pwyllgor yn esbonio'r holl gymorth sydd ar gael i gefnogi athrawon newydd 
gymhwyso. Nodwyd bod cadw staff yn allweddol, ynghyd ag ennill dealltwriaeth 
o'r pwysau y mae'r gweithlu'n ei wynebu yn dilyn y pandemig, o ran ymddygiad 
ac wrth i ddisgyblion ailymgysylltu ag addysg.  Nodwyd ei bod hi'n bwysig bod 
cymorth yn cael ei ddarparu i athrawon newydd gymhwyso, i sicrhau nad oedd 
athrawon yn cael eu llethu gan yr heriau yma. Ar y cyfan, mae ysgolion yn eithaf 
da o ran cadw staff. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth Cyflawniad - Ysgolion Cynradd RhCT yr Aelodau at 
wefan CCD, gan amlygu'r rhestr o gymorth sy'n cael ei ddarparu o dan adran 
'Athrawon Newydd Gymhwyso a Sefydlu'. Mae gan GCD garfan o bobl sy'n 
gweithio'n agos gyda'r ANG i sicrhau eu bod nhw'n cyflawni'r safonau yma. 
 

Tudalen 10



 

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd, ar ran Aelod o'r Pwyllgor, am eglurhad pellach ynghylch 
staff dros dro sy'n symud i swyddi parhaol.  
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol fod nifer o staff yn cael eu 
cyflogi ar gontractau dros dro i ddechrau, yn aml iawn mae hyn yn gysylltiedig â 
threfniadau cyllid. Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol y byddai 
angen gwneud gwaith ymchwil pellach i gadarnhau faint o staff sydd wedi symud 
o swyddi dros dro i swyddi parhaol, er bod hyn yn digwydd yn aml. 
 
Holodd yr Aelod a oes gan Gyngor RhCT gronfa o staff cyflenwi ac a yw'r 
athrawon yn defnyddio system Teacher Booker. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol nad oedd Cyngor RhCT 
wedi cynnal cronfa staff cyflenwi ers sawl blwyddyn, er bod ysgolion unigol yn 
rheoli nifer fach o staff cyflenwi, gan amlaf, caiff y rhain eu dyrannu i ysgolion 
penodol. O ran system Teacher Booker, nodwyd nad yw'r system yn gwbl 
weithredol ar hyn o bryd, ond mae gwaith yn cael ei gynnal rhwng Cymdeithas 
Llywodraeth Leol Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru i ddatrys y broblem yma, felly 
mae'n bosibl y bydd y system yn cael ei defnyddio yn y dyfodol.  
 
Holodd Aelod am yr hyn sy'n cael ei wneud i gadw athrawon neu eu symud nhw 
i ysgolion eraill, os yw ysgolion yn lleihau o ganlyniad i'r argyfwng ariannol.  
 
Nododd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol fod y gwasanaeth yn ceisio 
adleoli'r athrawon yma i ysgolion eraill os yw unigolyn yn colli'i swydd, neu'n 
defnyddio trefniant lle mae ysgolion eraill yn creu cyfle i unigolyn arall ymddeol 
ac yna'n llenwi ei swydd (bump redundancy), mae hyn wedi bod yn llwyddiannus 
dros y blynyddoedd.  Byddai modd defnyddio hyn ar gyfer staff cymorth hefyd, 
yn rhan o broses rheoli newid y Cyngor. Fodd bynnag, nodwyd bod angen i 
ysgolion gytuno i dderbyn staff newydd, oherwydd natur ymreolaethol y cyrff 
llywodraethu, does dim modd gwarantu y bydd modd adleoli pob aelod o staff.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad pellach o ran adenillion o fuddsoddi mewn 
perthynas ag ymgyrchoedd ar y cyfryngau cymdeithasol, gan nodi nad oedden 
nhw wedi gweld unrhyw swyddi addysgu'n cael eu hysbysebu hyd yn hyn.  
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol nad oedd ganddo fynediad 
i fanylion y costau yn y cyfarfod, ond esboniodd fod yr ymgyrchoedd diweddar ar 
gyfer staff gofal cymdeithasol a staff glanhau wedi bod yn llwyddiannus iawn, 
felly byddai tystiolaeth anecdotaidd yn awgrymu bod yr ymgyrchoedd yma wedi 
bod yn llwyddiannus iawn. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod y gwaith 
hyrwyddo a marchnata'n cael ei ddatblygu ar hyn o bryd, a bydd ymgyrch yn 
cael ei chynnal ar y cyfryngau cymdeithasol yn y dyfodol.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad mewn perthynas â manylion daearyddol yr 
athrawon a staff cymorth e.e. sawl aelod o staff sy'n byw yn y sir a thu hwnt i'r sir 
ac ati. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Adnoddau Dynol y byddai modd casglu'r 
wybodaeth yma, a'i rhannu ag Aelodau. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod at Addysgwyr Cymru a'r hyfforddiant addysg gychwynnol i 
athrawon, gan holi a yw targedau Llywodraeth Cymru'n realistig, a beth sy'n cael 

Tudalen 11



 

ei wneud er mwyn cyflawni'r targedau yma. 
 
Esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru'n ceisio pennu ffyrdd creadigol i fynd i'r afael â hyn, a bod 
Cynllun Gweithlu ar waith. Mae recriwtio yn cyflwyno heriau gwahanol, ond 
mae'r mater yma'n cael ei nodi fel her a phryder mewn cyfarfodydd Cymru gyfan.  
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD: 

 
1. Nodi bod Aelodau wedi adolygu a chraffu ar gynnwys yr adroddiad;  

 
2. Nodi bod Aelodau wedi trafod a ydyn nhw'n bwriadu cynnal gwaith 

craffu pellach mewn perthynas ag unrhyw elfennau o'r adroddiad 
ac a oes angen derbyn adroddiadau pellach yn y dyfodol.  

 
13   MATERION DERBYN DISGYBLION  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu grynodeb o'r broses derbyn disgyblion flynyddol, sy'n rhannu'r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddatblygiadau ym maes derbyn disgyblion ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn academaidd 2022/2023 a'r dyddiadau ymgeisio ar gyfer blwyddyn 
academaidd 2023/24. Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, 
Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu'r wybodaeth sydd yn Adran 4, sy'n cynnwys 
crynodeb o'r broses derbyn disgyblion flynyddol, ceisiadau ar gyfer blwyddyn 
academaidd 2022/23, y broses apelio, ceisiadau hwyr, cyfrifoldeb rhiant, 
ysgolion pob oed, yr amserlen ar gyfer 2023/24, rhestr aros a derbyn disgyblion 
ar adegau gwahanol. Roedd Adran 5 yn cynnwys rhagor o fanylion am y sector 
Cyfrwng Cymraeg, gan gynnwys data. Roedd Adran 6 yn amlinellu manylion 
derbyn disgyblion ar gyfer dysgwyr ag Anghenion Addysgol Arbennig, ac roedd y 
Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu wedi 
dod â'i chyfraniad hi i ben drwy gyfeirio at Adran 7, sy'n cynnwys manylion am y 
Panel Mynediad Teg. 
 
Dymunodd y Cadeirydd ddiolch i'r Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, 
Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu am gyflwyno'r adroddiad. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurhad pellach o ran symud disgyblion o Flwyddyn 6 i 
Flwyddyn 7. 
 
Nododd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod dewis y rhieni yn dylanwadu ar hyn, gan nodi nad oedd 
ysgolion cynradd yn cyflenwi ysgolion uwchradd penodol, felly mae hyn yn 
golygu bod angen cydymffurfio â'r cod derbyn disgyblion statudol.   Mae hyn yn 
golygu bod modd i blentyn Blwyddyn 6 mewn Ysgol Pob Oed wneud cais i 
symud i Flwyddyn 7 mewn ysgol arall. 
 
Ceisiodd Aelod eglurhad pellach am fanylion y disgyblion sy'n trosglwyddo yn 
ystod y flwyddyn, ai trosglwyddiadau mewnol yn RhCT yw'r rhain, neu ydyn 
nhw'n cynnwys disgyblion sy'n symud i'r Fwrdeistref Sirol?  Nododd yr Aelod fod 
nifer y disgyblion ysgol uwchradd sy'n symud yn ystod y flwyddyn yn edrych yn 
uchel iawn, gan holi a oes rheswm dros hyn. 
 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod 51.81% o'r disgyblion a symudodd ysgol yn ystod y flwyddyn 

 

Tudalen 12



 

wedi gwneud hynny o ganlyniad i symud tŷ, ond yn anffodus, does dim hawl 
cyfreithiol i ofyn pam bod hyn yn digwydd. O ran ysgolion uwchradd, mae 
swyddog trosglwyddo yn ystod y flwyddyn yn cwrdd â rhieni i geisio deall y 
rhesymau dros wneud hyn, cyn cymeradwyo'r cais i drosglwyddo.  
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelod am eglurhad ynghylch pam y mae rhieni yn dewis anfon eu 
plant i ysgol eglwysig, er enghraifft, yn hytrach na'r ysgol gysylltiedig. 
 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod gan ysgolion ffydd eu hawdurdod derbyn disgyblion eu hunain, 
ac roedd hyn felly yn ymwneud â dewis y rhieni, gan amlaf bydd rhieni'n 
cyflwyno cais ar gyfer 2 ysgol, 1 ysgol RhCT ac 1 ysgol ffydd. 
 
Nododd yr Aelod ei bod hi'n anodd cynllunio'n strategol gan ystyried y newid 
sylweddol o ran niferoedd, gan holi a oes modd cynnal unrhyw waith pellach 
mewn perthynas â hyn. 
 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod e-bost wedi cael ei anfon at bob ysgol gynradd sy'n cynnwys 
ragamcanion niferoedd disgyblion, a hynny er mwyn nodi ysgolion uwchradd fel 
bod modd iddyn nhw weithio'n agos â'r ysgolion cynradd cysylltiedig. Un peth 
arall a gafodd ei wneud gydag ysgolion uwchradd oedd croesgyfeirio'r ceisiadau 
dyblyg gyda'r ysgolion ffydd ar ôl i'r broses derbyn disgyblion gau ym mis Hydref. 
Cafwyd trafodaeth gyda phennaeth unrhyw ysgol gynradd lle roedd nifer uchel o 
geisiadau ar gyfer ysgol ffydd, i ddysgu pam ddigwyddodd hyn, ond yn y pen 
draw, dewis y rhieni oedd hyn.  
 
O ran cyfnodau pontio esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Cynhwysiant fod y rhan fwyaf o ysgolion yn cynnal cyfnodau pontio ar gyfer sawl 
ysgol. O ran ysgolion cysylltiedig, roedd dyletswydd arnyn nhw i sicrhau digon o 
leoedd er mwyn cwrdd â'r galw yn lleol, ond gallai hyn fod yn heriol os oedd 
newid o ran tueddiadau, e.e. mae'n anochel y bydd ysgol newydd sbon yn denu 
nifer uchel o geisiadau.  Caiff trafodaethau ynghylch gwella ysgolion eu cynnal 
pan fydd tueddiadau o ran derbyn disgyblion yn dod i'r amlwg, ond mae'r 
ddeddfwriaeth yn cefnogi hawl y rhiant i ddewis. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at y tabl sydd wedi'i nodi yn 4.2, sy'n trafod ail/trydydd dewis 
disgyblion Blwyddyn 7 ym mis Medi 2022, gan ofyn a oedd hyn yn ymwneud â 
chapasiti. Gofynnodd yr Aelod am eglurhad pellach ynghylch y broses apelio, 
gan nodi fod 23 apêl wedi dod i'r amlwg, gydag 20 apêl lwyddiannus. 
   
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod y broses apelio wedi'i rhannu'n 2 rhan. Mae gofyn i'r Awdurdod 
Lleol a'r Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu ystyried ffeithiau a ffigurau, a ph’un a oes lle yn yr ysgol neu 
beidio. Ni fyddai modd i'r Awdurdod ystyried y rhesymau y byddai panel yn eu 
hystyried gan gynnwys amgylchiadau personol a nifer o resymau gwahanol dros 
ddewis ysgol benodol. Pan fydd rhieni'n cyflwyno cais, rhaid i'r Pennaeth 
Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu fod yn ddu a 
gwyn a dweud bod yr ysgol yn llawn. Fodd bynnag, yn ystod yr apêl, byddai 
modd i'r panel ystyried yr achos unigol, felly mae gan y panel yr hawl i wrthod 
penderfyniad yr Awdurdod Lleol, ac mae penderfyniad y panel yn gyfreithiol-
rwym ar gyfer yr Awdurdod Lleol a'r ysgol.  
 
Gan gyfeirio at dderbyn disgyblion i Ysgolion Cymraeg, nododd Aelod fod y galw 

Tudalen 13



 

am leoedd yn cynyddu felly holodd pa drefniadau fydd yn cael eu rhoi ar waith 
os na fydd digon o leoedd ar gael ac a yw disgybl erioed wedi cael ei wrthod o 
Ysgol Gymraeg o ganlyniad i ddiffyg lleoedd.  
 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod modd i bobl apelio yn achos cais ar gyfer lle mewn dosbarth 
derbyn neu ddosbarth uwch. Hyd yn hyn, dydy'r Awdurdod ddim wedi gwrthod 
lle mewn Ysgol Gymraeg, er bod darpariaeth amgen wedi cael ei chynnig ar 
gyfer dosbarthiadau meithrin, os oedden nhw'n llawn. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod a fyddai modd gweld ffigurau ynghylch nifer y plant sy'n 
trosglwyddo o Ysgol Saesneg i Ysgol Gymraeg, gan awgrymu y byddai modd 
cyflwyno gwybodaeth am hyn ar ôl cwblhau'r gwaith trochi. 
 
O ran y gwaith trochi, esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, 
Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu fod yr athro trochi yn mynychu cyfarfodydd 
sy'n cael eu cynnal gyda'r ysgolion Band B newydd, er mwyn esbonio'r opsiynau 
ar gyfer addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg a chyfrwng Saesneg, felly mae hyn yn cael ei 
hyrwyddo erbyn hyn. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at baragraff 4.2, sy'n nodi bod yr ymgeisydd ddim yn gymwys i 
wneud cais o ganlyniad i oedran y plentyn (Dosbarth Cyn-meithrin, Ionawr 2023, 
colofn 406) a holodd beth sy'n cael ei wneud i sicrhau bod rhieni'n gwybod pryd i 
gyflwyno cais.  
 
Esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu fod hyn yn cyfeirio at rieni sydd wedi cyflwyno cais, ond mae'r 
plentyn yn rhy ifanc. Felly rydyn ni wedi cynyddu faint o waith marchnata a 
hyrwyddo sy'n cael ei wneud ac mae hyn yn cynnwys mynychu Picnic y Tedis, 
sy'n denu oddeutu 3,000 o rieni, yn ogystal ag esbonio'r dyddiadau pwysig i 
ymwelwyr iechyd. Os yw rhieni'n cyflwyno cais yn gynnar, byddan nhw'n cael eu 
symud i'r dyddiad cymwys. 
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod at 4.5, cyfrifoldeb rhiant, a holodd am nifer yr achosion. 
 
Roedd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu wedi cydnabod yr achosion sydd wedi'u nodi, ond nododd eu bod 
nhw'n ceisio peidio â bod yn rhan o'r achosion yma ble bynnag y bo modd a 
dyma pam mae'r dull sy'n rhoi'r cyfrifoldeb goruwchreoli i'r person â chyfrifoldeb 
rhiant wedi cael ei gyflwyno.  
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod at dudalen 69 gan holi a fyddai modd gweld dadansoddiad o 
drosglwyddiadau yn ystod y flwyddyn yn ôl ADY. 
 
Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a 
Llywodraethu y byddai modd iddi ddarparu manylion pellach mewn perthynas ag 
ADY, o ran y Datganiad CYBLD.  
 
Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod at adran 7, sy'n trafod y Panel Mynediad Teg, gan nodi bod 
55 atgyfeiriad wedi'i wneud. Holodd yr Aelod sawl atgyfeiriad trosglwyddo yn 
ystod y flwyddyn a gafodd ei wneud gan rieni (cyfanswm o 12) oedd wedi cael 
lleoliad yn yr ysgol o'u dewis.  
 
O ran y Panel Mynediad Teg, esboniodd y Pennaeth Trawsnewid 
Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu ei bod hi'n anodd trefnu 

Tudalen 14



 

lleoliad ar gyfer y plant yma sydd ag anghenion emosiynol amrywiol ac sy'n gallu 
bod yn eithaf heriol, felly mae'n fater o gefnogi'r rhieni a'r plant wrth iddyn nhw 
symud ysgol fel eu bod nhw'n derbyn y cymorth a'r anogaeth angenrheidiol i 
sicrhau eu bod nhw'n cael eu rhoi yn yr ysgol orau bosibl.  
 
Roedd y Cadeirydd o'r farn y byddai'n ddefnyddiol clywed gan y swyddog ei hun, 
y tro nesaf y bydd gwaharddiadau yn cael eu trafod, gan gynnwys rhai 
astudiaethau achos dienw.  
 
Daeth y Cadeirydd i ben drwy nodi bod llawer o waith yn cael ei wneud, nid yn 
unig gwaith gweinyddol, ond gwaith cyfryngu, cyfathrebu â rhieni ac ati hefyd, ac 
roedd angen nodi hyn. Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd fod Pennaeth Trawsnewid 
Gwasanaethau, Derbyn Disgyblion a Llywodraethu yn rhannu'r gydnabyddiaeth 
yma gyda'i charfan. 
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD: 
 

1. Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a thrafod a yw'r Pwyllgor yn dymuno cynnal 
gwaith craffu mwy manwl mewn perthynas â rhai elfennau o'r adroddiad. 

 
14   ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD Â'R CYFARFOD I BEN  

 
 

 Dymunodd y Cadeirydd ddiolch i'r Swyddogion am eu hadroddiadau manwl a'u 
diwydrwydd wrth ateb cwestiynau. Roedd y Cadeirydd hefyd wedi diolch i'r 
Aelodau am eu cyfraniadau nhw, cyn atgoffa Aelodau y bydd cyfarfod nesaf y 
Pwyllgor yn cael ei gynnal ar ddydd Iau, 28 Medi 2023, gan atgoffa Aelodau i 
gysylltu â'r Uwch Swyddog Democrataidd a Chraffu mewn perthynas â'r Rhaglen 
Gwella Gwyliau'r Ysgol - 'Bwyd a Hwyl', a fydd yn cael ei gynnal ar ddydd 
Mercher 9 Awst 2023. 
 

 

15   MATERION BRYS  
 

 

 Dim. 
 

 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 7.02 pm Y Cynghorydd S.Evans 
Cadeirydd. 

 

Tudalen 15



Tudalen wag



 
 
 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

14TH SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO DEVELOP A NEW 3-19 SPECIAL 
SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION 

 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1. For Members of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee to formally 

respond to the Council’s consultation which proposes to develop a 3-19 new 
special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT). 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1. Consider responding as consultees upon the proposals detailed below in 

paragraph 5. 
 
2.2. Consider as a committee, to provide further comments, observations or 

recommendations in respect of these proposals prior to Cabinet consideration.  
 
2.3. Request the Service Director for Democratic Services & Communications to 

provide Cabinet with the feedback of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
3.1. To provide Members of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee with 

the opportunity to respond to the consultation by 14th September 2023, so that 
it can have its say on the proposal to develop a new 3-19 special school in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 17

Agendwm 4

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/CurrentConsultations/Proposaltodevelopanew3to19specialschoolinRhonddaCynonTaf.aspx


 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1. At the meeting of Cabinet held on 28th June 2023, approval was given to begin 

a process of formal consultation on proposals to develop a New Special School 
In Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

 
4.2. The consultation in respect of these proposals will be undertaken between 3rd 

July and 14th September 2023 under the arrangements outlined in the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code. These arrangements stipulate that 
consultation must be undertaken when the proposals are at a formative stage 
and that Consultation Documents must be prepared and circulated to 
prescribed consultees, as well as being published on the Council website. 
 

4.3. The Cabinet report appended at Appendix 1, includes the Consultation 
Document at Appendix A which provides details on the introduction, 
background to the proposal, the likely impact of the proposal, and consultation 
response form. The Equality Impact Assessment is detailed in Appendix B and 
the Welsh Language Impact Assessment is detailed in Appendix C. 

 
5. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS/SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
5.1. An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of this 

report are for information purposes only. 
 

6. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1. There are no Welsh language implications arising from this report. 

 
7. CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT 
 
7.1. The involvement of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee as 

consultee, will contribute to the quality and robustness of Cabinet decision-
making. 
 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1. There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
9.1. The report has been prepared in accordance with paragraph Part 4 of the 

Constitution (Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules). 
 

10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1. The Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee, in line with its Terms of 

Reference, has been afforded the opportunity to respond to the consultation 
published on the 3rd July 2023.  

Tudalen 18



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

as amended by 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO DEVELOP A NEW 3-19 SPECIAL 

SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
 
 

14TH SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 19



Tudalen wag



APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
28TH JUNE 2023 

 
PROPOSALS TO DEVELOP A NEW SPECIAL SCHOOL  

IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF  
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION, YOUTH 
PARTICIPATION AND WELSH LANGUAGE (COUNCILLOR R LEWIS) 
 
AUTHOR(S):  
Gaynor Davies, Director of Education and Inclusion Services and 
Andrea Richards, Service Director of 21st Century Schools and Transformation. 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 Following the report to Cabinet from the Director of Education and Inclusion 

Services, on the 26th September 2022, regarding the proposal to develop a 
new special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT), the purpose of this report 
is to: 
 

1.2     Seek formal approval to begin the relevant and required statutory consultation 
for the proposal to open a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT. The consultation 
will also include the introduction of catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special 
schools across RCT, these are: 

 

• Park Lane Special School 
• Ysgol Hen Felin  
• Ysgol Ty Coch. 

 
1.3  Provide an update to Cabinet, regarding the submission of the variation to the 

approved Strategic Outline Programme in accordance with the Welsh 
Government’s Sustainable Communities for Learning funding approval 
processes.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 Note the content of this report. 
 

Tudalen 21

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36976/Report.pdf?LLL=0


2.2 Give formal approval to commence a statutory consultation with relevant 
stakeholders on the proposal to: 
 

2.2.1 Build a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT on a new site. 
 

2.2.2 Introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT (as listed 
in 1.2), to better meet and manage the demand for special school places.  

 
2.2.3  Note that children and young people who wish to remain in their existing 

special school special school placements following the catchment changes 
can continue to do so. However, all new placements will be informed by the 
revised catchment areas once the changes are implemented so that learners 
attend their local special school.   
 

2.2.4  Subject to 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 above, give formal approval to report back to            
Cabinet to consider the Consultation Report and determine whether to publish 
the Consultation Report and approve the publication of the proposal in the            
form of a Statutory Notice.  
 

2.2.5  Subject to 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 above, give delegated authority to the Director of 
Education and Inclusion Services to make any minor changes required to the 
draft Consultation Document (attached at Appendix A) prior to its publication 
and the statutory consultation commencing.  

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To acknowledge the statutory duties placed upon the Council to deliver the 

obligations of the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) 
Act 2018 (ALNET Act 2018), will compound the pressures placed on special 
schools and the Council’s capacity to provide a statutory provision for the 
pupils who require it. 
 

3.2 To secure appropriate special school provision for pupils with additional 
learning needs (ALN) and mitigate against potential long-term budgetary 
pressures for the Council resulting from out of county and independent 
placements.  
 

3.3 To better meet and manage the demand for special school places across 
RCT, helping to ensure that pupils are allocated places in the special school 
nearest their home. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 

4.1 Previous reports presented to Cabinet by the Director of Education and 
Inclusion Services (25th February 2021, 4th October 2021 and 26th September 
2022) highlighted the pressures faced by our special schools as the number 
of pupils placed in these specialist provisions are increasing on an annual 
basis. Children’s needs are becoming more complex and there is a need to 
meet demand for placements for some of our most vulnerable children living 
in RCT. The data presented clearly showed that the demand on the Council’s 
special school provision was significant and the trend data indicated that this 

Tudalen 22

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s25055/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s31164/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36976/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36976/Report.pdf?LLL=0


pressure would continue to rise.  Since February 2021, the special school 
population has grown by 94 learners which is a significant growth.  
 

4.2 The previous reports presented to Cabinet (linked in 4.1) also described the 
limitations of each special school site, and the conclusion reached was that 
all opportunities to significantly extend and increase capacities had been 
explored and, where possible, undertaken. Since the last report was 
presented to Cabinet  on 26th September 2022, works funded by the Council, 
to maximise the available space on our special schools has continued to be 
an ongoing priority. By September 2023, an additional two-classrooms will be 
added to Park Lane Special School and by September 2024, a three-
classroom extension will be added to Maesgwyn Special School.  
 

4.3 Options and alternatives to expand the existing special school sites have been 
exhausted and the only feasible alternative is to build a new 3 to 19 special 
school on a new site, significantly growing the special school provision within 
RCT and increasing the number of special schools in RCT from four to five. 
Creating a highly specialist 21st century special school environment will 
enable the Council to meet the needs of pupils requiring access to highly 
specialist therapeutic facilities, equipment and resources required to meet all 
needs, including complex medical and health needs.  
 

4.4 Given the considerable changes planned in Wales in relation to the statutory 
provision required to meet the needs of pupils with ALN with the 
implementation of the ALNET Act 2018, building a new 3 to 19 special school 
in RCT, and creating further capacity in our current provision, will also ensure 
that the Council can continue to meet its statutory obligations.  
 

4.5 Following the report to Cabinet from the Director of Education and Inclusion 
Services on the 26th September 2022, the Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team have successfully submitted a variation to the approved Strategic 
Outline Programme to the Welsh Government in accordance with the 
Sustainable Communities for Learning funding approval processes. The 
agreed capital funding envelope to deliver a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT 
had increased to £53.4 million, with the Welsh Government funding this 
project by up to 75.0%.  

 
5. WHERE ARE WE NOW 

 
5.1 There are currently 670 pupils (PLASC, 2023) accessing four special schools 

across RCT with a range of needs, these are: 
 

• Maesgwyn Special School, Cwmdare, Aberdare  
• Park Lane Special School, Trecynon, Aberdare 
• Ysgol Hen Felin, Ystrad, Tonypandy  
• Ysgol Ty Coch, Tonteg, Pontypridd 

o Buarth y Capel, Ynysybwl, Pontypridd (satellite site of Ysgol Ty 
Coch for learners with very complex ASD).  

 
5.2 However, as previously reported, it has become increasingly apparent that the 

special schools currently available are insufficient to meet the growth in 

Tudalen 23

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36976/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s36976/Report.pdf?LLL=0


demand.  In view of this, a data analysis exercise has been undertaken. 
Further information on each special school is provided within the draft 
Consultation Document (attached at Appendix A), including information on the 
educational provision, age range of pupils and an overview of each special 
school site, including property condition information and suitability ratings. 
 

5.3 The capacity of each special school is not included. In accordance with 
Measuring the Capacity of Schools in Wales 2011 (021/2011), the capacity 
assessment method applied to all community, voluntary aided, voluntary 
controlled and foundation schools in Wales does not apply to nursery, special 
schools, or pupil referral units. Pupils are placed in special schools based on 
an assessment of their needs; therefore, special schools can never be classed 
as ‘at capacity.’ 
 

5.4 The Council’s school modernisation programme has been successfully 
making excellent progress in modernising our school estate, meeting demand 
for places and expanding pupil places where required. The Council has been 
building new schools, remodelling, and redeveloping schools across RCT 
providing 21st century learning environments for our pupils, staff, 
parents/carers and the wider community. 
 

6. NEW 3 TO 19 SPECIAL SCHOOL IN RCT ON A NEW SITE  
 

6.1 As outlined in 4.1 to 4.5, and as part of the continuation of the Council’s school 
modernisation programme, investment is needed to provide a new 3 to 19 
special school in RCT.  It is also proposed to introduce catchment areas for 
all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT, to better meet and manage the 
demand for special school places, ensuring pupils are allocated places in the 
special school nearest their home. 
 

6.2 The 3 to 19 special schools across RCT are: 
 

• Park Lane Special School 
• Ysgol Hen Felin  
• Ysgol Ty Coch. 

 
6.3 The rationale for bringing the proposal is set out in detail in the draft 

Consultation Document (attached at Appendix A).  
 

6.4 Alongside this proposal, further options to expand the Post 16 Specialist 
Provision off school sites will need to be explored, and further options or 
alternatives to expand the existing site at Buarth y Capel may be proposed 
separately at a later date in accordance with the School Organisation Code 
(2nd Edition) (011/2018). 
 

6.5 The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance with 
current requirements of planning and building control legislation and will be 
fully accessible and compliant with the Equality Act 2010.  
 

6.6 The majority of pupils (75.9%) currently accessing the special schools across 
RCT use home to school transport. The new 3 to 19 special school will have 

Tudalen 24

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-03/measuring-the-capacity-of-schools-in-wales-circular.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


dedicated on-site drop off and pick up facilities making this process safe, less 
disruptive for the community and manageable for staff. 
 

6.7 The investment would also include a review of safe routes to school and, if 
required, an investment in improvements to walkways, road crossings and 
traffic calming measures to ensure the required safety standards are met. This 
is the approach the Council has implemented in other communities through 
delivering the 21st Century Schools Programme with significant improvements 
and investment made.  
 

6.8 The report to Cabinet from the Chief Executive on the 15th May 2023, 
confirmed the Council Headquarters in Clydach Vale, Tonypandy is being 
released for the potential development of a new special school, noting that 
any proposal would be subject to the requirements of the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018).  As such, 
this consultation proposes that the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT be built 
on the vacated Clydach Vale site in Tonypandy. This site is proposed as the 
preferred location following a site appraisal process. A number of vacant sites 
within RCT have been appraised using the following criteria:  
 

• Ownership  
• Have an adequate site area 
• Have satisfactory access which is capable of being improved 
• Is free from any visual incumbents 
• Is a viable development opportunity subject to a detailed feasibility 

study. 
 

6.9 On applying the appraisal criteria to the identified sites, and following several 
site visits undertaken by Officers from the Council’s Directorate of Corporate 
Estates and the Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services, all the other 
sites were discounted with the Council Headquarters in Clydach Vale, 
Tonypandy, being identified as the preferred location for the new 3 to 19 
special school in RCT.  
 

6.10 Placement into special schools is currently agreed by the Council’s 
Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services’ Access and Inclusion Service 
Panels with pupils being placed in the nearest suitable special school to their 
home where possible. However, to better manage the allocation of special 
school places across RCT, the proposal also seeks to introduce defined 
catchment areas for all of the 3 to 19 special schools across RCT. 
 

6.11 On opening, pupils already attending other 3 to 19 special schools that will 
then reside within the catchment area of the new special school, will be given 
the option to relocate to the new school. To note this will not be mandatory 
and this will be down to parental/carer choice.  However, once the catchment 
changes come into effect, the Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services’ 
Access and Inclusion Service Panel will place new pupils into specialist 
provision according to the newly defined catchment boundaries. 
 

6.12 Maps identifying the proposed special school catchment areas are included 
within the Consultation Document (attached at Appendix A). Maesgwyn 

Tudalen 25

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s40979/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf


Special School will not be included in this process as it offers a different 
provision to the other special schools in RCT. As well as the new 3 to 19 
special school, the proposed new catchment areas will cover Park Lane 
Special School, Ysgol Hen Felin and Ysgol Ty Coch.  
 
 
 
 
 

7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 The Council must satisfy its public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 
(including specific Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties 
Councils must, in making decisions, have due regard to the need to: 
 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination 
• Advance equality of opportunity 
• Foster good relations based on protected characteristics. 

 
7.2 An Equality Impact Assessment is being prepared in respect of the proposal 

and will be published on the Council’s website for the duration of the 
consultation period, together with a Consultation Document that outlines the 
proposal in further detail in accordance with the requirements of the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018). 
 

8. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 A Welsh Language Impact Assessment is being prepared in respect of the 
proposal and will be published on the Council’s website for the duration of the 
consultation period, together with a Consultation Document that outlines the 
proposal in further detail in accordance with the requirements of the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018). 
 

9. CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT 
 
9.1 The consultation processes in respect of the proposal will be undertaken 

under the arrangements outlined in the Welsh Government’s School 
Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018). These arrangements stipulate 
that consultation must be undertaken when the proposals are at a formative 
stage and that Consultation Documents must be prepared and circulated to 
prescribed consultees, as well as being published on the Council website.  

 
9.2 The draft Consultation Document for the proposal outlined in this report is 

attached at Appendix A, although it should be noted that this remains a 
working document which may be subject to some minor changes before the 
Consultation Document is formally published and the consultation process 
commences.  
 

9.3 The proposed consultation period, if it is agreed to progress this matter, would 
run from 3rd July 2023 to 14th September 2023.  
 

Tudalen 26

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf


9.4 The proposed consultation timetable for completion of each action is set out 
in the table that follows: 
 

 
New 3 to 19 Special School in RCT – Proposed Consultation Timeline 

 
Action Detail Dates 

Cabinet 
Permission to 
Consult 

Cabinet to consider the proposal and give 
approval to commence consultation 

28th June 2023 

Public 
Consultation 

A Consultation Document would be published on 
the Council’s website for a minimum of six weeks 
 

3rd July 2023 to 
14th September 
2023 

Report back to 
Cabinet 

Cabinet would consider the Consultation 
Response Report and determine whether to 
publish the Report and approve the publication of 
the proposal in the form of a Statutory Notice 

October 2023 

Publish 
Statutory Notice 

The Statutory Notice must be published for a  
28 day period (if approved by Cabinet) 
 

November 2023 

Decision by 
Cabinet  

Report back to Cabinet on outcome of Statutory 
Notice period and details of (any) objections 
received, with an appropriate recommendation 
 

January 2024 

Implementation In accordance with Cabinet decision either status 
quo or implementation of proposal 

Status Quo: N/A. 
New school: 
September 2026 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 Should the proposal go ahead, a significant capital investment would be 

required. Funding will be secured via the Welsh Government’s Sustainable 
Communities for Learning Programme at an intervention rate of 75.0%. Costs 
will be developed alongside the consultation process and approvals sought in 
line with the Council’s decision-making procedures. 
 

10.2 Revenue implications resulting as a consequence of the new 3 to 19 special 
school, including the schools’ delegated budget and any potential increases 
in home to school transport costs will be identified as the proposal is 
developed and incorporated into the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Planning arrangements. 
 

11. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
11.1 Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 requires Councils to ensure that ALN 

provision is kept under review. In addition, the ALNET Act 2018 requires 
Councils to keep under review the arrangements for supporting pupils with 
ALN within their area and consider whether these are sufficient.  
 

11.2 Powers for Councils to develop school organisation proposals are governed 
by the: 

Tudalen 27

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted


 
• The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 
• The Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) 

(011/2018). 
 

11.3 Council’s must, when exercising functions under Part 3 of the School 
Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, act in accordance with any 
relevant requirements contained in the Welsh Government’s School 
Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) and must have regard to any 
relevant guidelines contained in it. 
 

12. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN, NATIONAL PRIORITIES 
AND THE FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 

 
12.1 There are links to Making a Difference, the Council’s Corporate Plan for the 

years between 2020 and 2024, specifically: 
 

• People: 
• Encouraging all residents to lead active and healthy lifestyles and 

maintain their mental wellbeing: 
o Delivering new indoor and outdoor sporting facilities and 

enhancing existing sporting facilities such as changing rooms 
and outdoor play areas. 

• Improving services for children and young people and ensuring the 
needs of children are considered in everything we do: 
o Improving the social, emotional, and mental health and 

wellbeing of children and young people by increasing the range 
of specialist services available. 
 

• Places: 
• Ensuring RCT is one of the safest places in Wales, with high levels 

of community cohesion where residents feel safe: 
o Supporting the voluntary, community and faith sectors to help 

build active communities, creating the capacity for meeting the 
needs of residents within their communities. 
 

• Prosperity:  
• Ensuring we have good schools, so all children have access to a 

great education: 
o Improving outcomes for children and young people with special 

educational needs and disabilities 
• Helping people into work and better paid employment: 

o Offering employment schemes and apprenticeships in the 
Council, on the regeneration sites, and through other Council 
contractors. 

 
12.2 There are links to the Council’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion 

Services’ Strategic Plan for the years between 2021 and 2024, specifically: 
 

• Strategic Priority 3:  
o Ensuring equity and support for vulnerable pupils and their families. 

 

Tudalen 28

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2013/1/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2013/1/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/en/anaw/2013/1/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf


• Strategic Priority 5:  
o Delivering 21st century learning environments and innovative 

services for our pupils and communities. 
 

12.3 Due regard has been made to all seven wellbeing goals and the five ways of 
working, as contained within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 which requires the Council to think about the long-term impact of 
decisions on communities to prevent consistent issues such as poverty, health 
inequalities and climate change. 
 

12.4 The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the seven wellbeing 
goals by: 

 

• A Prosperous Wales - Should the proposal proceed, construction will 
be competitively tendered, thereby achieving best value for money. 
Main contractors will be asked to advertise work on Sell2Wales which 
could provide opportunities for local businesses to tender for the 
construction. This could provide opportunities for local business to 
engage with the main contractor for inclusion in their supply chain, via 
‘Meet the Buyer’ events. This would support economic activity in the 
area.  
 

• A Resilient Wales – The proposal could improve the sustainability of 
school buildings in the Council’s portfolio through a commitment to 
achieving zero-carbon buildings and building to BREEAM excellent 
standards. 

 

• A Healthier Wales – The new school will be a fully accessible and 
integrated community school with a dedicated area designed within so 
that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both 
during and after the school day. Accommodation will consist of 
enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum 
activities.  
 

• A More Equal Wales – The new school and the way in which it will be 
used will bring neutral or positve socio-economic impacts to all of the 
vulnerable groups. 

 

• A Wales of More Cohesive Communities – Fully accessible and 
integrated community school with a dedicated area designed within so 
that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both 
during and after the school day. 

 
• A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language – 

Although the new school will be English medium, Welsh is taught as 
part of the curriculum and all pupils will benefit from having the 
opportunity to be taught in brand new facilities fit for the 21st century.  

 

• A Globally Responsive Wales – The new school could build upon the 
good working practices and initiatives already in place to further 
develop extra-curricular activities to encourage healthy lifestyles for the 

Tudalen 29

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


school community. zero-carbon buildings and building to BREEAM 
excellent standards. 

 
12.5 The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the five ways of 

working by: 
 

• Long Term – The proposal forms a part of the Council’s wider 21st 
Century Schools Investment Programme and contributes to the 
delivery of sustainable schools fit for the 21st century and supports the 
better strategic management of the Council’s education estate. Given 
the considerable changes in Wales in relation to the statutory provision 
required to meet the needs of pupils with ALN, with the implementation 
of the ALNET Act 2018, building a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, 
and creating further capacity in our current provision, will ensure that 
the Council can continue to meet its statutory obligations. 
 

• Prevention – The Council believes that the proposal represents the 
best opportunity to safeguard and sustain educational standards for the 
future and provides a platform for further improvement through 
significant investment in permanent and fit for purpose facilities. 
 

• Integrations – The new school will be a fully accessible and integrated 
community school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that the 
local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during 
and after the school day. 
 

• Collaboration – The Council will continue to work effectively with 
internal and external partners to ensure the new 3 to 19 special school 
meets the short and long term needs of pupils, parents/carers, staff and 
the wider community. 
 

• Involvement –The proposal is made in accordance with the School 
Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) and seeks the views of a 
prescribed list of stakeholders including pupils, parents/carers, staff 
and the wider community. As such face to face meetings will be 
arranged with the staff, school councils and governing bodies. 

 

12.6 As stated in 7.1 and 7.2, an Equality Impact Assessment which further details 
the contribution of the proposal to the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 is being prepared. 

 
13. STRATEGIC OR RELEVANT TO ELECTORAL WARDS 

 
13.1 Given the considerable changes in Wales in relation to the statutory provision 

required to meet the needs of pupils with the implementation of the ALNET 
Act (2018), the proposal to build a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, creating 
further capacity in our current provision, will ensure that the Council can 
continue to meet its statutory obligations and as such is a strategic proposal 
relevant to all wards. 
 

14. CONCLUSION 
 

Tudalen 30

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


14.1 In accordance with Section 315 of the Education Act 1996, councils are 
required to ensure that ALN provision is kept under review. In addition, the 
ALNET Act 2018 requires councils to keep under review the arrangements for 
supporting pupils with ALN within their area and consider whether these are 
sufficient. Building a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, and creating further 
capacity in our current provision, will ensure that the Council can continue to 
meet its statutory obligations.  
 

14.2 The proposed investment to open a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT on a 
new site provides the opportunity for more pupils with ALN to benefit from 
improved educational facilities and learning environments.  
 

14.3 Noting that on opening, pupils already attending other 3 to 19 special schools 
that will then reside within the catchment area of the new special school, will 
be given the option to relocate to the new school. This will not be mandatory, 
and this will be down to parental/carer choice.  However, once the catchment 
changes come into effect, the Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
Access and Inclusion Service Panel will place new pupils into specialist 
provision according to the newly defined catchment boundaries. 
 

14.4 It is recommended therefore, that Members give approval to officers to 
commence the consultation processes necessary, in accordance with the 
Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018), to 
achieve the proposal outlined in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
Other Information: 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee: 
Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
Andrea Richards, Service Director for 21st Century Schools and Transformation 
Lisa Howell, 21st Century Schools Business and School Organisation Manager  

Tudalen 31

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2018/2/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf


LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 

28TH JUNE 2023 
 
 
 

Item:  21ST  CENTURY SCHOOLS PROGRAMME – PROPOSALS TO DEVELOP 
A NEW SPECIAL SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 
 
 

Background Papers 
Appendix A – Draft Consultation Document 

 
 
 
Officer to contact(s): 
Andrea Richards, Service Director for 21st Century Schools and Transformation 
Lisa Howell, 21st Century Schools Business and School Organisation Manager 

Tudalen 32



Appendix A 

21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION DOCUMENT  
  
CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO OPEN A NEW 
3 TO 19 SPECIAL SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON TAF  
  
  
The Consultation Document and Appendices are also available on the ‘Get Involved’ 
page on the Council website.  
 
Mae’r ddogfen yma ar gael yn y Gymraeg / This document is available in Welsh. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 33



 
Table of Contents 

 

 
Page 

 
Introduction  
 

 

Who will we consult with? 2 
What will the consultation process entail? 3 
What do you have to consider? 3 
How do you make your views known? 4 
The views of children and young people 5 
Community, Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 5 
 
Section One – Background to the Proposal 
 

 

Where are we now… 6 
What is the basis for the proposal? 13 
What alternative options have been considered? 14 
Benefits and disadvantages; risks and mitigation factors 16 
Where we’d like to be… 18 
The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 20 
Admission arrangements 21 
 
Section Two – The Likely Impact of the Proposal 
 

 

The educational case for the proposal 22 
What is the likely impact on pupils? 25 
What is the likely impact on staff? 26 
Financial implications of the proposal 26 
Home to school transport information 26 
Land and buildings information 27 
 
Consultation Response Form  
 

28 

Appendix A Community Impact Assessment 
Appendix B Equality Impact Assessment 
Appendix C Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 34



 
Introduction 
 
 
The Council wishes to seek the views of stakeholders on the proposal to open a new 
English medium 3 to 19 special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) for 180 pupils, 
however this will be subject to undertaking further feasibility and progressing with the 
detailed design of the new school. The new special school will provide education for 
pupils with a range of additional learning needs (ALN) including autistic spectrum 
disorders, severe learning difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, 
social, emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.  
 
It is proposed that the new school will be built in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy, 
and it will open no later than the 2026 academic year. The new school is in addition 
to the four special schools already open in RCT.  
 
It is also proposed to introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across 
RCT, these are: 

• Park Lane Special School 
• Ysgol Hen Felin 
• Ysgol Ty Coch. 

The proposal is made in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 
(011/2018). Section 2.1 of the School Organisation Code 2018 refers to elements of 
school organisation that require the publication of proposals, including: 
 

• The opening of a maintained school (including special school).  
 
Who will we consult with? 
 
We are seeking the views of the following stakeholders: 
 

• The governing bodies of: 
o Park Lane Special School 
o Ysgol Hen Felin  
o Ysgol Ty Coch, including Buarth y Capel. 

 

• Parents/carers, prospective parents/carers (where possible), and staff 
members of: 
o Park Lane Special School  
o Ysgol Hen Felin  
o Ysgol Ty Coch, including Buarth y Capel. 

 

• Pupils of: 
o Park Lane Special School  
o Ysgol Hen Felin 
o Ysgol Ty Coch, including Buarth y Capel. 

 
• Neighbouring local authorities 
• The Church in Wales and Roman Catholic Diocesan authorities 
• Welsh Ministers 

Tudalen 35



• Members of the Senedd for the Rhondda, Cynon and Taf constituencies and 
regional Members of the Senedd for the area 

• Members of Parliament for the Rhondda, Cynon, and Taf constituencies 
• Estyn 
• Teaching and staff trade unions 
• Central South Consortium Joint Education Service  
• Police and Crime Commissioner for the area  
• Childcare providers 
• Mudiad Meithrin 
• Menter Iaith 
• Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
• Children and Young People’s Partnership 
• Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board 
• Welsh Language Commissioner. 

 
 
What will the consultation process entail? 
 
The consultation will start on 3rd July 2023 and will be completed at 17:00 on 14th 
September 2023. Feedback from the consultation will be collated and summarised, 
and a Consultation Report presented to the Council’s Cabinet during October 2023. 
This Consultation Report will be available for all persons to view on the Council’s 
website and copies can be obtained on request from the address detailed on page 
4. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet will consider the Consultation Report and decide, based on 
the feedback, whether to proceed with the proposal, amend the proposal or not 
proceed with the proposal. If the Council’s Cabinet decides not to proceed, that will 
be the end of the proposal.  
 
If the Council’s Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, a Statutory Notice will 
be published providing a 28 day notice period for objections. The School Standards 
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2018 requires that anyone wishing to make objections 
to a school organisation proposal can do so. To be considered as statutory 
objections, objections must be made in writing or by email, and sent to the Council 
within 28 days of the date on which the Statutory Notice was published.  
 
The Council’s Cabinet will consider the outcome of the Statutory Notice at the next 
available Cabinet meeting and determine the proposal.  
 
If there are objections, the Council’s Director of Education and Inclusion Services will 
publish an Objection Report providing a summary of the objections and the response 
to them within seven days of the day of the determination of the proposal. This 
Objection Report will also be available for all persons to view on the Council’s 
website and copies can be obtained on request from the address detailed on page 
4. 
 
If the Council’s Cabinet approve the proposal, it will be implemented in accordance 
with the date stated in the Statutory Notice or any subsequently modified date.  
 

Tudalen 36



What do you have to consider? 
 
The remainder of this Consultation Document sets out the rationale for the proposal. 
We would like you to consider the information and to hear your views as to whether 
you support the proposal.  
 
How do you make your views known? 
 
Face to face meetings will be arranged with the staff, school councils and governing 
bodies as follows: 
 

 
School(s) Affected 

 
Group 

 
Time/Date 

 
Venue 

 
 
1. Park Lane Special School 
2 .Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch, including    

Buarth y Capel 

Governing Bodies and Staff of: 
1. Park Lane Special School 
2. Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch, including  

Buarth y Capel 

 
1. 20th July 2023 at 15:30  
2. 19th July 2023 at 15:30 
3. 17th July 2023 at 15:30 

 
 

 
1.Park Lane Special School 
2. Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch  

 

 
1. Park Lane Special School 
2. Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch, including 

Buarth y Capel 

School Councils of: 
1. Park Lane Special School 
2. Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch, including 

Buarth y Capel 

 
1. 18th July 2023 at 10:00 
2. 19th July 2023 at 10:00 
3. 17th Ysgol Ty Coch at 

13:30 
 

 

 
1. Park Lane Special School 
2. Ysgol Hen Felin  
3. Ysgol Ty Coch  

 

 
A drop in session will also be arranged so that members of the public can discuss 
the proposal with Officers from the Council’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion 
Services and provide any feedback at the session. This will be held on Tuesday 22nd 
August 2023 between 15:00 to 18:30 at the Council Chamber, The Pavilions, 
Clydach Vale, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX. 
    
A Consultation Response Form is attached on page 30. The Consultation Response 
Form will also be available in the meetings detailed above and on the Council’s 
website on the ‘Get Involved’ page. 
 
The Consultation Response Form enables consultees to indicate if they wish to be 
notified of the publication of the Consultation Report, once presented to the Council’s 
Cabinet.  
 
Consultees are also welcomed to put their views, comments, and any questions in 
writing to: 
 

Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools 
Ty Trevithick 
Abercynon    
CF45 4UQ       

OR schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk 

 
All correspondence should be received no later than 17:00 on 14th September 
2023. 

Tudalen 37

mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk


 
Please note that responses to the consultation will not be counted as objections to 
the proposal unless expressly requested. Objections can only be forwarded following 
the publication of the Statutory Notice. 

The views of children and young people 
 
The Council has acknowledged that the voice of children and young people is about 
involving them as active participants in the development, delivery, management, and 
improvement of their educational experience.  
 
Children and young people have a right to express their views in all matters affecting 
them and for their views to be heard and considered in accordance with their age 
and maturity. As such, the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools Team will ensure that suitable arrangements are made to 
involve children and young people as active participants throughout this consultation 
process, and if a decision is made to progress the proposal, throughout the 
implementation process.  
 
The Council will consult with the children and young people who attend: 
 

• Park Lane Special School 
• Ysgol Hen Felin 
• Ysgol Ty Coch, including Buarth y Capel. 

 
This will be done by producing a children and young people’s version of the 
Consultation Document and Consultation Response Form. As detailed on page 4, 
the Council will hold a meeting with the School Councils of: 
 

• Park Lane Special School  
• Ysgol Hen Felin 
• Ysgol Ty Coch, including Buarth y Capel. 

 
To discuss the proposal and guide the School Council through the children and 
young people’s version of the Consultation Response Form. These consultation 
sessions will have the support of school-based specialist staff to support pupils and 
assist with the engagement process. Feedback from this meeting will be collated and 
summarised, and a Consultation Report will be presented to the Council’s Cabinet 
for consideration once the consultation period has ended.  
 
 
Community, Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessments 
 
As set out in the School Organisation Code 2018, it is a requirement to publish 
Community, Equality and Welsh Language Impact Assessments. These have been 
produced and are appendices to this Consultation Document and are also available 
on the Council’s website: 

• Appendix A – Community Impact Assessment 
• Appendix B – Equality Impact Assessment 
• Appendix C – Welsh Language Impact Assessment. 

Tudalen 38



 
Section One – Background to the Proposal 
 
 

Where we are now… 
 
Considerable changes have been made in Wales in relation to the statutory provision 
required to meet the needs of pupils with additional learning needs (ALN). The 
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 (ALNET Act 
2018) requires Councils to keep under review the arrangements for supporting pupils 
with ALN within their area and consider whether they are sufficient. The ALNET Act 
2018 is supported by the statutory Additional Learning Needs Code 2021. 
 
For pupils with significant needs who experience difficulties in coping with 
mainstream education, specialist provisions are required. The Council has a range 
of specialist provisions which include: 

• Forty-five Learning Support Classes 
• Two Pupil Referral Units 
• Four Special Schools (three for pupils aged 3 to 19 and one for pupils aged 

11 to 19). 

Placement into these specialist provisions is agreed by the Council’s Directorate of 
Education and Inclusion Services Access and Inclusion Service Panels. 
 
There are currently 670 pupils (Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC), 2023) 
accessing four special schools across RCT with a range of needs, these are: 
 

• Maesgwyn Special School, Cwmdare, Aberdare  
• Park Lane Special School, Trecynon, Aberdare 
• Ysgol Hen Felin, Ystrad, Tonypandy  
• Ysgol Ty Coch, Tonteg, Pontypridd 

o Buarth y Capel, Ynysybwl, Pontypridd (satellite site of Ysgol Ty Coch).  
 
To note, despite data and information from Maesgwyn Special School being included 
within this document for consistency, given the age range of the pupils at the school 
and the education provided which differs from the other special schools, Maesgwyn 
is not considered to be affected by these proposals. 
 
RCT has an excellent range of special schools. However, it has become increasingly 
apparent that the special schools currently available are disproportionate to the 
demand for them. In view of this, a data analysis exercise has been undertaken. This 
Consultation Document provides an overview of each special school site, including 
property condition information and suitability ratings along with a range of data, 
including the: 
 

• Total number of pupils who accessed their education in all special schools 
between the academic years 2013 and 2023 

Tudalen 39

http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16496


• Total number pupils who accessed their education in all special schools 
between the academic years 2017 and 2023 separated by each special 
school 

• National curriculum year of pupils who accessed their education in all special 
schools during the academic year 2023. 

 
The capacity of each special school is not included. Measuring the Capacity of 
Schools in Wales (021/2011) outlines the capacity assessment method for 
calculating school capacities. This capacity assessment method applies to all 
English, Welsh, dual language or voluntary aided mainstream primary and 
secondary schools in Wales, it does not apply to nursery and special schools, or 
Pupil Referral Units. Pupils are placed in special schools by the Council’s Directorate 
of Education and Inclusion Services Access and Inclusion Service Panels based on 
an assessment of their need; as such, special schools can never be classed as ‘at 
capacity’. 
 
Likewise, pupil projections have not been included. It should be noted that it is difficult 
to project demand for special schools, as projections are dependent on several 
factors and historical trends and birth rates are not dependable factors. Variations in 
the range of needs of pupils can develop and alter over time and special schools 
have seen a significant growth in the complexity of the ALN of pupils.  
 
 
Special Schools Across RCT 
 
Maesgwyn Special School 
 
Maesgwyn Special School is in the Cwmdare area of Aberdare. It is a special school 
for pupils aged 11 to 19 with a range of ALN including severe learning difficulties, 
social, emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and autistic spectrum disorders.  
 
Pupils are taught through a bespoke curriculum with a balance between academic, 
life and vocational skills options that enable pupils to mature into adult life.  
 
Maesgwyn Special School is graded as a B for condition and a B for suitability and 
it has a backlog maintenance figure of £11,850. The school building consists of a 
CLASP type construction main block.  
 
Over the last five years, approximately £944,000 has been invested into Maesgwyn 
Special School. Recent works to the site include extensive remodelling of the 
external area providing a new Multi-Use Games Area, the addition of a skill centre 
for teaching construction skills, an allotment for horticulture and an animal care 
centre. Future works to the site include the addition of a three-classroom extension 
by the academic year 2024.  
 
As previously reported, this special school is not considered to be affected by this 
proposal. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 40



Park Lane Special School 
  
Park Lane Special School is in the Trecynon area of Aberdare. It is a special school 
for pupils aged 3 to 19 with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum disorders, 
severe learning difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, social, 
emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.  
 
Pupils are taught a wide and varied curriculum, enabling them to experience a range 
of skills, the emphasis being on life and vocational skills. Pupils are regularly taken 
into the community where they apply the skills, they learn to real life situations. Pupils 
gain accreditation and qualifications from their vocational studies.  
 
Park Lane Special School is graded as a C for condition and a B for suitability and it 
has a backlog maintenance figure of £238,800. The school building consists of a 
CLASP type construction main block together with a small extension that was added 
in 2011 to provide additional space for post 16 pupils. The site is very constrained 
with access and onsite parking limited.  
 
Over the last five years, approximately £495,000 has been invested into Park Lane 
Special School. Future works to the site include the addition of a two-classroom 
mobile accommodation by the academic year 2023. Once completed there are 
limited options to further expand the existing site. 
 
 
Ysgol Hen Felin 
 
Ysgol Hen Felin is in the Ystrad area of Rhondda. It is a special school for pupils 
aged 3 to 19 with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum disorders, severe 
learning difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, social, emotional, and 
behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment. 
 
Pupils are taught a wide and varied curriculum, enabling them to experience a range 
of skills, the emphasis being on life and vocational skills. Pupils are regularly taken 
into the community where they apply the skills, they learn to real life situations. Pupils 
gain accreditation and qualifications from their vocational studies.  
 
There are also several pupils who attend Ysgol Hen Felin who should attend Buarth 
y Capel, however, the travelling distance and established relationships with staff at 
Ysgol Hen Felin discourages pupils from attending Buarth y Capel. 
 
Ysgol Hen Felin is graded as a B for condition and an A for suitability and it has a 
backlog maintenance figure of £58,000. It is a single storey building situated in a 
residential area in the same grounds as a leisure centre. The school has an all-
weather playing surface within a large sensory garden, kitchen, coffee shop, sensory 
facilities and hydrotherapy pool.  
 
Over the last five years, approximately £495,000 has been invested into Ysgol Hen 
Felin. Works to the site include significant investment in the external play areas and 
several adaptations to allow more generic teaching spaces to be created, that 
unfortunately has been to the detriment of specialist teaching and learning areas. 
There are no further options or alternatives to expand the existing site. 

Tudalen 41



 
Ysgol Ty Coch 
 
Ysgol Ty Coch is in the Tonteg area of Pontypridd. It is a special school for pupils 
aged 3 to 19 with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum disorders, severe 
learning difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, social, emotional, and 
behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.  
 
Pupils are taught a wide and varied curriculum, enabling them to experience a range 
of skills, with an emphasis placed on developing life and vocational skills. Pupils are 
regularly taken into the community where they apply the skills, they learn to real life 
situations. Pupils gain accreditation and qualifications from their vocational studies.  

 
Ysgol Ty Coch is graded as an A for condition and a B for suitability and it has a 
backlog maintenance figure of £227,661. The original site, which is a brick built, 
single storey building is situated in a residential area. The facilities available to pupils 
include a fully functioning kitchen, hairdressing salon, workshop, horticulture training, 
café, and car washing.  
 
Over the last five years, approximately £946,000 has been invested into Ysgol Ty 
Coch. Works to the site include the addition of a classroom extension which has 
increased the size of the school but reduced the amount of outside play area. The 
site is very constrained with access and onsite parking limited, as such there are no 
further options or alternatives to expand the existing site. 
 
 
Buarth y Capel 
 
Buarth y Capel is a satellite site of Ysgol Ty Coch and is in the Ynysybwl area of 
Pontypridd, approximately seven miles from Ysgol Ty Coch. It was established in 
September 2014 to meet the needs of pupils aged 14 to 19 with a diagnosis of 
severe/profound autistic spectrum disorders who had previously met generic special 
school criteria and who require specialist and bespoke provision.  
 
Pupils are taught a wide and varied curriculum, devised from the 14 to 19 Learning 
Pathways, enabling them to experience a range of skills. The emphasis of these 
skills includes life and vocational skills. Pupils gain accreditation and qualifications 
from their vocational studies.  
 
Buarth y Capel is graded as a B for condition and a B for suitability and it has a 
backlog maintenance figure of £214,570. The site is a single-story building, set in 
grounds.  
 
Over the last five years, approximately £335,000 has been invested into Buarth y 
Capel. Works to the site include a complete refurbishment to suit the needs of older 
pupils with autistic spectrum disorders, which include specialist therapy areas. 
Further options or alternatives to expand the existing site, may be proposed 
separately at a later date in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 
(011/2018). 
 
 

Tudalen 42



Post 16 Specialist Provision 

In addition to the four special schools across RCT, the Council also works in 
partnership with Coleg y Cymoedd to provide specialist provisions for post 16 pupils. 
This specialist post 16 provision frees up much needed space across the four special 
schools whilst also providing pupils with the opportunity to gain experience of college 
life and to transition into this setting at post 16. 
 
The Council, in partnership with Coleg y Cymoedd, currently provide three separate 
specialist provisions for post 16 pupils, one for pupils at Maesgwyn Special School 
at Coleg y Cymoedd’s Aberdare campus, one for pupils at Ysgol Hen Felin at Coleg 
y Cymoedd’s Llwynypia campus, and one for pupils from Ysgol Ty Coch at Coleg Y 
Cymoedd’s Nant Garw campus. 
 
Further options to expand the partnership with Coleg y Cymoedd may be proposed 
separately in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018). 
 
 
Out of County Specialist Provision  
 
In addition to the four special schools across RCT and the Council’s partnership with 
Coleg y Cymoedd to provide specialist provisions for post 16 pupils, a number of 
pupils attend out of county specialist provision. This is due to the lack of highly 
specialist provision available across RCT. The table that follows outlines the total 
number and cost of pupils who accessed their education in out of county specialist 
provision between the academic years 2020 and 2022. 
 

Total Number and Cost of Pupils who Accessed their Education in Out of 
County Specialist Provision Between the Academic Years 2020 and 2022 

Academic Year Total Cost 
2020 93 £2,323,397 
2021 97 £2,490,591 
2022 85 £2,209,137 

 
 
Data Analysis  
 
The following data analysis is based on data derived from the PLASC unless 
otherwise stated. It is intended to outline the children and young people with ALN in 
RCT. 
 
The table that follows outlines the total number of pupils who accessed their 
education in all special schools between the academic years 2013 and 2023. 

 
 
 

Total Number of Pupils who Accessed their Education in all Special Schools 
Between the Academic Years 2013 and 2023 

 Academic Year (PLASC) 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Total 480 483 488 531 539 543 562 577 576 620 670 

Tudalen 43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The graph above outlines the same trend. 
 

• The data and graph demonstrate an increase in the number of pupils who 
accessed their education in all special schools between the academic years 
2013 and 2023.  
 

• The total number of pupils who accessed their education in all special 
schools between the academic years 2013 and 2023 has increased by 
39.5%. This is an increase of 190 pupils from 480 pupils to 670 pupils.  

 
The table that follows outlines the total number pupils who accessed their education 
in all special schools between the academic years 2017 and 2023 separated by each 
special school.  
 
Total Number of Pupils who Accessed their Education in all Special Schools 

Between the Academic Years 2017 and 2023 Separated by Each Special School 
 

Academic 
Year 

Special School (PLASC 2023) 
Maesgwyn 

Special 
School 

Park Lane 
Special 
School 

Ysgol 
Hen Felin 

Ysgol Ty 
Coch 

Buarth y 
Capel 

Total 

2017 132 101 169 126 11 539 
2018 130 93 178 134 8 543 
2019 127 97 179 153 6 562 
2020 130 88 186 159 14 577 
2021 119 93 184 171 9 576 
2022 125 109 194 179 13 620 
2023 126 123 211 197 13 670 
 

The data above indicated that: 

• Pupil numbers at Maesgwyn Special School have remained consistent 
between the academic years 2017 and 2023 
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Total Number of Pupils who Access their 
Education in all Special Schools Between 

2013 and 2023

Tudalen 44



• Since the academic year 2020, pupil number at Park Lane have 
increased by 39.7%. This is an increase of 35 pupils from 88 pupils to 123 
pupils 

 
• Since the academic year 2017, pupil numbers at Ysgol Hen Felin have 

increased by 24.8%. This is an increase of 42 pupils from 169 pupils to 211 
pupils 

 
• Since the academic year 2017, pupil numbers at Ysgol Ty Coch have 

increased by 56.3%. This is an increase of 71 pupils from 126 pupils to 197 
pupils 

 
• Pupil numbers at Buarth y Capel have remained consistent between the 

academic years 2017 and 2023 
 

• The total number of pupils who accessed their education in all special 
schools between the academic years 2017 and 2023 has increased by 
24.8%. This is an increase of 131 pupils from 539 pupils to 670 pupils.  
 

Over the previous ten academic years, the total number of pupils who accessed their 
education in all special schools has increased by 39.5% and following this trend over 
the next five to ten academic years, the number of pupils who access their education 
in all special schools is expected to increase.  
 
The table that follows outlines the national curriculum year of pupils who accessed 
their education in all special schools during the academic year 2023. 
 

National Curriculum Year of Pupils who Accessed their Education in all Special 
Schools During the Academic Year 2023 

Year 
Groups 

National 
Curriculum 

Year 

Special School (PLASC 2023) Total 
Maesgwyn 

Special 
School 

Park Lane 
Special 
School 

Ysgol 
Hen 
Felin 

Ysgol 
Ty Coch 

(Including 
Buarth y 
Capel) 

Nursery - 
Year 2 

Pre-Nursery N/A 0 1 0 1 120 
Nursery N/A 7 6 7 20 

Reception N/A 9 14 13 36 
1 N/A 8 15 8 31 
2 N/A 9 11 12 32 

Years 
3 - 6 

3 N/A 14 18 13 45 154 
4 N/A 9 12 9 30 
5 N/A 5 11 25 41 
6 N/A 7 15 16 38 

Years 
7 - 9 

7 17 9 22 18 66 171 
8 14 16 13 17 60 
9 15 2 18 10 45 

Years 
10 - 11 

10 22 4 11 19 56 94 
11 12 5 10 11 38 

Years 12 8 7 8 10 33 131 

Tudalen 45



National Curriculum Year of Pupils who Accessed their Education in all Special 
Schools During the Academic Year 2023 

Year 
Groups 

National 
Curriculum 

Year 

Special School (PLASC 2023) Total 
Maesgwyn 

Special 
School 

Park Lane 
Special 
School 

Ysgol 
Hen 
Felin 

Ysgol 
Ty Coch 

(Including 
Buarth y 
Capel) 

12 - 14 13 21 4 10 14 49 
14 17 8 16 8 49 

Total 126 123 211 210 670 
 
The data indicates:  

• The national curriculum year with the highest percentage of pupils was year 
seven with 9.8% (9.8%) of pupils  

• This was closely followed by national curriculum year eight with 8.9% (60%) 
of pupils  

• The year groups with the highest percentage of pupils were years 7 to 9 with 
25.5% (171%) of pupils.  

 
It is difficult to provide a breakdown of the needs of pupils who accessed their 
education in all special schools given the complex nature of any ALN diagnosis, and 
the range of needs that the 3 to 19 schools in RCT cater for. It is proposed that the 
new school opens for pupils with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum 
disorders, severe learning difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, 
social, emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment. For 
consistency, this then provides the same provision as the other 3 to 19 special 
schools in RCT offering parity of provision across all 4 schools.  
 
 
What is the basis for the proposal? 
 
Over the last five years, the Council has invested approximately £3.28 million into all 
special schools to maximise the space available. By the academic year 2023, a two-
classroom mobile accommodation will be added to Park Lane Special School and by 
the academic year 2024, a three-classroom extension will be added to Maesgwyn 
Special School. Once completed, there will be no further options or alternatives to 
expand the existing special school sites.  
 
Over the previous ten academic years, between the academic years 2013 and 2023, 
the total number of pupils who accessed their education in all special schools has 
increased by 39.5%. Apart from the academic year 2021, the total number of pupils 
who have accessed their education in all special schools between the academic 
years 2013 and 2023 has increased year on year. Over the next five to ten academic 
years, the number of pupils who access their education in all special schools is 
expected to increase. However, it should be noted that it is difficult to project demand 
for special schools, as projections are dependent on several factors and historical 
trends and birth rates are not dependable factors. Variations in the range of needs 
of the pupils can develop and alter over time and special schools have seen a 
significant growth in the complexity of the ALN of pupils.  

Tudalen 46



 
Options and alternatives to expand the existing special school sites have been 
exhausted and the only feasible alternative is to build a new English medium 3 to 19 
special school in RCT on a new site, significantly growing the special school 
provision within RCT and increasing the number of special schools from four to five. 
Creating a highly specialist 21st century special school environment will enable the 
Council to meet the needs of pupils requiring access to highly specialist therapeutic 
facilities, equipment and resources required to meet all ALN, including complex 
medical and health needs.  
 
Pupils are placed in special schools by the Council’s Directorate of Education and 
Inclusion Services Access and Inclusion Service Panels based on an assessment of 
their need; as such, special schools can never be classed as ‘at capacity’. When 
analysing each special school, the highest percentage of pupils reside in the area 
that special school is located in. However, to better manage the allocation of special 
school places across RCT, it is proposed to introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 
special schools across RCT. 
 
Given the considerable changes in Wales in relation to the statutory provision 
required to meet the needs of pupils with ALN with the implementation of the ALNET 
Act 2018, building a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, and creating further capacity 
in our current provision, will ensure that the Council can continue to meet its statutory 
obligations.  

The Council believes that the proposal represents the best opportunity to safeguard 
and sustain educational standards for the future and provides a platform for further 
improvement through significant investment in permanent and fit for purpose 
facilities.  
 
 
What alternative options have been considered? 
 
Options and alternatives to expand the existing special school sites have been 
exhausted and the only feasible alternative is to build a new 3 to 19 special school 
in RCT on a new site.  
 
It is proposed that the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT be built on the soon to be 
vacated Council Headquarters in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy. This site is 
proposed as the preferred location following an appraisal of other sites. Each site 
was appraised on its ability to meet the following criteria:  

• Ownership 
• Have an adequate site area  
• Have satisfactory access which is capable of being improved 
• Is free from any visual incumbents 
• Is a viable development opportunity subject to a detailed feasibility study. 

On applying the appraisal criteria to the identified sites, and following several site 
visits undertaken by Officers from the Council’s Directorate of Corporate Estates and 
the Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services, all the other sites were 

Tudalen 47



discounted with the Council Headquarters in Clydach Vale, Tonypandy, being 
identified as the preferred location for the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT. 
 
Further feasibility focussed on the preferred site resulted in it being identified as the 
chosen location for the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT and the site to be taken 
forward to consultation. 
 
In accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018, alternative options were 
also identified and consciously considered. Some of the benefits and disadvantages 
of each of the discounted options are listed in the table that follows: 
 

 
Option   

 
Benefit 

 
Disadvantages 
 

Retain the status quo • No capital investment 
required by the Council 

• Council cannot meet its 
statutory obligations in 
relation to the statutory 
provision required to meet the 
needs of pupils with ALN with 
the implementation of the 
ALNET Act 2018 

• Children and young people 
with ALN will not have their 
needs met 

• Increased pressure on 
parents/carers 

• Increase ALN educational 
tribunals  

• Increase in cost of placing 
pupils in specialist provisions 
out of county  

Expansion of existing 
special schools  

• Less capital investment 
required by the Council 

• Council cannot meet its 
statutory obligations in 
relation to the statutory 
provision required to meet the 
needs of pupils with ALN with 
the implementation of the 
ALNET Act 2018 

• Children and young people 
with ALN will not have their 
needs met  

• Increased pressure on 
parents/carers 

• Increase ALN educational 
tribunals 

• Increase in cost of placing 
pupils in specialist provisions 
out of county  

• Options and alternatives to 
expand the existing special 

Tudalen 48



 
Option   

 
Benefit 

 
Disadvantages 
 

school sites have been 
exhausted  

Expansion of Post 16 
Provision to alleviate 
pressures on existing 
specials schools  

• More Post 16 pupils with 
ALN will have their 
needs met  

• Frees up much needed 
space across the four 
special schools  

• Provides pupils with the 
opportunity to gain 
experience of college 
life 

• May not be opportunities to 
expand Post 16 Provision 

Out of county 
specialist provision 

• Some children and 
young people with ALN 
will have their needs 
met 

• Increase in cost of placing 
pupils in specialist provisions 
out of county 

• Does not provide a long term 
solution 

 
 
 
Benefits and Disadvantages, Risks and Mitigation Factors 
 
The benefits and disadvantages of the proposal are highlighted below, as is 
information as to how any identified risks can be managed by the Council. 
 

 
Benefits  
 
A new 3 to 19 special school in RCT could deliver a significant improvement in the quality 
of the educational provision, having a significant positive impact upon the educational 
performance of the pupils and staff morale. 
The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT will be designed to be energy efficient and will include 
renewable energy systems including photovoltaic panels and rainwater harvesting. The new 
3 to 19 special school in RCT will be built to achieve net Zero Carbon in operation, be built 
to BREEAM Excellent standards, contributing to both the Council’s commitment to becoming 
a ‘carbon free Council by 2050’ and the Welsh Government’s Climate Change Strategy.  
The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance with current 
requirements of planning and building control legislation and will be fully accessible and 
compliant with the Equality Act 2010.  
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated 
area will be designed within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after the school day. 
The external areas will allow staff, pupils, and the community to experience a greater 
breadth of teaching and learning experiences.  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 49



 
 
Disadvantages  
 
The capital cost of the new school will be significant. The Council and the Welsh Government 
via the Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme will fund this with a more favorable 
intervention rate afforded to special schools at 75.0%. 
The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT could cause some anxiety for some pupils, staff and 
parents/carers.  
 
Risks 

 
Likelihood 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigating Action(s) 
 

Approval – 
Parents/carers 
choose not to 
send their 
children to the 
new 3 to 19 
special school in 
RCT 
 

Low Low • The Councils 
Directorate of 
Education and 
Inclusion Services 21st 
Century Schools Team 
will ensure that 
suitable arrangements 
are made to involve 
parents/carers and 
children and young 
people as active 
participants throughout 
this consultation 
process, and if a 
decision is made to 
progress the proposal, 
throughout the 
implementation 
process 

Proposal to 
introduce 
catchment areas 
for all 3 to 19 
special schools 
across RCT – 
Parents/carers 
choose not to 
send their 
children to their 
catchment 3 to 19 
special school in 
RCT.  

Low Medium • See above 

Home to School 
Transport – 
Increased home 
to school 
transport costs 

Medium Low  • Any revenue 
implications resulting 
as a consequence of 
the new 3 to 19 special 
school, including the 
schools’ delegated 
budget and any 
potential increases in 

Tudalen 50



home to school 
transport costs will be 
identified as the 
proposal is develops 

Staff – Cannot 
appoint staff to 
the new 3 to 19 
special school in 
RCT  

Low High  • The needs of all special 
schools will be 
prioritised. The Council 
is committed to 
retaining staff and will, 
as has been the case 
with the delivery of 
other 21st century 
schools previously 
throughout RCT, work 
with staff and Trade 
Unions to ensure the 
change process is dealt 
with sympathetically 
and supportively and 
that there will be 
opportunities to engage 
with staff as the 
proposal progresses  

 
 
Where we’d like to be… 
 
It is proposed to open a new English medium, 3 to 19 special school in RCT for 180 
pupils, however this will be subject to undertaking further feasibility and progressing 
with the detailed design of the new school. The new school will provide education for 
pupils with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum disorders, severe learning 
difficulties, profound and multiple learning difficulties, social, emotional, and 
behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.   
 
It is proposed that the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT will be built in the Clydach 
Vale area of Tonypandy, and it will open no later than the 2026 academic year. The 
new school is in addition to the four special schools across RCT.  
 
The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance with current 
requirements of planning and building control legislation and will be fully accessible 
and compliant with the Equality Act 2010.  

Accommodation will consist of: 

• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils, a hall/dining area, and 
specialist teaching and learning areas to cater for the needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus other therapy, sensory and stimulating specialist 
equipment. 

• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be allowed to safely 
use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum activities. 

Tudalen 51



• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, and on-site 
staff parking. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Example of a typical multi-purpose learning resource area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Example of external play area. 
 

Tudalen 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Example of outdoor learning area. 
 
The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 
 
All Local Authorities in Wales must produce a WESP. The WESP is a long-term 
language planning tool which sets the direction for the strategic planning, delivery 
and growth in Welsh medium and Welsh language education. Through the WESP, 
and effective strategic planning and investment, the Council aims to contribute 
significantly to achieving the vision of one million people in Wales being Welsh 
speakers by 2050 as set out in Cymraeg 2050. The Council’s current WESP can be 
viewed and downloaded from the Council website via: 
 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022 – 2032 | Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council (rctcbc.gov.uk) 
 
There are seven outcomes within the Council’s WESP, two of which are: 
 

• More opportunities for pupils to use Welsh in different contexts in school 
• An increase in the provision of Welsh medium education for pupils with ALN 

in accordance with the duties imposed by the ALNET Act 2018. 
 
Although the new school will be English medium, Welsh is taught as part of the 
curriculum and all pupils will benefit from having the opportunity to be taught in brand 
new facilities fit for the 21st century.  

The aim is to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the Welsh language 
through purposeful planning to promote the informal use of the Welsh language 
amongst pupils inside and outside schools. Facilitating the use of the Welsh 
language across the curriculum and in wider contexts in schools, to ensure a 
continuum of linguistic progression to support pupils in the transition between year 
groups, offers all pupils the opportunity to become fully bilingual and aligns with the 
Curriculum for Wales 2022. The new school will be encouraged and supported to do 
this through the achievement of the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Welsh Language Charter, a 
framework to promote and increase the use of Welsh. 
 

Tudalen 53

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/SchoolAdmissions/WelshMediumEducation/WelshinEducationStrategicPlanWESP2022%E2%80%932032.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/SchoolAdmissions/WelshMediumEducation/WelshinEducationStrategicPlanWESP2022%E2%80%932032.aspx


In addition, the new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community 
school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that the local community will be 
allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. Use of the 
facilities could include opportunities for third parties to offer Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults. An example of this can be seen in Tonyrefail Community School, 
where Welsh medium learning classes for adults are held in the community facilities. 
This could contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a 
million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP.  
 
 
Admission Arrangements 
 
Pupils are placed in special schools by the Council’s Directorate of Education and 
Inclusion Services Access and Inclusion Service Panels based on an assessment of 
their need; as such, special schools can never be classed as ‘at capacity’, and there 
is no published admission number. When analysing each special school, the highest 
percentage of pupils reside in the area that the special school is located in. However, 
to better manage the allocation of special school places across RCT, it is proposed 
to introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT. 
 
The proposed catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT are based 
on existing secondary school catchment areas (with a few exceptions). As previously 
reported, this special school is not considered to be affected by this proposal. 
 
As well as the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, the proposed new catchments will 
cover Park Lane Special School, Ysgol Hen Felin and Ysgol Ty Coch. These are 
proposed as: 

 
• New 3 to 19 Special School in RCT – Combining the catchment areas of 

Porth Community School, Tonyrefail Community, Ysgol Nant Gwyn (minus 
Pontrhondda Primary) and Coedylan Primary School and Trehopcyn 
Primary School 
 

• Park Lane Special School – Combining the catchment areas of Aberdare 
Community School and Mountain Ash Comprehensive School 

 
• Ysgol Hen Felin – Combining the catchment areas of Ferndale Community 

School, Treorchy Comprehensive, Pontrhondda Primary 
 

• Ysgol Ty Coch – Combining the catchment areas of Bryncelynnog 
Comprehensive, Hawthorn High, Pontypridd High (minus Coedylan Primary 
School and Trehopcyn Primary school) and Y Pant Comprehensive.  

 

The table that follows outlines maps identifying the proposed 3 to 19 special school 
catchment areas. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 54



Maps Identifying the Proposed 3 to 19 Special School Catchment Areas 
 

New 3 to 19 Special School. 
 

Park Lane Special School. 

Tudalen 55



 

Ysgol Hen Felin. 
 

Ysgol Ty Coch. 
 
On opening, pupils already attending other 3 to 19 special schools that will then 
reside within the catchment area of the new special school, will be given the option 
to relocate to the new school. To note this will not be mandatory and this will be down 
to parental/carer choice.  However, once the catchment changes come into effect, 
the Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services Access and Inclusion Service 
Panel will place new pupils into specialist provision according to the newly defined 
catchment boundaries. 
 
 

Tudalen 56



 
Section Two – The Likely Impact of the Proposal 
 
 

The educational case for the proposal 

The proposal forms a part of the Council’s wider Sustainable Communities for 
Learning Programme and contributes to the delivery of sustainable schools fit for the 
21st century and supports the better strategic management of the Council’s education 
estate. 
 
In addition to this, school organisational proposals should highlight the educational 
benefits that any change will offer, particularly in relation to overall improvements in 
standards, but also in terms of the social and emotional development of children and 
young people, which would usually impact beneficially on their overall achievement 
and outcomes. 
 
 
Park Lane Special School  
 
Parklane Special School’s most recent Estyn Inspection was in March 2017. The 
table that follows summaries the outcomes of this inspection.  
 

Estyn Inspection Outcomes: Park Lane Special School 
Inspection Area Judgment 
Date of Inspection March 2017 
The School’s Current Performance Good 
The School’s Prospects for Improvement Adequate 
Key Question 1: How Good are Outcomes Good 
Key Question 2: How Good is Provision Good 
Key Question 3: How Good are Leadership and Management Good 

 
Estyn set out several recommendations to implement to make improvements to the 
quality of the education provision on offer. The points that follow summarise the 
recommendations made by Estyn.  

1. Recommendation One – Increase the opportunities for pupils who are more 
able to access accredited courses that provide them with suitable challenge.  

2. Recommendation Two – Implement effective procedures for moderating 
pupils’ work.  

3. Recommendation Three – Address the safety issue related to traffic 
management noted during the inspection.  

4. Recommendation Four – Strengthen self-evaluation to ensure that it 
effectively identifies all areas for improvement.  

5. Recommendation Five – Engage all staff in evaluating the work of the 
school and planning the improvements needed. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 57



Ysgol Hen Felin 
 
Ysgol Hen Felin’s most recent Estyn Inspection was in January 2015. The table that 
follows summaries the outcomes of this inspection.  
 

Estyn Inspection Outcomes: Ysgol Hen Felin 
Inspection Area Judgment 
Date of Inspection  January 2015 
The School’s Current Performance Good 
The School’s Prospects for Improvement  Good 
Key Question 1: How Good are Outcomes Good 
Key Question 2: How Good is Provision  Good 
Key Question 3: How Good are Leadership and Management Good 
 
Estyn set out several recommendations to implement to make improvements to the 
quality of the education provision on offer. The points that follow summarise the 
recommendations made by Estyn.  

1. Recommendation One – Address fully the safeguarding concerns identified 
by the inspection team. 

2. Recommendation Two – Improve the use of data to analyse and compare 
the performance of all groups of pupils, track progress and inform planning. 

3. Recommendation Three –  Make sure that the school’s self-evaluation is 
more evaluative and clearly identifies the school’s strengths and 
weaknesses. 

4. Recommendation Four – Improve the school’s policies and plans by 
making them more robust, in line with current government guidelines and 
linked effectively together.  

 
 
Ysgol Ty Coch 
 
Ysgol Ty Coch’s most recent Estyn Inspection was in March 2017. The table that 
follows summaries the outcomes of this inspection.  
 
Estyn Inspection Outcomes: Ysgol Ty Coch 
Inspection Area Judgment 
Date of Inspection  June 2017 
The School’s Current Performance Excellent  
The School’s Prospects for Improvement  Excellent  
Key Question 1: How Good are Outcomes Excellent  
Key Question 2: How Good is Provision  Excellent  
Key Question 3: How Good are Leadership and Management Excellent  
 
Estyn set out several recommendations to implement to make improvements to the 
quality of the education provision on offer. The points that follow summarise the 
recommendations made by Estyn.  

1. Recommendation One – Improve the provision for developing pupils’ 
Welsh language development.  

Tudalen 58



2. Recommendation Two – Ensure that teachers provide specific feedback to 
pupils to help them improve their work. 

3. Recommendation Three – Strengthen a very few areas of self-evaluation 
processes to ensure sufficient focus on the progress that pupils make. 

 

Impact on ALN Provision 
 
It is the Council’s view that a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT could have a major 
positive impact on all five Estyn inspection areas, as well as more generally in 
enhancing the quality of education and support for children with ALN, this is detailed 
as follows: 
 

1. Standards The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance 
with current requirements of planning and building control 
legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the 
Equality Act 2010. Accommodation will consist of: 
 
• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils 
• A hydro-pool and specialist teaching and learning areas 
• Specialist equipment 
• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be 

allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the 
school day 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum 
activities 

• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, 
and on-site staff parking. 
 

All of which would support the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT to  
raise standards and make progress against Estyn’s inspection 
areas.  

2. Wellbeing and 
Attitudes to 
Learning 

The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance 
with current requirements of planning and building control 
legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the 
Equality Act 2010. Accommodation will consist of: 
 
• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils 
• A hydro-pool and specialist teaching and learning areas 
• Specialist equipment 
• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be 

allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the 
school day 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum 
activities 

• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, 
and on-site staff parking. 

 

Tudalen 59



All of which would support the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT to 
raise standards and make progress against Estyn’s inspection 
areas. 

3. Teaching and 
Learning 
Experience 

A new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would ensure that staff are able 
to provide a balanced curriculum at all stages in line with the new 
Curriculum for Wales – 2022. A 21st century learning environment 
could also provide pupils with greater flexibility and therefore 
greater choice and opportunities in their learning experience. 

4. Care, Support 
and Guidance 

A new 3 to 19 special school in RCT could build upon the good 
working practices and initiatives already have in place.  
 
Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum 
activities could provide opportunities to further develop extra-
curricular activities to encourage healthy lifestyles for the school 
community.  
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that 
the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both 
during and after the school day. 

5. Leadership 
and 
Management  

A new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, would remove the burden of 
time consuming and expensive maintenance issues, which could 
allow staff to focus on delivering the best teaching and learning and 
outcomes for their pupils. 

 
 
What is the likely impact of the proposals on pupils? 
 
It is anticipated that the proposed changes will not adversely impact upon pupils as 
this is creating a new school which can only enhance the current ALN provision on 
offer. Numerous benefits can be realised – the principal change will be to create a 
new 3 to 19 special school which will be built to 21st century school standards that 
should have a significantly positive impact upon the pupils who will attend. 

The Welsh Government and the Council has adopted the United Nations Convention 
on the Rights of the Child which is expressed in seven core aims that all children and 
young people: 
 

1. Have a flying start in life 
2. Have a comprehensive range of education and learning opportunities 
3. Enjoy the best possible health and are free from abuse, victimisation, and 

exploitation 
4. Have access to play, leisure, sporting, and cultural activities 
5. Are listened to, treated with respect, and have their race and cultural identity 

recognised 
6. Have a safe home and a community which supports physical and emotional 

wellbeing 
7. Are not disadvantaged by poverty. 

 

Tudalen 60



The Council considers that the proposal benefits the children and young people who 
will attend the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT in accordance with the seven core 
aims set out above. 
 
Further information relating to the impact of the proposal on pupils, including how the 
proposal contributes to all seven goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations Act 
2015 and an assessment of the proposal on the five ways of working, can be found 
in the Equality Impact Assessment which is at Appendix B. 
 
 
What is the likely impact of the proposal on staff? 

We anticipate that the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT, and the modern 21st 
century learning environments, will have a positive impact on staff morale, well-
being, and retention. 
 
As this will be a new school provision, a temporary governing body will be established 
if a decision to proceed with the opening is agreed. The main role of this temporary 
governing body will be to establish a staffing structure for the new school, appoint its 
senior management team and make decisions about the method of recruiting other 
staff to the posts that are available in the new school.  
 
The number of staff required for the new school is likely to increase over time. The 
staffing requirements would align according to the increased school population which 
we anticipate will grow organically. Once open, the Governing Body of the new 3 to 
19 special school in RCT would be responsible for the staffing structure which would 
be determined primarily by the numbers and educational needs of the pupils at the 
school and the budget available.  
 
The Council has well established Human Resource policies and procedures that give 
reassurance to staff and employers about the management of organisational 
change. The Council is committed to working with staff and Trade Unions to ensure 
the process is dealt with sympathetically and supportively and there will be numerous 
opportunities to engage with staff as the proposal progresses. 

 
Financial implications of the proposal 
 
The estimated capital cost of this proposal is £53.3 million. The Council and the 
Welsh Government via the Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme will 
jointly fund this project, with the Welsh Government funding up to 75.0% of project 
costs, and up to 100% of costs directly associated with making the school Net Zero 
Carbon in operation. Detailed costs will be developed alongside the consultation 
process and approvals sought in line with the Council’s decision-making procedures. 
 
Any revenue implications resulting as a consequence of the new 3 to 19 special 
school, including the schools’ delegated budget and any potential increases in home 
to school transport costs will be identified as the proposal is develops. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 61



Home to School Transport Provision 
 
There is a statutory duty placed upon all local authorities in Wales to provide pupils 
with free transport to their nearest suitable school if they reside beyond safe ‘walking 
distance’ to that school. The term suitable school applies to the catchment area 
English, Welsh, dual language or voluntary aided mainstream primary school, 
secondary school or special school/class as appropriate. The law relating to safe 
‘walking distance’ is defined as two miles for pupils of compulsory school age 
receiving primary education and three miles for pupils of compulsory school age 
receiving secondary education. 
 
The Council has exercised the discretionary powers afforded to it under the 
provisions of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 to make a more generous 
provision to pupils. The relevant information in relation to the new 3 to 19 special 
school in RCT is set out below: 

• The eligibility criterion for walking distance for pupils receiving compulsory 
primary education at their nearest suitable school has been set at one and a 
half miles, instead of two miles as required by the Measure 

• Free transport to their nearest suitable school, where places are available, 
is provided to pupils who meet the one and a half mile eligibility criterion from 
nursery (the start of the school term after their third birthday), rather than 
from the start of compulsory education (the start of the school term after their 
fifth birthday) as required by the Measure 

• The eligibility criterion for walking distance for pupils receiving compulsory 
secondary education at their nearest suitable school has been set at two 
miles instead of three miles as required by the Measure 

• Free transport is provided to post 16 pupils until the end of the academic 
year in which they attain their 19th birthday who meet the two mile eligibility 
criterion.  

Further information in relation to the Council’s Home to School transport provision 
can be viewed and downloaded from the Council website via: 
 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/Schooland
CollegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx  
 
Any revenue implications resulting as a consequence of the new 3 to 19 special 
school, including the school’s delegated budget and any potential increases in home 
to school transport costs will be identified as the proposal is develops. 
 
 
 
Land and buildings information 
 
It is proposed that the new 3 to 19 special school in RCT could be built on the soon 
to be vacated Council Headquarters in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy. This 
site is proposed as the preferred location following an appraisal of other sites and is 
in the ownership of RCT Council, so no land acquisitions are required. 
 
 

Tudalen 62

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/SchoolandCollegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/SchoolandCollegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx


 

 
 
Consultation Response Form 
 
 

To comply with its legal duty under the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013, and help the Council reach a decision on the proposal, it would be helpful 
if you could answer the following questions. Please note, any personal information 
given will not be shared and will only be used to provide you with feedback, should 
you request it. Any comments that could identify you will be anonymised in the 
Consultation Report produced. Completed Consultation Report Forms should be 
returned to: 
 
Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools Team 
Ty Trevithick  
Abercynon  
CF45 4UQ 
 
or 
 
Email: schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk  
 
 
The proposal: 
 
To open a new English medium 3 to 19 special school in RCT and the introduction 
of catchment areas for the 3 to 19 special schools. 
 
      Do you agree with the proposal? Yes No Not sure 
 
Please let us know the reasons for your choice 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Do you think the proposal could impact opportunities for people to use and 
promote the Welsh Language (Positive or Negative)?  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Do you think the proposal in any way treats the Welsh Language less 
favourably than the English Language? 

Tudalen 63

mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How positive effects on the Welsh Language could be increased, or negative 
effects be decreased? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Please state any alternative views or points which you would like to be 
considered (attach additional sheets if necessary). 

 

 
Please indicate who you are (e.g., parent/carer of a pupil at named school(s), 
Governor at named school(s), etc.). 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 64



  Name (optional):  
   

 
 
 
 
 

 
Please provide contact details if you wish to be notified of the publication of 
the Consultation Report. 

 
Please forward completed questionnaires to the above address no later than 
no later than 17:00 on 14th September 2023. 
 

 
The Council is committed to keeping your personal information safe and secure and 
keeping you informed about how we use your information. To learn about how your 
privacy is protected and how and why we use your personal information to provide 
you with services, please visit our Consultation privacy notice: 
 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/Dat
aProtection/serviceprivacynotices/ChiefExecutives/ConsultationPrivacyNotice.aspx 
 
and 
 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/Dat
aProtection/DataProtection.aspx 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 65

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/DataProtection/serviceprivacynotices/ChiefExecutives/ConsultationPrivacyNotice.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/DataProtection/serviceprivacynotices/ChiefExecutives/ConsultationPrivacyNotice.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/DataProtection/DataProtection.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/DataProtectionandFreedomofInformation/DataProtection/DataProtection.aspx


Tudalen wag



21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS 
 
APPENDIX B - EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO OPEN A NEW 
3 TO 19 SPECIAL SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON 
TAF  
 

 
 
The Consultation Document and Appendices are also available on the ‘Get Involved’ 
page on the Council website. 
 
Mae’r ddogfen yma ar gael yn y Gymraeg / This document is available in Welsh. 
 
 

  

Tudalen 67



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM INCLUDING SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
(Revised March 2021) 
 
Please refer to the current Equality Impact Assessment guidance when competing this document. If you would like further guidance, 
please contact the Diversity and Inclusion Team on (01443) 444529. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment must be undertaken at the outset of any proposal to ensure robust evidence is considered in decision 
making. This documentation will support the Council in making informed, effective and fair decisions whilst ensuring compliance with 
a range of relevant legislation, including: 

• Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011. 
• Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010. 

This document will also contribute towards our duties to create a More Equal Wales within the: 

• Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015. 

The ‘A More Equal Wales – Mapping Duties’ guide highlights the alignment of our duties in respect of the above-mentioned legislation. 

 

  

T
udalen 68

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-01/a-more-equal-wales-mapping-guide.pdf


SECTION 1 – PROPOSAL DETAILS 
 
Lead Officer: Lisa Howell. 
 
Service Director: Andrea Richards. 
 
Service Area: Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools Team. 
 
Date: 19th May 2023. 
 
1.a) What are you assessing for impact? 
 

Strategy/Plan Service Re-
Model/Discontinuation of 
Service 

Policy/Procedure Practice Information/Position 
Statement 

     
 
1.b) What is the name of the proposal? 
 
To open a new English medium 3 to 19 special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) and the introduction of catchment areas for all 
3 to 19 special schools.  
 
1.c) Please provide an overview of the proposal providing any supporting links to reports or documents. 
 
The proposal is to open a new English medium 3 to 19 special school in RCT for 180 pupils however this will be subject to undertaking 
further feasibility and progressing with the detailed design of the new school. The new school will provide education for pupils with a 
range of additional learning needs (ALN) including autistic spectrum disorders, severe learning difficulties, profound and multiple 
learning difficulties, social, emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.  
 
It is proposed that the new school will be built in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy, and it will open no later than the 2026 academic 
year. The new school is in addition to the four special schools already open in RCT.  
 

T
udalen 69



In addition, it is proposed to introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT, these are: 
 

• Park Lane Special School.  
• Ysgol Hen Felin.  
• Ysgol Ty Coch.  

The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance with Building Bulleting 104, current requirements of planning 
and building control legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the Equality Act 2010.  

Accommodation will consist of: 

• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils, a hall/dining area, and specialist teaching and learning areas to cater for the 
needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus other sensory and stimulating specialist equipment. 
• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school 

day. 
• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum activities. 
• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, and on-site staff parking. 

The proposal will also include a review of safe routes to school and, if required, an investment in improvements to walkways, road 
crossings and traffic calming measures to ensure the required safety standards are met. This is the approach we have implemented 
within other communities through the delivery of the Band B Sustainable Communities for Learning programme, which has seen 
significant improvements being made. 
 
1.d)  Please outline where delivery of the proposal is affected by legislation or other drivers such as code of practice. 
 
In developing the proposal, consideration has been given to the following: 

1. Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 requires Councils to ensure that ALN provision is kept under review. 
2. The Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 (The ALNET Act 2018) requires Councils to keep 

under review the arrangements for supporting pupils with ALN within their area and consider whether these are sufficient. The 
ALNET Act 2018 is supported by the statutory Additional Learning Needs Code 2021. 

T
udalen 70

http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16496


3. Powers for Councils to develop school organisation proposals are governed by the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013 which is supported by a statutory School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018). 

4. The new school will be built in accordance with the Building Bulletn 104, current requirements of planning and building control 
legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the Equality Act 2010. 

 
1.e)  Please outline who the proposal affects: 

o Service users  
o Employees  
o Wider community  

SECTION 2 – SCREENING TEST – IS A FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT REQUIRED? 
 
Screening is used to determine whether the initiative has positive, negative, or neutral impacts upon protected groups. Where 
negative impacts are identified for protected groups then a full Equality Impact Assessment is required. 
 
Please provide as much detail as possible of how the proposal will impact on the following groups, this may not necessarily be 
negative, but may impact on a group with a particular characteristic in a specific way. 
 
Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment, and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity between different groups, and foster good relations between different 
groups. Please take an intersectional approach in recognising an individual may have more than one protected characteristic. 
 

Protected Characteristics Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative, or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been used 
to support this view? 

Age 
(Specific age groups i.e., young 
people or older people). 

Positive. RCT has an excellent range of 
special schools. However, it has 
become increasingly apparent 
that the special schools currently 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 

T
udalen 71



available are disproportionate to 
the demand for them. 
 
The Council’s school 
modernisation programme has 
been successfully making 
excellent progress in 
modernising our school estate, 
meeting demand for places and 
expanding pupil places where 
required. The Council has been 
building new schools, 
remodelling, and redeveloping 
schools across RCT providing 
21st century learning 
environments for our pupils, 
staff, parents/carers, and the 
wider community. 
 
As part of the continuation of the 
Council’s school modernisation 
programme, investment is 
needed to provide a new school. 
 
Given the considerable changes 
in Wales in relation to the 
statutory provision required to 
meet the needs of pupils with 
ALN, with the implementation of 
the ALNET Act 2018, building a 
new school and creating further 
capacity in our current provision, 

impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 
An example of this can be seen 
at Y Pant Comprehensive School 
where the sporting facilities are 
being used by Pontyclun 
Athletics Club and by local 
netball clubs for training, whilst 
the indoor community facilities 
are being used the Community 
Wind Band and Rhondda 
Symphony Orchestra. 
 
Similarly, the sporting facilities at 
Tonyrefail Community School 
are being used for basketball 
tournaments and for training by 
local rugby and football clubs, 
whilst the indoor community 
facilities are being used by local 
choirs, for Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults, 
community coffee mornings and 
art classes. 
 
 

T
udalen 72



will ensure that the Council can 
continue to meet its statutory 
obligations. The Council believes 
that the proposal represents the 
best opportunity to safeguard 
and sustain educational 
standards for the future and 
provides a platform for further 
improvement through significant 
investment in permanent and fit 
for purpose facilities. 
 
The new 3 to 19 special school in 
RCT would be built in 
accordance with Building 
Bulleting 104, current 
requirements of planning and 
building control legislation and 
will be fully accessible and 
compliant with the Equality Act 
2010. Accommodation will 
consist of: 
 
• Modern, flexible learning 

environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and 
specialist teaching and 
learning areas to cater for the 
needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus 
other sensory and stimulating 
specialist equipment. 

T
udalen 73



• A dedicated area within so 
that the local community will 
be allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and 
after the school day. 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to 
support the full range of 
curriculum activities. 

• Traffic management systems 
including on-site pupil bus 
drop off, and on-site staff 
parking. 

Disability 
(People with visible and non-
visible disabilities or long-term 
health conditions). 

Positive. The new 3 to 19 special school in 
RCT would be built in 
accordance with planning and 
building control legislation and 
will be fully accessible and 
compliant with the Equality Act 
2010. Accommodation will 
consist of: 
 
• Modern, flexible learning 

environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and 
specialist teaching and 
learning areas to cater for the 
needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus 
other sensory and stimulating 
specialist equipment. 

• A dedicated area within so 
that the local community will 

RCT has an excellent range of 
special schools. However, it has 
become increasingly apparent 
that the special schools currently 
available are disproportionate to 
the demand for them. In view of 
this, a data analysis exercise has 
been undertaken. The 
Consultation Document provides 
an overview of each special 
school site, including property 
condition information and 
suitability ratings along with a 
range of data. Pupil projections 
have not been included. It should 
be noted that it is difficult to 
project demand for special 
schools, as projections are 
dependent on several factors 
and historical trends and birth 

T
udalen 74



be allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and 
after the school day. 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to 
support the full range of 
curriculum activities. 

• Traffic management systems 
including on-site pupil bus 
drop off, and on-site staff 
parking. 

 
The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A dedicated 
area will be designed within so 
that the local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. 

rates are not dependable factors. 
Variations in the range of needs 
of pupils can develop and alter 
over time and special schools 
have seen a significant growth in 
the complexity of the ALN of 
pupils.  
 
The proposal is to open a new 
English medium 3 to 19 special 
school in RCT for 180 pupils. The 
new school will provide 
education for pupils with a range 
of ALN including autistic 
spectrum disorders, severe 
learning difficulties, profound 
and multiple learning difficulties, 
social, emotional, and 
behavioural difficulties, and 
sensory impairment.  

Gender Reassignment 
(Anybody who’s gender identity 
or gender expression is different 
to the sex they were assigned at 
birth including non-binary 
identities). 

Positive. Gender neutral toilet facilities will 
be available in the new school. 

Research demonstrates school 
toilets have been identified by 
sexuality and gender diverse 
(SGD) pupils as the least safe 
spaces in schools. They are sites 
of verbal, physical and sexual 
victimisation. Providing gender-
neutral toilet facilities in and 
schools may reduce the bullying 
and victimisation of SGD pupils, 
particularly those who are 
transgender or gender diverse. 

T
udalen 75



 
Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
the inclusion of toilets which are 
gender neutral with full height 
cubicles for privacy and shared 
hand wash facilities have been 
welcomed. 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 
(People who are married or in a 
civil partnership). 

Neutral. Proposed changes are not 
expected to impact on this group.  
 
While impact on characteristics 
relating to marriage or civil 
partnership is not expected, this 
proposal will be monitored 
regularly. Should an impact 
arise, needs will be addressed, 
and this Equality Impact 
Assessment updated where 
necessary. 

There is no evidence to suggest 
that the proposal will have an 
impact on people that share this 
characteristic. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(Women who are pregnant/on 
maternity leave). 

Positive. The new school will be thermally 
comfortable with ease of internal 
temperature regulation which will 
be of benefit to staff who are 
pregnant by providing a more 
comfortable environment to work 
in. Rest facilities will also be 
available if required via a 
dedicated hygiene/medical 
room. 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community due to them 
being naturally ventilated and 
having energy efficent heating 
systems. 

Race Positive.  The proposal will have a positive 
impact on children and young 

When looking at ethnicity data, 
2022 PLASC data shows 93.9% 

T
udalen 76



(Ethnic and racial groups i.e., 
minority ethnic groups, Gypsy, 
Roma, and Travellers). 

people between the ages of 3 to 
19 with ALN.  As a result of the 
proposal, the Council is expected 
to deliver increased ALN 
provision. 

of statutory school aged pupils 
where white British, 5.9% where 
classified as any other ethnic 
background whilst 0.2% where 
unknown.  

Religion or Belief 
(People with different religions 
and philosophical beliefs 
including people with no beliefs). 

Positive.  The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A dedicated 
area will be designed within so 
that the local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. This could 
include local community religious 
groups.  

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 

Sex 
(Women and men, girls, and 
boys). 

Positive.  The new 3 to 19 special school in 
RCT will be built in accordance 
with current requirements of 
planning and building control 
legislation and will be fully 
accessible and compliant with 
the Equality Act 2010.  
 
It will be thermally comfortable 
with ease of internal temperature 
regulation which will be of benefit 
to staff with menopausal 
symptoms by providing a more 
comfortable environment to work 
in. Rest facilities will also be 
available if required via a 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community due to them 
being naturally ventilated and 
having energy efficent heating 
systems. 

T
udalen 77



dedicated hygiene/medical 
room. 

Sexual Orientation 
(Bisexual, gay, lesbian, straight). 

Neutral. Proposed changes are not 
expected to impact on this group.  
 
While impact on characteristics 
relating to Sexual Orientation is 
not expected, this proposal will 
be monitored regularly. Should 
an impact arise, needs will be 
addressed, and this Equality 
Impact Assessment updated 
where necessary. 

There is no evidence to suggest 
that the proposal will have an 
impact on people that share this 
characteristic. 

 
In addition, due to Council commitments made to the following groups of people we would like you to consider impacts 
upon them: 
 

Group of People  Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative, or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been used 
to support this view? 

Armed Forces Community 
(Anyone who is serving, has 
served, family members and the 
bereaved). 

Positive. Additional capacity of the new 
school  could ensure sufficient 
places to accommodate families 
who may move into the area 
midway through an academic 
year (due to a change in 
circumstances). 

The new school would result in 
the ability to accommodate more 
pupils with ALN. 

Carers 
(Anyone of any age who 
provides unpaid care). 

Positive. Additional capacity of the new 
school  could ensure sufficient 
places to accommodate families 
who may move into the area 

The new school would result in 
the ability to accommodate more 
pupils with ALN. 

T
udalen 78



midway through an academic 
year (due to a change in 
circumstances). 
 
The introduction of catchment 
areas for special schools could 
encourage more parents/carers 
to choose their catchment 
special school as opposed to 
special schools outside of their 
catchment area, reducing the 
time, cost and environmental 
impacts of longer journeys. 

 
If the initial screening test has identified negative impacts, then a full Equality Impact Assessment (Section 4) must be undertaken. 
However, if after undertaking the above screening test you determine a full Equality Impact Assessment is not relevant, please provide 
an adequate explanation below: 
 
No negative impacts have been identified for protected groups.  All impacts on protected groups will be either neutral or positive. 
 
Are you happy you have sufficient evidence to justify your decision? Yes  No  
 
Name: Lisa Howell. 
 
Position: 21st Century Schools Business and School Organisation Manager. 
 
Date: 19th May 2023. 
 
Please forward a copy of this completed screening form to the Diversity and Inclusion Team. 
 
PLEASE NOTE – there is a separate impact assessment for Welsh Language. This must also be completed for proposals. 
 

T
udalen 79



Section 3 Socio-Economic Duty needs only to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous strategic 
decisions. Definition of a ‘strategic nature’ is available on page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio-economic 
Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 
 
SECTION 3 – SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY) 
 
The Socio-Economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key 
decision making. Socio-economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no 
accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services. 
 
Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them: 

• Single parent and vulnerable families. 
• Pensioners. 
• Looked after children. 
• Homeless people. 
• Students. 
• Single adult households. 

• People living in the most deprived areas in Wales. 
• People with low literacy and numeracy. 
• People who have experienced the asylum system. 
• People misusing substances. 
• People of all ages leaving a care setting. 
• People involved in the criminal justice system. 

 
Socio-Economic 
Disadvantage 

Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative, or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been used 
to support this view? 

Low Income/Income Poverty 
(Cannot afford to maintain 
regular payments such as bills, 
food, clothing, transport etc.). 

Positive. The new 3 to 19 special school in 
RCT would be built in 
accordance with current 
requirements of planning and 
building control legislation and 
will be fully accessible and 
compliant with the Equality Act 
2010. Accommodation will 
consist of: 
 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 

T
udalen 80

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/relative-income-poverty


• Modern, flexible learning 
environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and 
specialist teaching and 
learning areas to cater for the 
needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus 
other sensory and stimulating 
specialist equipment. 

• A dedicated area within so 
that the local community will 
be allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and 
after the school day. 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to 
support the full range of 
curriculum activities. 

• Traffic management systems 
including on-site pupil bus 
drop off, and on-site staff 
parking. 

An example of this can be seen 
at Y Pant Comprehensive School 
where the sporting facilities are 
being used by Pontyclun 
Athletics Club and by local 
netball clubs fro training, whilst 
the indoor community facilities 
are being used the Community 
Wind Band and Rhondda 
Symphony Orchestra. 
 
Similarly, the sporting facilities at 
Tonyrefail Community School 
are being used for basketball 
tournaments and for training by 
local rugby and football clubs, 
whilst the indoor community 
facilities are being used by local 
choirs, for Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults, 
community coffee mornings and 
art classes. 

Low and/or No Wealth 
(Enough money to meet basic 
living costs and pay bills but have 
no savings to deal with any 
unexpected spends and no 
provisions for the future). 

Positive. The new school will have a have 
modern, flexible learning 
environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and a multi-
purpose learning resource area. 
The hall/dining area could create 
capacity for breakfast club which 
is utilised by many families who 
are on low incomes or who are 
just above the poverty threshold. 

PLASC 2023 data demonstrates 
that 47.6% of pupils attending 
special schools in RCT are 
entitled to free school meals, 
compared to the all RCT  figure 
of 21.9%.  
 
Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 

T
udalen 81



 
PLASC 2023 data demonstrates 
that 47.6% of pupils attending 
special schools in RCT are 
entitled to free school meals, 
compared to the all RCT  figure 
of 21.9%. 
 
The new school will also have 
facilities that could assist with 
storage of school uniforms for 
uniform recycling schemes 
whereby parents/carers on lower 
incomes will be able to benefit 
from good quality uniforms free 
of charge. 

parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. 

Material Deprivation 
(Unable to access basic goods 
and services i.e., financial 
products like life insurance, 
repair/replace broken electrical 
goods, warm home, hobbies 
etc.). 

Positive. The new school will offer 
improved facilities for pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community users. The new 
school will have a have modern, 
flexible learning environments 
for all pupils, a hall/dining area, 
and a multi-purpose learning 
resource area. The hall/dining 
area could have a positive 
impact upon free school meals 
uptake as a modern dining 
environment will be provided. 
 
The Welsh Government have 
announced plans to phase the 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 
An example of this can be seen 
at Y Pant Comprehensive School 
where the sporting facilities are 
being used by Pontyclun 
Athletics Club and by local 
netball clubs fro training, whilst 
the indoor community facilities 

T
udalen 82

https://gov.wales/material-deprivation-and-low-income


expansion of free school meals 
for primary school aged pupils. 
The new catering facilities will be 
designed to accommodate 
increased uptake of free school 
meals following the introuction of 
the expansion.  

are being used the Community 
Wind Band and Rhondda 
Symphony Orchestra. 
 
Similarly, the sporting facilities at 
Tonyrefail Community School 
are being used for basketball 
tournaments and for training by 
local rugby and football clubs, 
whilst the indoor community 
facilities are being used by local 
choirs, for Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults, 
community coffee mornings and 
art classes. 

Area Deprivation 
(Where you live (rural areas), 
where you work (accessibility of 
public transport). 

Positive. As well as delivering a brand new 
school with modern facilities, this 
proposal will also include a 
review of safe routes to school 
and, if required, an investment in 
improvements to walkways, road 
crossings and traffic calming 
measures to ensure the required 
safety standards are met. This is 
the approach we have 
implemented within other 
communities through the 
delivery of the Band B 
Sustainable Communities for 
Learning programme, which has 
seen significant improvements 
being made. 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 
An example of this can be seen 
at Y Pant Comprehensive School 
where the sporting facilities are 
being used by Pontyclun 
Athletics Club and by local 
netball clubs fro training, whilst 
the indoor community facilities 
are being used the Community 

T
udalen 83

https://gov.wales/welsh-index-multiple-deprivation-full-index-update-ranks-2019


 
It is proposed that the new 
school will be built in the Clydach 
Vale area of Tonypandy. In 
addition, it is proposed to 
introduce catchment areas for 
special schools. Whilst some 
pupils will live further away from 
the new school, the site is 
conveniently located. 
 
The private sector contractor 
involved in the creation of the 
new school will be delivering 
community benefits by means of 
apprenticeships, training and job 
opportunities, bringing local jobs 
for local people and 
opportunities for the long term 
unemployed.  They will also 
engage in community 
volunteering and in kind 
donations to the benefit of the 
local community. They will also 
engage with the school 
community, giving pupils the 
opportunity to engage with the 
contractor in activities. 

Wind Band and Rhondda 
Symphony Orchestra. 
 
Similarly, the sporting facilities at 
Tonyrefail Community School 
are being used for basketball 
tournaments and for training by 
local rugby and football clubs, 
whilst the indoor community 
facilities are being used by local 
choirs, for Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults, 
community coffee mornings and 
art classes. 
 
There is a statutory duty placed 
upon all Local Authorities in 
Wales to provide pupils with free 
transport to their nearest suitable 
school if they reside beyond safe 
‘walking distance’ to that school.  
The Council has exercised the 
discretionary powers afforded to 
it under the provisions of the 
Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 
2008 (2008 Measure) to make a 
more generous provision to 
pupils.  
 
Many pupils (75.9%) currently 
accessing the special schools 

T
udalen 84



across RCT use home to school 
transport.  
 
The proposal will include a 
review of safe routes to school 
and, if required, an investment in 
improvements to walkways, road 
crossings and traffic calming 
measures to ensure the required 
safety standards are met. This is 
the approach we have 
implemented within other 
communities through the 
delivery of the Band B 
Sustainable Communities for 
Learning programme, which has 
seen significant improvements 
being made. 
 
 

Socio-Economic Background 
(Social class i.e., parents’/carers 
education, employment, and 
income). 

Positive. The new school will provide the 
opportunity for more pupils with 
ALN to benefit from having the 
opportunity to be taught in brand 
new facilities fit for the 21st 
century. 
 
The new school will be built in 
accordance with the current 
requirements of planning and 
building control legislation and 
will be fully accessible and 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 

T
udalen 85



compliant with the Equality Act 
2010. Accommodation will 
consist of: 

• Modern, flexible learning 
environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and a multi-
purpose learning resource 
area. 

• A dedicated area within so 
that the local community will 
be allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and 
after the school day. 

• Enhanced outdoor spaces to 
support the full range of 
curriculum activities. 

• Traffic management systems 
including on-site pupil bus 
drop off, and on-site staff 
parking. 
 

The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A dedicated 
area will be designed within so 
that the local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. 
 

T
udalen 86



The private sector contractor 
involved in the creation of the 
new school will be delivering 
community benefits by means of 
apprenticeships, training and job 
opportunities, bringing local jobs 
for local people and 
opportunities for the long term 
unemployed.  They will also 
engage in community 
volunteering and in kind 
donations to the benefit of the 
local community. They will also 
engage with the school 
community, giving pupils the 
opportunity to engage with the 
contractor in activities. 

Socio-economic disadvantage 
(What cumulative impact will the 
proposal have on people or 
groups because of their 
protected characteristic(s) or 
vulnerability or because they are 
already disadvantaged). 

Positive. It is proposed that the new 
school will be built in the Clydach 
Vale area of Tonypandy. In 
addition, it is proposed to 
introduce catchment areas for 
special schools. Whilst some 
pupils will live further away from 
the new school, the site is 
conveniently located. 
 
The new school will positively 
impact any individual who may 
be financially or materially 
disadvantaged, as it will afford 
more opportunities for pupils, 

Delivery of new school buildings 
previously throughout RCT and 
their positive impact on pupils, 
parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. These positive 
impacts can be requested via the 
Council’s 21st Century Schools 
Team.  
 

T
udalen 87



parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. 

 
SECTION 4 – FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
You should use the information gathered at the screening stage to assist you in identifying possible negative/adverse impacts and 
clearly identify which groups are affected. 
 
4.a)  In terms of disproportionate/negative/adverse impacts that the proposal may have on a protected group, outline the 

steps that will be taken to reduce or mitigate the impact for each group identified. Attach a separate action plan where 
impacts are substantial. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposal will have a disproportionate/negative/adverse impact on a protected group. 
 

4.b) If ways of reducing the impact have been identified but are not possible, please explain why they are not possible. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposal will have a disproportionate/negative/adverse impact on a protected group. 
 

4.c) Give sufficient detail of data or research that has led to your reasoning the sources used for establishing the 
demographics of service users/staff. 

• Data analysis is based on data derived from the PLASC unless otherwise stated.  
• Qualitative reasoning gathered from the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools 

Team and Access and Inclusion Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates Team. 
• Delivery of new school buildings previously throughout RCT and their positive impact on pupils, parents/carers, staff and 

the wider community. These positive impacts can be requested via the Council’s 21st Century Schools Team.  

4.d) Give details of how you engaged with service users/staff on the proposals and the steps taken to avoid any 
disproportionate impact on a protected group. Explain how you have used feedback to influence your decision. 

  
 The consultation will start on 4th July 2023 and will be completed at 17:00 on 15th September 2023. 
 

T
udalen 88



Face to face meetings will be arranged with the staff, School Councils and Governing Bodies of the special schools across 
RCT. 
 
A Consultation Response Form will also be available at on the Council’s website on the ‘Get Involved’ page. The Consultation 
Response Form enables consultees to indicate if they wish to be notified of the publication of the Consultation Report, once 
presented to the Council’s Cabinet. 

 
Consultees are also welcomed to put their views, comments, and any questions in writing to: 

 
Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools 
Ty Trevithick 
Abercynon 
CF45 4UQ 

 
Or 

 
E-mail: schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk 
 
Children and young people have a right to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their views to be heard and 
considered in accordance with their age and maturity. As such, the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools Team will ensure that suitable arrangements are made to involve children and young people as active 
participants throughout this consultation process, and if a decision is made to progress the proposal, throughout the 
implementation process.  

A drop in session will also be arranged so that members of the public can discuss the proposal with Officers from the Councils 
Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services and provide any feedback at the session. 
 
The Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates 
Team will monitor this proposal throughout the design development period, construction period and operational period holding 
monthly review meetings. 
 

T
udalen 89

mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk


4.e) Are you satisfied that the engagement process complies with the requirements of the Statutory Equality and Socio-
economic Duties? 

 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposal will have a disproportionate/negative/adverse impact on a protected group. 
 
Yes  No  

 
SECTION 5 – MONITORING, EVALUATING AND REVIEWING 
 
5a) Please outline below how the implementation of the proposal will be monitored: 

The proposal is made in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018). Section 2.1 of the School 
Organisation Code 2018 refers to elements of school organisation that require the publication of proposals, including: 
 
• The opening of a maintained school (including special school). 
• The closing of a maintained school (including special school). 

The consultation will start on 4th July 2023 and will be completed at 17:00 on 15th September 2023. 

Face to face meetings will be arranged with the staff, School Councils and Governing Bodies of the special schools across 
RCT. 

A Consultation Response Form will also be available at on the Council’s website on the ‘Get Involved’ page. The Consultation 
Response Form enables consultees to indicate if they wish to be notified of the publication of the Consultation Report, once 
presented to the Council’s Cabinet. 

 
Consultees are also welcomed to put their views, comments, and any questions in writing to: 

 
Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools 
Ty Trevithick 
Abercynon 
CF45 4UQ 

 

T
udalen 90



Or 
 

E-mail: schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk 
 

Children and young people have a right to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their views to be heard and 
considered in accordance with their age and maturity. As such, the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
21st Century Schools Team will ensure that suitable arrangements are made to involve children and young people as active 
participants throughout this consultation process, and if a decision is made to progress the proposal, throughout the 
implementation process.  

A drop in session will also be arranged so that members of the public can discuss the proposal with Officers from the Councils 
Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services and provide any feedback at the session. 

 
The Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates 
Team will monitor this proposal throughout the design development period, construction period and operational period holding 
monthly review meetings. 

 
5b) When is the evaluation of the proposal due to be reviewed? 
 

The Council’s Cabinet will consider the Consultation Report and decide, based on the feedback, whether to proceed with the 
proposal, amend the proposal or not proceed with the proposal. If the Council’s Cabinet decides not to proceed, that will be 
the end of the proposal. 
 
If the Council’s Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, a Statutory Notice will be published providing a 28 day notice 
period for objections. The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2018 requires that anyone wishing to make 
objections to a school organisation proposal can do so. To be considered as statutory objections, objections must be made in 
writing or by email, and sent to the Council within 28 days of the date on which the Statutory Notice was published. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet will consider the outcome of the Statutory Notice at the next available Cabinet meeting and determine 
the proposal. 
 
If there are objections, the Council’s Director of Education and Inclusion Services will publish an Objection Report providing a 
summary of the objections and the response to them within seven days of the day of the determination of the proposal. 

T
udalen 91

mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk


 
If the Council’s Cabinet approve the proposal, it will be implemented in accordance with the date stated in the Statutory Notice 
or any subsequently modified date. In the case of the proposal, the implementation date will be no later than the 2026 academic 
year. 
 

5c) Who is responsible for the monitoring and review of the proposal? 
 
The Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates 
Team will monitor this proposal throughout the design development period, construction period and operational period. 
 

5d) How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals? 
 
Each 21st Century Schools project undergoes a ‘Lessons Learnt’ review at the end of the construction phase and this feeds 
into future projects so that each project improves and benefits from lessons learnt (positive and negative) during previous 
projects. 
 

SECTION 6 – REVIEW 
 
For all policy proposals, whether it is a Significant Key Decision or not, you are required to forward this Impact Assessment to Diversity 
and Inclusion Team – equality@rctcbc.gov.uk and the Consultation and Engagement Team – consultation@rctcbc.gov.uk in the first 
instance for some initial guidance and feedback. 
 
As part of the Welsh Language, Equalities and Socio Economic Duty Impact Assessment Process all proposals that fall within the 
definition of Significant Key Decision should be presented at the Officer Review Panel. This Panel is made up of officers from across 
Council Services and acts as a critical friend before your report is finalised and published for Senior Leadership Team (SLT)/Cabinet 
approval.  
 
If the proposal is a Key Strategic Decision please forward your completed Impact Assessment, policy proposal/report and consultation 
report to CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk for an Officer Review Panel to be organised to discuss your proposal. See our guidance 
document for more information on what a Significant Key Decision is.  
 
It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built-in equality/socio 

T
udalen 92

mailto:equality@rctcbc.gov.uk
mailto:consultation@rctcbc.gov.uk
mailto:CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk


economic considerations wherever possible. Please ensure you update the relevant sections below in collaboration with the relevant 
departments. 
 

Diversity and Inclusion Team Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following 
Officer Review Panel considerations 

TBC. TBC. TBC. 
Consultation Comments Date 

Considered 
Brief description of any amendments made following 
consultation 

TBC. TBC. TBC. 
Officer Review Panel Comments Date 

Considered 
Brief description of any amendments made following 
Officer Review Panel considerations 

TBC. TBC. TBC. 
 
SECTION 7 – SUMMARY OF IMPACTS FOR THE PROPOSAL 
 
Provide below a summary of the Impact Assessment, to include some of the main positive and negative impacts along with an 
overview of actions taken since the Impact Assessment to better contribute to more positive impacts. This summary must be included 
in the Equality Considerations section of the SLT/Cabinet report template. It is not suitable to only write ‘please see full report at 
Appendix x’ in the body of the report. The Impact Assessment must be published alongside the report. 
 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and the main findings are as follows: 
 
In summary, the Equality Impact Assessment identifies both positive and neutral impacts, and no negative impacts upon the protected 
characteristics. 

• The new school will be built in accordance with the Building Bulletin 104, current requirements of planning and building control 
legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the Equality Act 2010. 

• The new school and the way in which it will be used will bring positive socio-economic impacts across all of the vulnerable groups 
identified under the protected characteristic headings. 

• Additional capacity of the new school could ensure sufficient places to accommodate families who may move into the area midway 
through an academic year (due to a change in circumstances), this could include the armed forces community and carers. 

T
udalen 93



• The new school and the way in which it will be used will bring positive socio-economic impacts across all of the vulnerable groups 
identified under the socio-economic disadvantage headings. 
 

SECTION 8 – AUTHORISATIONS 
 
Lead Officer: 
 
Name: Lisa Howell. 
 
Position: 21st Century Schools Business and School Organisation Manager. 
 
Date: 19th May 2023. 
 
I recommend that the proposal: 

• Is implemented with no amendments  
• Is implemented taking into account the mitigating actions outlined  
• Is rejected due to disproportionate negative impacts on protected groups or socio-economic disadvantage  

Head of Service/Director Approval: 
 
Name: Gaynor Davies. 
 
Position: Director of Education and Inclusion Services. 
 
Date: 19th May 2023. 
 
Please submit this impact assessment with any SLT/Cabinet Reports. 
 

T
udalen 94



 

 

21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS 
 
APPENDIX C – WELSH LANGUAGE IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT  
 
CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO OPEN A NEW 
3 TO 19 SPECIAL SCHOOL IN RHONDDA CYNON 
TAF AND THE INTRODUCTION CATCHMENT AREAS 
FOR SPECIAL SCHOOLS  
 

 
 
The Consultation Document and Appendices are also available on the ‘Get Involved’ 
page on the Council website.  
 
Mae’r ddogfen yma ar gael yn y Gymraeg / This document is available in Welsh. 
 
 

Tudalen 95



 

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT TOOL 
 

This Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIS) tool enables RCT Council to consider the principles and requirements of the Welsh Language 
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 to ensure compliance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. 

Stage 1 – Information Gathering  
 
NOTE:  As you complete this tool you will be asked for evidence to support your views. Please see Welsh Language Impact Assessment 
Guidance for more information on data sources.  

Proposal Name 
 

To open a new 3 to 19 special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) and the introduction of catchment areas for 
special schools. 

Department Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services – 21st Century Schools Team. 
Service Director Andrea Richards. 

Officer Completing the WLIA Lisa Howell. 
Email Lisa.J.Howell@rctcbc.gov.uk 

Phone N/A. 
Brief Description 

 
The Council wishes to seek the views of stakeholders on the proposal to open a new English medium 3 to 19 
special school in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) for 180 however this will be subject to undertaking further feasibility 
and progressing with the detailed design of the new school pupils. The new school will provide education for pupils 
with a range of ALN including autistic spectrum disorders, severe learning difficulties, profound and multiple 
learning difficulties, social, emotional, and behavioural difficulties, and sensory impairment.  
 
It is proposed that the new school will be built in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy, and it will open no later 
than the 2026 academic year. The new school is in addition to the four special schools already open in RCT.  
 
It is also proposed to introduce catchment areas for all 3 to 19 special schools across RCT, these are: 
 
• Park Lane Special School. 
• Ysgol Hen Felin.  
• Ysgol Ty Coch 
 
The new 3 to 19 special school in RCT would be built in accordance with current requirements of planning and 
building control legislation and will be fully accessible and compliant with the Equality Act 2010. Accommodation 
will consist of: 
 

T
udalen 96

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/1/contents/enacted
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx
mailto:Lisa.J.Howell@rctcbc.gov.uk


 

• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils, a hall/dining area, and specialist teaching and learning 
areas to cater for the needs of all pupils.  

• A hydro-therapy pool plus other sensory and stimulating specialist equipment. 
• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and 

after the school day. 
• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum activities. 
• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, and on-site staff parking. 
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed 
within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 
 
The proposal will also include a review of safe routes to school and, if required, an investment in improvements 
to walkways, road crossings and traffic calming measures to ensure the required safety standards are met. This 
is the approach we have implemented within other communities through the delivery of the Band B Sustainable 
Communities for Learning programme, which has seen significant improvements being made. 

Date 17th May 2023. 
Please outline who this 

proposal affects?  
(Service Users, Employees, 

Wider Community) 
 

• The Governing Bodies of: 
o Park Lane Special School. 
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Parents/carers, prospective parents/carers (where possible), and staff members of: 
o Park Lane Special School.  
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Pupils and staff of: 
o Park Lane Special School.  
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Local community in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy. 
What are the aims of the 

policy, and how do these 
relate to the Welsh Language? 

RCT has an excellent range of special schools. However, it has become increasingly apparent that the special 
schools currently available are disproportionate to the demand for them.  
 
Given the considerable changes in Wales in relation to the statutory provision required to meet the needs of pupils 
with ALN, with the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal Act (Wales) 2018 
(ALNET Act 2018), building a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT and creating further capacity in our current 
provision, will ensure that the Council can continue to meet its statutory obligations.  

T
udalen 97



 

 
The Council believes that the proposal represents the best opportunity to safeguard and sustain educational 
standards for the future and provides a platform for further improvement through significant investment in 
permanent and fit for purpose facilities.  
 
Although the new school will be English medium, Welsh is taught as part of the curriculum and all pupils will 
benefit from having the opportunity to be taught in brand new facilities fit for the 21st century.  

The aim is to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the Welsh language through purposeful planning to 
promote the informal use of the Welsh language amongst pupils inside and outside schools. Facilitating the use 
of the Welsh language across the curriculum and in wider contexts in schools, to ensure a continuum of linguistic 
progression to support pupils in the transition between key stages, offers all pupils the opportunity to become fully 
bilingual and aligns with the Curriculum for Wales 2022. The new school will be encouraged and supported to do 
this through the achievement of the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Welsh Language Charter, a framework to promote and 
increase the use of Welsh. 
 
In addition, the new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will 
be designed within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after 
the school day. Use of the facilities could include opportunities for third parties to offer Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults. An example of this can be seen in Tonyrefail Community School, where Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults are held in the community facilities. This could contribute towards the Welsh 
Government’s ambitious goal of creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan (WESP).  

Who will benefit / Could the 
policy affect Welsh language 

groups?  
If so, list them here.  

• The Governing Bodies of: 
o Park Lane Special School. 
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Parents/carers, prospective parents/carers (where possible), and staff members of: 
o Park Lane Special School.  
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Pupils and staff of: 
o Park Lane Special School.  
o Ysgol Hen Felin.  
o Ysgol Ty Coch including Buarth y Capel. 

• Local community in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy.  

T
udalen 98



 

 
We are also seeking the views of several stakeholders including the following Welsh language groups: 
 
• Mudiad Meithrin. 
• Menter Iaith. 
• Welsh Language Commissioner. 
 
Any impact on Welsh language groups should be positive as the new school will be a fully accessible and fully 
integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that the local community will be allowed 
to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. Use of the facilities could include opportunities 
for third parties to offer Welsh medium learning classes for adults. 

Current linguistic profile of the 
geographical area(s) 

concerned 

The 2021 Census figures regarding the Welsh language show a decrease in the percentage of Welsh speakers 
across Wales to 17.8%. There was, however, a small increase in RCT – the percentage of the population of the 
County Borough who can speak Welsh increased from 12.3% to 12.4%. Numerically, RCT saw a 2.8% increase 
in the number of Welsh speakers in the County Borough, from 27,779 speakers to 28,556 speakers. RCT was 
also one of only four Local Authorities in Wales to see an increase in the percentage of Welsh speakers – the 
others were Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil and the Vale of Glamorgan. All of these are neighbouring County Boroughs, 
which could demonstrate that our region is seeing some positive trends in terms of increases in Welsh speakers, 
and that there may be a resulting increase in demand for services through the medium of Welsh. As further, more 
detailed, data from the Census becomes available for RCT (e.g., LSOA data), we will need to consider what 
impact it may have on the services we provide. 
 
The table that follows outlines the Welsh language skills of residents living in RCT and Wales and is obtained 
from the 2011 Census. 
 

Welsh Language Skills of Residents (2011 Census)  
Welsh Language 
Skill 

RCT Wales 

Can speak, read and 
write Welsh 

9.7% 14.6% 

Can speak and read 
but cannot write 
Welsh 

0.9% 1.5% 

Can speak but 
cannot read or write 
Welsh 

1.6% 2.7% 

T
udalen 99



 

Can understand 
spoken Welsh only 

4.2% 5.3% 

Other combination 
of Skills 

3.3% 2.5% 

No skills  80.4% 73.3% 
Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
The data demonstrates that the Welsh language skills level of residents living in RCT is lower than the all Wales 
Welsh language skills level.  
 
The table that follows outlines the Welsh language skills of residents living in RCT and Wales and is obtained 
from the 2021 Census. 
 

Welsh Language Skills of Residents (2021 Census)  
Welsh Language 
Skill 

RCT Wales 

Can speak, read 
and write Welsh 

9.8% 13.8% 

Can speak and read 
but cannot write 
Welsh 

0.7% 1.1% 

Can speak but 
cannot read or write 
Welsh 

1.4% 2.2% 

Can understand 
spoken Welsh only 

3.9% 5.0% 

Other combination 
of Skills 

5.5% 5.2% 

No skills  78.7% 72.7% 
Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
The data demonstrates that the Welsh language skills level of residents living in RCT is lower than the all Wales 
Welsh language skills level.  
 
The data demonstrates the Welsh language skills level of residents living in RCT and the all Wales Welsh 
language skills level are lower in 2021 than 2011.  

T
udalen 100



 

 
The Welsh Language Use Survey for the years 2013 to 2015, contains detailed information about Welsh speaker’s 
fluency and their use of the Welsh language in a range of settings. When looking where respondents living in 
Wales learned to speak Welsh, the majority, 45.0%, learned to speak Welsh at home, followed by 26.0% who 
learned to speak Welsh at nursery and primary school between the ages of 2 to 10 and 14.0% who learned to 
speak Welsh at secondary school at the age of 11 plus. The remaining 2.0% learned to speak Welsh in other 
settings, including at Welsh medium learning classes for adults.  
 
The data demonstrates that the Welsh language skills level of residents living in RCT is lower than the all-Wales 
Welsh language skills level. Proposals such as this significantly improve the learning environment and the 
opportunities available for pupils. The headteacher of the new school will be encouraged and supported to 
consider using these facilities to increase participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity to 
parents/carers and other members of the community to attend Welsh medium learning classes for adults and/or 
other opportunities for community engagement through the medium of Welsh. In recent years, support has been 
given to promote and increase pupils use of the Welsh language in primary and secondary schools and in social 
contexts. This has been done through the Welsh Language Charter (Siarter Iaith), developed by Gwynedd 
Council, and various other projects, in partnership with the Central South Consortium Joint Education Service 
(CSCJES) and the Urdd. This could contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a 
million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP. 

Other relevant data or 
research 

 

What is the language category of the school? 
 
The proposed language category of the school is English. For pupils with significant needs who experience 
difficulties in coping with mainstream education, specialist provisions are required. The Council has a range of 
specialist provisions which include: 
 
• Forty-five Learning Support Classes. 

o One Key Stage Three Welsh Medium Learning Support Class.  
o One Key Stage Four Welsh Medium Learning Support Class. 

• Two Pupil Referral Units. 
• Four Special Schools.  

 
Placement into these specialist provisions is agreed by the Council’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion 
Services Access and Inclusion Service Panels. 
 
In addition to these the Council is currently consulting on opening more LSCs in RCT including 2 Welsh medium 
primary LSCs within the new Welsh medium school Ysgol Awel Taf, which is due to open in September 2024.  

T
udalen 101



 

 
Welsh medium pupils with ALN who experience difficulties coping with mainstream education are supported 
through an inclusive delivery model by a specialist peripatetic team, the Welsh Complex Needs Team (WCNT), 
which is made up of a Welsh medium specialist teacher and two learning support assistants. Analysis suggests 
that pupils accessing support from the WCNT are making progress that is comparable to that of their peers in 
equivalent English medium schools.  
 
The Council has recently approved proposals to realign the provision of Learning Support Classes across RCT 
and, in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018), approved the relevant and required 
statutory consultation to establish two Welsh medium primary school Learning Support Classes at the new Welsh 
medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN. The proposal will take effect from the 2024 
academic year.  
 
This ensures that an improved continuum of Welsh medium ALN provision can be achieved in RCT, and that the 
Council undertakes its statutory duties in relation to the ALNET Act 2018 whilst also contributing towards the 
Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP. 
 
What facilities are there for members of the community to learn Welsh or undertake activities through the 
medium of Welsh?  
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed 
within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 
 
The headteacher of the new school will be encouraged and supported to consider using these facilities to increase 
participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity to parents/carers and other members of the 
community to attend Welsh medium learning classes for adults and/or other opportunities for community 
engagement through the medium of Welsh. 
 
Is it appropriate to provide additional after school facilities at any alternative school to further secure 
standards in the Welsh language?  
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed 
within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 
 
The headteacher of the new school will be encouraged and supported to consider using these facilities to increase 
participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity to parents/carers and other members of the 

T
udalen 102



 

community to attend Welsh medium learning classes for adults and/or other opportunities for community 
engagement through the medium of Welsh. 
 
How parents/carers and pupils’ engagement with any alternative school and any specific language 
enhancement it offers could be supported?  
 
The Council has developed and updated a Being Bilingual booklet which was first published in March 2016. It was 
designed to give information on the benefits of being bilingual, outline the pathway to Welsh medium education 
and answer frequently asked questions on choosing Welsh medium education. It is distributed via Flying Start 
provisions and through the community in dental surgeries, doctors’ surgeries, hospitals, leisure centres and 
libraries.  
 
The Council’s Starting School booklet also provides parents/carers with a range of information including advice 
on choosing a school, the provision of home to school transport and a directory of schools.  
 
In addition, the local Cymraeg i Blant Officer runs weekly bilingual baby massage, baby yoga and Welsh rhyme 
time sessions across RCT. This ensures that parents/carers receive key early messages during the ante-natal 
and post-natal period and are made aware of the bilingual pathway available for their child.  
 
The Council’s Youth Engagement and Participation Service work with Menter Iaith and the Urdd to deliver bespoke 
language awareness sessions for young people, highlighting the value of having the Welsh language as a skill.  
 
The Council recognises the importance of immersion in the Welsh language for pupils who wish to transition from 
English to Welsh medium education. In July 2022 funding was approved by the Welsh Government to establish 
Welsh language immersion provision for latecomers to the language. The provision will adopt a peripatetic model 
of delivery with the immersion lead travelling to the home schools of pupils accessing the service to immerse 
pupils in the Welsh language. The provision is currently being rolled out and actively marketed and will continue 
to evolve as demand for it grows. When demand for it increases, the Council will consider creating a dedicated 
Welsh Language Immersion Unit for latecomers alongside the development of its Band B Sustainable 
Communities for Learning programme. 
 
Information on how the proposal fits with the WESP and any future actions that will be needed in 
consequence of the change to continue to comply with the scheme or meet targets in the scheme 

All Local Authorities in Wales must produce a WESP. The WESP is a long-term language planning tool which 
sets the direction for the strategic planning, delivery and growth in Welsh medium and Welsh language education. 
Through the WESP, and effective strategic planning and investment, the Council aims to contribute significantly 

T
udalen 103



 

to achieving the vision of one million people in Wales being Welsh speakers by 2050 as set out in Cymraeg 2050. 
The WESP can be viewed and downloaded from the Council website via: 
 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022 – 2032 | Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
(rctcbc.gov.uk)  
 
There are seven outcomes within the WESP, two of which are: 
 
• More opportunities for pupils to use Welsh in different contexts in school. 
• An increase in the provision of Welsh medium education for pupils with ALN in accordance with the duties 

imposed by the ALNET Act 2018. 
 
In recent years, support has been given to promote and increase pupils use of the Welsh language in primary and 
secondary schools and in social contexts. This has been done through the Welsh Language Charter (Siarter Iaith), 
developed by Gwynedd Council, and various other projects, in partnership with the CSCJES and the Urdd. This 
could contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales 
by 2050 and the WESP. 
 
Welsh medium pupils with ALN who experience difficulties coping with mainstream education are supported 
through an inclusive delivery model by a specialist peripatetic team, the WCNT, which is made up of a Welsh 
medium specialist teacher and two learning support assistants. Analysis suggests that pupils accessing support 
from the WCNT are making progress that is comparable to that of their peers in equivalent English medium 
schools.  
 
The Council has recently approved proposals to realign the provision of Learning Support Classes across RCT 
and, in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018), approved the relevant and required 
statutory consultation to establish two Welsh medium primary school Learning Support Classes at the new Welsh 
medium primary school in Rhydyfelin, Ysgol Awel Taf, for pupils with significant ALN. The proposal will take effect 
from the 2024 academic year.  
 
This ensures that an improved continuum of Welsh medium ALN provision can be achieved in RCT, and that the 
Council undertakes its statutory duties in relation to the ALNET Act 2018 whilst also contributing towards the 
Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP. 
 
No changes to these proposals are required to comply with the WESP. 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  

T
udalen 104

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/SchoolAdmissions/WelshMediumEducation/WelshinEducationStrategicPlanWESP2022%E2%80%932032.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/SchoolAdmissions/WelshMediumEducation/WelshinEducationStrategicPlanWESP2022%E2%80%932032.aspx


 

 
In this section you need to consider the impact, the evidence and any action you are taking for improvement. This is to ensure that the opportunities 
for people who choose to live their lives and access services through the medium of Welsh are not inferior to what is afforded to those choosing to 
do so in English, in accordance with the requirement of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 
Please note there is a separate impact assessment for Equality and Socio-Economic duty that must also be completed for policy proposals. 
 
Remember that effects that are positive for some groups could be detrimental to others - even among Welsh language groups. Consider the effects 
on different groups. For example, a proposal may be beneficial to Welsh learners, but not to Welsh speakers. 
 
Previous Welsh Language Impact Assessments can be found on Inform by clicking here. 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 Does the 

proposal 
have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

impact on the Welsh language. 
What evidence do you have 

to support this view? 

What action(s) can you take 
to mitigate any negative 

impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Opportunities for persons 
to use the Welsh language 

 
 e.g., staff, residents and visitors  

 
The rights of Welsh speakers and 

learners to use Welsh when 
dealing with the council and for 

staff to use Welsh at Work  

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A 
dedicated area will be 
designed within so that the 
local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. 

 
2. All signage produced will be 

bilingual and in adherence to 
the most recent guidelines 
available and ‘Welcome to 
use Welsh’ signs will be 
placed in the new school 
reception to make people 

1. An example of this can be 
seen in Tonyrefail 
Community School, where 
Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults are held 
in the community facilities.  

 
2. The Annual Population 

Survey collects information 
about respondents’ Welsh 
speaking ability and 
includes a question on 
respondent’s Welsh 
language skills level. The 
most recent Annual 
Population Survey, for the 
quarter ending June 2022, 

1. The headteacher of the new 
school will be encouraged 
and supported to consider 
using these facilities to 
increase participation in the 
Welsh language by offering 
the opportunity to 
parents/carers and other 
members of the community 
to attend Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults 
and/or other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

T
udalen 105

http://rctinform/en/supportservices/impactassessments/impactassessment.aspx


 

aware that they are welcome 
to use Welsh if desired. 

 
Any Welsh speaking 
members of staff should also 
wear badges/lanyards that 
show that they speak Welsh. 

 
3. The Council will continue to 

adhere to The Welsh 
Language (Wales) Measure 
2011, which requires the 
Council to produce a five year 
strategy to facilitate and 
promote the Welsh language. 
The second five year strategy, 
for the years between 2022 to 
2027, was approved in 2022 
and outlines several key 
policy areas to maintain and 
increase the number of Welsh 
speakers during its lifecycle. 
In developing this proposal, 
the RCT – Welsh Language 
Promotion Strategy and 
associated documents have 
been taken into consideration 
to encourage and facilitate 
long term growth in Welsh 
medium and Welsh language 
education and the Council has 
and will continue to ensure 
there is a clear alignment with 
it. 

 

reported that 17.9% of 
respondents living in RCT 
said they could read Welsh, 
compared to the all Wales 
percentage of 26.0% of 
respondents. 

 
3. The Annual Population 

Survey collects information 
about respondents’ Welsh 
speaking ability and 
includes a question on 
respondent’s Welsh 
language skills level. The 
most recent Annual 
Population Survey, for the 
quarter ending June 2022, 
reported that 24.1% of 
respondents living in RCT 
said they could speak 
Welsh, compared to the all 
Wales percentage of 
33.4% of respondents. 

 
4. All newly recruited Council 

staff are required to 
undertake Welsh language 
Level 1 training and those 
staff who obtain Level 1 will 
be encouraged to further 
their skills by undertaking 
levels 2 and 3 . 

 
5. The number of school 

based staff completing the 
Welsh Governments Welsh 

Ensure that parents/carers, 
and the wider community are 
signposted to Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults 
and/or other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh via the Council’s 
website and corporate social 
media platforms.  

 
2. All processes associated 

with the new school will be in 
accordance with the 
Council’s Welsh Language 
Standards. 

 
3. The Council’s Welsh 

Language Services Team 
are working to develop 
technological support for 
Welsh speakers and 
learners within the Council to 
be able to deliver services 
through the medium of 
Welsh.  

 
4. All newly recruited Council 

staff are required to 
undertake Welsh language 
Level 1 training and those 
staff who obtain Level 1 will 
be encouraged to further 
their skills by undertaking 
levels 2 and 3 . 
 

T
udalen 106



 

4. The Council has opportunities 
for internal staff across all 
services to access free 
training to improve their Welsh 
language skills. The Council’s 
Welsh Language Services 
Team are working to develop 
technological support for 
Welsh speakers and learners 
within the Council to be able to 
deliver services through the 
medium of Welsh. 

 
All newly recruited Council 
staff are required to undertake 
Welsh language Level 1 
training and those staff who 
obtain Level 1 will be 
encouraged to further their 
skills by undertaking levels 2 
and 3. This will support the 
opportunities available for the 
Council to create a bilingual 
workforce with the ability to 
work and deliver services 
bilingually. 

 
5. The Councils must work to 

ensure a school based 
workforce of sufficient size 
and capability. To create more 
Welsh speakers, our 
education system is 
dependent on its school 
based workforce.  

 

Language Sabbatical 
Scheme, which is offered at 
various language 
proficiency levels, 
providing opportunities for 
specialised and continual 
professional development 
with the aim of increasing 
number of school based 
staff who can teach 
bilingually or through the 
medium of Welsh.  

 
The number of teaching 
staff able to teach Welsh 
(as a subject) and teach 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 
5. We must work locally, 

regionally, and nationally to 
ensure a workforce with 
robust linguistic skills with 
the ability to inspire and 
motivate pupils in Welsh 
medium education. 

 
A WESP Subgroup has been 
established to work towards 
the achievement of outcome 
7 of the WESP, it includes 
local, regional, and national 
officers who are working 
collaboratively to implement 
strategies to work towards 
creating more Welsh 
speakers to ensure we have 
a school based workforce of 
sufficient size and capability. 

 
 

T
udalen 107



 

Outcome 7 of the WESP 
works towards providing more 
opportunities to increase the 
number of teaching staff able 
to teach Welsh (as a subject) 
and teach through the 
medium of Welsh. 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  
 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 
 Does the 

proposal 
have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

impact on the Welsh language. 
What evidence do you have to 

support this view? 

What action(s) can you 
take to mitigate any 
negative impacts or 
better contribute to 
positive impacts? 

Numbers and / or 
percentages of Welsh 

speakers  
e.g., Welsh Medium Education / 

Study Opportunities. Links with the 
Welsh Government’s Cymraeg 
2050 Strategy / RCTCBC Five 
Year Welsh Language Strategy 

 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A 
dedicated area will be 
designed within so that the 
local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. 
 

2. The Council aims to embed 
positive habits and attitudes 
towards the Welsh language 
through purposeful planning 
to promote the informal use of 
the Welsh language amongst 
pupils inside and outside 
schools. Facilitating the use of 

1. An example of this can be seen 
in Tonyrefail Community 
School, where Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults are 
held in the community facilities. 
 

2. As of April 2023, all Welsh 
medium primary schools have 
achieved the bronze award and 
3 have achieved the silver 
award for the ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter. Whilst 2 Welsh 
medium secondary schools 
have achieved the bronze and 
silver awards for the ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter 

1. The headteacher of the 
new school will be 
encouraged and 
supported to consider 
using these facilities to 
increase participation in 
the Welsh language by 
offering the opportunity 
to parents/carers and 
other members of the 
community to attend 
Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults and/or 
other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

T
udalen 108

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/WelshLanguagePromotionalStrategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/WelshLanguagePromotionalStrategy.pdf


 

the Welsh language across 
the curriculum and in wider 
contexts in schools, to ensure 
a continuum of linguistic 
progression to support pupils 
in the transition between key 
stages, offers all pupils the 
opportunity to become fully 
bilingual and aligns with the 
Curriculum for Wales 2022. 
The new school will be 
encouraged and supported to 
do this through the 
achievement of the ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter, a framework to 
promote and increase the use 
of Welsh. 

 
As of April 2023, 43 English 
medium primary schools have 
achieved the bronze award and 
9 have achieved the silver 
award for the ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter. Whilst 2 English 
medium secondary schools 
have achieved the bronze 
award for the ‘Cymraeg 
Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ensure that 
parents/carers, and the 
wider community are 
signposted to Welsh 
medium learning 
classes for adults and/or 
other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh via the Council’s 
website and corporate 
social media platforms.  

 
2. The new school will be 

encouraged and 
supported to do this 
through the 
achievement of the 
‘Cymraeg Campus’ 
Welsh Language 
Charter, a framework to 
promote and increase 
the use of Welsh. 

Opportunities to promote 
the Welsh language 
e.g., status, use of Welsh 

language services, use of Welsh in 
everyday life in work and in the 

community 
 

Actively encourage and promote 
the use of our services in Welsh to 
see an increase in demand over 

time  
 

Positive  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully integrated 
community school. A 
dedicated area will be 
designed within so that the 
local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and after 
the school day. 
 

2. All signage produced will be 
bilingual and in adherence to 
the most recent guidelines 

1. An example of this can be seen 
in Tonyrefail Community 
School, where Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults are 
held in the community facilities. 
  

2. The Annual Population Survey 
collects information about 
respondents’ Welsh speaking 
ability and includes a question 
on respondent’s Welsh 
language skills level. The most 
recent Annual Population 

1. The headteacher of the 
new school will be 
encouraged and 
supported to consider 
using these facilities to 
increase participation in 
the Welsh language by 
offering the opportunity 
to parents/carers and 
other members of the 
community to attend 
Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults and/or 

T
udalen 109



 

available and ‘Welcome to 
use Welsh’ signs will be 
placed in the new school 
reception to make people 
aware that they are welcome 
to use Welsh if desired. 

 
Any Welsh speaking 
members of staff should also 
wear badges/lanyards that 
show that they speak Welsh. 
 

3. The Council will continue to 
adhere to The Welsh 
Language (Wales) Measure 
2011, which requires the 
Council to produce a five year 
strategy to facilitate and 
promote the Welsh language. 
The second five year strategy, 
for the years between 2022 to 
2027, was approved in 2022 
and outlines several key 
policy areas to maintain and 
increase the number of Welsh 
speakers during its lifecycle. 
In developing this proposal, 
the RCT – Welsh Language 
Promotion Strategy has been 
taken into consideration to 
encourage and facilitate long 
term growth in Welsh medium 
and Welsh language 
education and the Council has 
and will continue to ensure 

Survey, for the quarter ending 
June 2022, reported that 17.9% 
of respondents living in RCT 
said they could read Welsh, 
compared to the all Wales 
percentage of 26.0% of 
respondents. 

 
3. The Annual Population Survey 

collects information about 
respondents’ Welsh speaking 
ability and includes a question 
on respondent’s Welsh 
language skills level. The most 
recent Annual Population 
Survey, for the quarter ending 
June 2022, reported that 24.1% 
of respondents living in RCT 
said they could speak Welsh, 
compared to the all Wales 
percentage of 33.4% of 
respondents. 

 
4. The development of 

opportunities for pupils and the 
wider community to use the 
Welsh language 

 

other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 
Ensure that 
parents/carers, and the 
wider community are 
signposted to Welsh 
medium learning 
classes for adults and/or 
other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh via the Council’s 
website and corporate 
social media platforms.  
 

2. All processes 
associated with the new 
school will be in 
accordance with the 
Council’s Welsh 
Language Standards. 

 
3. The Council’s Welsh 

Language Services 
Team are working to 
develop technological 
support for Welsh 
speakers and learners 
within the Council to be 
able to deliver services 
through the medium of 
Welsh.  

 

T
udalen 110



 

there is a clear alignment with 
it.  

 
4. Outcome 5 of the WESP 

works towards providing more 
opportunities for pupils to use 
Welsh in different contexts in 
school. 

 
The Council’s Welsh 
Language Services, Youth 
Services, Leisure Services, 
Arts and Cultural Services and 
Musical Services are all 
working proactively towards 
developing opportunities for 
pupils and the wider 
community to use the Welsh 
language.  

 

4. A WESP Subgroup has 
been established to 
work towards the 
achievement of this 
outcome, it includes 
local, regional, and 
national officers who are 
working collaboratively 
to implement strategies 
to work towards 
providing more 
opportunities for pupils 
to use Welsh in different 
contexts in school. 
Strategies include: 

 
Welsh Language 
Services – Developing 
materials to provide to 
school based staff to 
support with their Welsh 
language skills. 

 
Youth Services - 
Running trips for Welsh 
medium pupils to 
provide opportunities to 
use Welsh in different 
contexts, creating 
promotional materials to 
be placed in youth clubs 
throughout RCT, 
working in partnership 
with the Urdd and 
Menter Iaith to develop 
Welsh Language Youth 

T
udalen 111



 

Forums in all Welsh and 
English medium 
secondary schools 
along with the local 
college. 

 
Leisure Services – 
Working with the Urdd to 
deliver sport activities for 
Welsh medium schools 
and exploring extending 
this to incorporate 
English medium schools 
on a bilingual model of 
delivery. Working with 
Menter Iaith to develop 
opportunities to 
introduce the Welsh 
language into leisure 
sessions. 

 
Arts and Cultural 
Services – Collaborating 
with Youth Services on a 
programme of provision 
across RCT’s cultural 
venues to encourage the 
use of the Welsh 
language and 
incorporating the Welsh 
language into 
community based 
events.  
 
Musical Services – 
Engaging with both 

T
udalen 112



 

Welsh and English 
medium schools to 
encourage uptake in 
musical services for 
pupils who show an 
aptitude for any 
instruments with pupils 
being encouraged and 
supported to take part in 
the Eisteddfod. 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  
 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 Does the 

proposal 
have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

impact on the Welsh 
language. 

What evidence do you have to 
support this view? 

What action(s) can you take 
to mitigate any negative 

impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Compliance with the 
Council’s Statutory 

Welsh Language 
Standards  

e.g. 
increasing or reducing the 
Council’s ability to deliver 

services through the Medium of 
Welsh. 

 
Consider the rights of Welsh 
speakers to use Welsh when 

dealing with the Council and for 
staff to use Welsh at Work 

 
 

Positive.  1. All relevant and required 
statutory consultation 
associated with this proposal 
will be in accordance with the 
Council’s Statutory Welsh 
Language Standards.  
 

2. The Council will work with the 
CSCJES to incorporate their 
Welsh Language 
Competency Framework with 
the school based staff at the 
new school. Staff will be 
supported to participate in 
Welsh language courses at 
different levels of the 

1. The relevant and required 
statutory consultation will be 
undertaken bilingually and all 
public correspondence in 
relation to the proposal will be 
produced bilingually. 
 

2. The number of school based 
staff at the new school 
participating in Welsh 
language courses at different 
levels to improve their Welsh 
language skills and the 
number applying to undertake 
the CSCJES Welsh Language 
Sabbatical Scheme which 

1. The relevant and required 
statutory consultation will 
be undertaken bilingually 
and all public 
correspondence in relation 
to the proposal will be 
produced bilingually. 
 

2. Ensure the Council and the 
CSCJES actively market 
and promote the support 
available to school based 
staff who are looking to 
improve their Welsh 
language skills. 

 

T
udalen 113

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/ComplianceNoticeStandards.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/ComplianceNoticeStandards.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/Relateddocs/ComplianceNoticeStandards.pdf


 

framework to improve their 
Welsh language skills. 

 
3. All signage associated with 

this proposal will be in 
accordance with the 
Council’s Statutory Welsh 
Language Standards. 

 

develops practitioners’ Welsh 
language skills and ability to 
teach through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 
3. Bilingual signage in 

accordance with the Council’s 
Statutory Welsh Language 
Standards. 

3. Instil contractor awareness 
of the Council’s Statutory 
Welsh Language 
Standards and ensure 
compliance with these 
standards.  

Treating the Welsh 
language, no less 

favourably than the 
English language 

 
 
 

 1. Although the new school will 
be English medium, Welsh is 
taught as part of the 
curriculum and all pupils will 
benefit from having the 
opportunity to be taught in 
brand new facilities fit for the 
21st century. The new school 
will be part of the Council’s 
Sustainable Communities for 
Learning Programme which 
is jointly funded by the 
Council and the Welsh 
Government. The purpose of 
the Programme is to ensure 
there are good schools so all 
children and young people, 
whatever their learning need 
is, have equitable access to 
good Welsh and English 
medium education. This 
purpose will be fulfilled by 
constructing this new special 
school for pupils with ALN in 
RCT.  
 

1. The Council’s Sustainable 
Communities for Learning 
Programme contains a wide 
range of schools, both Welsh 
and English medium, in 
various parts of RCT. Although 
the new school will be English 
medium, Welsh is taught as 
part of the curriculum and all 
pupils will benefit from having 
the opportunity to be taught in 
brand new facilities fit for the 
21st century. 
 

2. An example of this can be seen 
in Tonyrefail Community 
School, where Welsh medium 
learning classes for adults are 
held in the community 
facilities.  

 
 

1. Welsh is taught as part of 
the curriculum and all 
pupils will benefit from 
having the opportunity to 
be taught in brand new 
facilities fit for the 21st 
century. 
 

2. The headteacher of the 
new school will be 
encouraged and 
supported to consider 
using these facilities to 
increase participation in 
the Welsh language by 
offering the opportunity to 
parents/carers and other 
members of the 
community to attend 
Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults and/or 
other opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

T
udalen 114



 

2. The new school will be a fully 
accessible and fully 
integrated community school. 
A dedicated area will be 
designed within so that the 
local community will be 
allowed to safely use the 
facilities, both during and 
after the school day. 

Ensure that 
parents/carers, and the 
wider community are 
signposted to Welsh 
medium learning classes 
for adults and/or other 
opportunities for 
community engagement 
through the medium of 
Welsh via the Council’s 
website and corporate 
social media platforms.  

Stage 3 - Strengthening the proposal  
 
Having listed actions in section 2 which may mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to positive impacts – please record below which 
ones you will imbed into the policy proposal and who will be responsible for them. 
 
Also consider is the proposal necessary? Would it be possible to meet demand without any new developments? Could other existing provision be 
used? Where should the development be?  

What are you going to do? When are you going to do 
it? 

Who is responsible? 
 

• Work with the new school and to offer Welsh medium learning classes 
for adults and/or other opportunities for community engagement through 
the medium of Welsh. 

• When the proposed new 3 
to 19 special school 
opens. 

• Councils Directorate of Education 
and Inclusion Services 21st 
Century Schools Team. 

• Ensure that parents/carers of the new school, and the wider community 
are signposted to Welsh medium learning classes for adults and/or other 
opportunities for community engagement through the medium of Welsh 
via the Council’s website and corporate social media platforms. 

• When the proposed new 3 
to 19 special school 
opens. 

• Councils Directorate of Education 
and Inclusion Services 21st 
Century Schools Team. 

• The Councils must work to ensure a school based workforce of sufficient 
size and capability. To create more Welsh speakers, our education 
system is dependent on its school based workforce. 

• Work ongoing. • Councils Directorate of Education 
and Inclusion Services. 

• The CSCJES. 
• The Council aims to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the 

Welsh language through purposeful planning to promote the informal use 
of the Welsh language amongst pupils inside and outside schools. 
Facilitating the use of the Welsh language across the curriculum and in 
wider contexts in schools, to ensure a continuum of linguistic progression 

• Work ongoing. • Councils Directorate of Education 
and Inclusion Services. 

• The CSCJES. 

T
udalen 115



 

to support pupils in the transition between key stages, offers all pupils the 
opportunity to become fully bilingual and aligns with the Curriculum for 
Wales 2022. The new school will be encouraged and supported to do this 
through the achievement of the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Welsh Language 
Charter, framework to promote and increase the use of Welsh. 

• The WESP Co-ordinator will continue to collaborate with partners in 
developing and implementing strategies in line with the WESP to 
contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating 
a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050. 

• Work ongoing for duration 
of the WESP between 
2022 and 2032. 

• Councils Directorate of Education 
and Inclusion Services WESP Co-
Ordinator. 

If ways of reducing the impact have been identified but are not possible to implement, please explain why. Give sufficient detail of data or research 
that has led to your reasoning. 

What was identified? Why is it not possible? 
N/A. N/A. 
Stage 4 – Review 
 
For all policy proposals, whether it is a Significant Key Decision or not, you are required to forward this assessment to Welsh Language services – 
welshlanguageofficer@rctcbc.gov.uk and the Consultation and Engagement team – consultation@rctcbc.gov.uk in the first instance for some initial 
guidance and feedback. 
 
As part of the Welsh Language, Equalities and Socio Economic Duty Impact Assessment Process all proposals that fall within the definition of 
Significant Key Decision should present at the Officer Review Panel. This panel is made up of officers from across Council Services and acts as a 
critical friend before your report is finalised and published for SLT/Cabinet approval.  
 
If this proposal is a Key Strategic Decision please forward your completed (Stage 1>6) impact assessment, policy proposal/report and consultation 
report to CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk for an Officer Review Panel to be organised to discuss your proposal. See our guidance document for more 
information on what a Significant Key Decision is.  
 
It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable Welsh language 
considerations wherever possible. Please ensure you update the relevant sections below in collaboration with the relevant departments.  

Welsh Language Services Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following Welsh 
Language Services feedback 

TBC. TBC.  TBC. 
Officer Review Panel Comments Date 

Considered 
Brief description of any amendments made following Officer 

Review Panel considerations 
TBC.  TBC.  TBC.  

T
udalen 116

mailto:welshlanguageofficer@rctcbc.gov.uk
mailto:CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx


 

Consultation Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following consultation 

TBC.  TBC.  TBC.  
Stage 5 – Monitoring, Evaluating and Reviewing  
 
How and who will you monitor the impact and effectiveness of the proposal? 
The Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates Team will monitor 
this proposal throughout the design development period, construction period and operational period holding monthly review meetings.  
Stage 6 – Summary of Impacts for the Proposal  
 
Provide below a summary of the impact assessment, to include some of the main positive and negative impacts along with an overview of actions 
taken since the impact assessment to better contribute to more positive impacts. This summary must be included in the Welsh Language 
Considerations section of the SLT/Cabinet report template. It is not suitable to only write ‘please see full report at Appendix x’ in the body of the 
report. The impact assessment must be published alongside the report. 
A Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been completed and the main findings are as follows: 
 
The proposal is to open a new 3 to 19 special school in RCT with a capacity for 180 pupils however this will be subject to undertaking further feasibility 
and progressing with the detailed design of the new school. It is proposed that the new school will be built in the Clydach Vale area of Tonypandy, 
and it will open no later than the 2026 academic year. The new school is in addition to the four special schools across RCT. In addition, it is proposed 
to introduce catchment areas for special schools. 
 
The new school will be built in accordance with the current requirements of planning and building control legislation and will be fully accessible and 
compliant with the Equality Act 2010. Accommodation will consist of: 
 
• Modern, flexible learning environments for all pupils, a hall/dining area, and specialist teaching and learning areas to cater for the needs of all 

pupils.  
• A hydro-therapy pool plus other sensory and stimulating specialist equipment. 
• A dedicated area within so that the local community will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 
• Enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum activities. 
• Traffic management systems including on-site pupil bus drop off, and on-site staff parking. 
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that the local community 
will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. 
 
Although the new school will be English medium, Welsh is taught as part of the curriculum and all pupils will benefit from having the opportunity to be 
taught in brand new facilities fit for the 21st century.  

T
udalen 117



 

 
The Council aims to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the Welsh language through purposeful planning to promote the informal use of the 
Welsh language amongst pupils inside and outside schools. Facilitating the use of the Welsh language across the curriculum and in wider contexts 
in schools, to ensure a continuum of linguistic progression to support pupils in the transition between key stages, offers all pupils the opportunity to 
become fully bilingual and aligns with the Curriculum for Wales 2022. The new school will be encouraged and supported to do this through the 
achievement of the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Welsh Language Charter, a framework to promote and increase the use of Welsh. 
 
The new school will be a fully accessible and fully integrated community school. A dedicated area will be designed within so that the local community 
will be allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the school day. The headteacher of the new school will be encouraged and supported 
to consider using these facilities to increase participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity to parents/carers and other members of 
the community to attend Welsh medium learning classes for adults and/or other opportunities for community engagement through the medium of 
Welsh. 
 
This could contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP. 
Stage 7 – Sign Off  

Name of Officer 
completing the 

WLIA 

Lisa Howell, Service Director Name: Andrea Richards. 

Position 21st Century Schools Business 
and School Organisation 
Manager.  

I recommend that the proposal: 
(Highlight decision) 

Is implemented with no amendments 

 Is implemented taking into account the 
mitigating actions outlined 

Is rejected due to disproportionate negative 
impacts on the Welsh language 

Signature  Service Director Signature  
Date 07.06.2023. Date  

 

  

T
udalen 118



 
 
 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

14TH SEPTEMBER 2023 
 

CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL LEARNING 
NEEDS MAINSTREAM LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS PROVISION WITHIN 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND 
COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To pre-scrutinise the outcome of the recent consultation in respect of the 

proposal to realign the mainstream Learning Support Class (LSC) provision 
within Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT). 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that: 
 
2.1 Members undertake pre scrutiny of the report (attached at Appendix A & 1), 

thus providing Scrutiny with an opportunity to comment upon this matter prior 
to consideration by the Cabinet. 
 

2.1. Request the Service Director for Democratic Services & Communications to 
feedback the comments, observations and/or recommendations of members to 
Cabinet Committee. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

3.1 To provide Scrutiny with the opportunity to undertake pre-scrutiny of the 
outcome of the recent consultation in respect of the proposal to realign the 
mainstream LSC provision within RCT, prior to its consideration by Cabinet. 
 

3.2 The need to provide Members with information on the outcome of the recent 
consultation in respect of the proposal to realign the mainstream LSC provision 
within RCT, in order to progress the proposal in accordance with the process 
outlined in Welsh Government legislative guidance (School Organisation Code 

Tudalen 119

Agendwm 5



(2nd Edition) (011/2018) so that an improved continuum of ALN provision can 
be achieved in RCT. 
 

4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1. At the meeting of Cabinet held on 3rd May 2023, approval was given to begin 

a process of formal consultation on a proposal to realign the mainstream 
Learning Support Class (LSC) provision within Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT).  

 
4.2. The consultation in respect of these proposals was undertaken between 5th 

June and 14th July 2023 under the arrangements outlined in the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code. These arrangements stipulate that a 
Consultation Report must be prepared prior to the publication of any statutory 
notices which will progress the proposal. It further states that this Report must 
be published within 26 weeks of the end of the consultation period, which is 12th 
January 2024 in this instance. 
 

4.3. The Cabinet report appended at Appendix A, includes the Consultation 
Response Report at Appendix 1 which provides details on the purpose of the 
Consultation Report, who was consulted with, what was consulted on, the 
consultation process, the summary of responses to the consultation, summary 
of key these raised and LA responses, Estyn’s response to the proposal from 
RCT regarding LSCs, which would take affect from April 2024 and the 
conclusion. 
 

4.4. It is Estyn’s expectation that the inspection report is scrutinised in full by the 
Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee, so that the necessary support and 
challenge can be provided. 

 
5. PRE-SCRUTINY 
 
5.1. Members are reminded that the purpose of pre scrutiny activity is to influence 

the decisions before they are made. The Education and Inclusion Services 
Scrutiny Committee continues to have the opportunity to explore and comment 
on a number of reports in advance of Cabinet’s consideration to bring a different 
perspective to the decisions made and enabling Cabinet decisions to be more 
informed. 
 

6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS/SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 
 
6.1. An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of this 

report are for information purposes only. 
 

7. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1. There are no Welsh language implications arising from this report. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 120



8. CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT 
 
8.1. The involvement of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee in the pre-

scrutiny exercise will contribute to the quality and robustness of Cabinet 
decision-making. 
 

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1. There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 

 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
10.1. The report has been prepared in accordance with paragraph Part 4 of the 

Constitution (Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules). 
 

11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1. The undertaking of pre scrutiny by the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny 

Committee in respect of the outcome of the recent consultation in respect of the 
proposal to realign the mainstream LSC provision within RCT, will ensure that 
the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee fully evaluates the 
effectiveness of its overview and scrutiny function. 

 
  

Tudalen 121



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

 

as amended by 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

 

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL LEARNING 

NEEDS MAINSTREAM LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS PROVISION WITHIN 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 

14TH SEPTEMBER 2023 

 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 122



APPENDIX A 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
PRIVATE CABINET  

 
 11TH SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL LEARNING 

NEEDS MAINSTREAM LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS PROVISION WITHIN 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES IN 
DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION, YOUTH 
PARTICIPATION AND WELSH LANGUAGE (COUNCILLOR R LEWIS) 
 
AUTHOR: Ceri Jones, Head of Inclusion Services   
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to advise Members of the outcome of the recent 

consultation in respect of the proposal to realign the mainstream Learning Support 
Class (LSC) provision within Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT). 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 
 
2.1 Note the information contained within the attached consultation report, which 

includes a summary of items of correspondence received during the consultation 
exercise and notes of the various meetings held. 

 
2.2 Agree to progress the following proposals to realign the mainstream Learning 

Support Class (LSC) provision within Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT) by issuing the 
appropriate statutory notices.  

 
2.2.1 Proposal 1 (amended): To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC 

at Penrhiwceiber Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School 
taking effect from September 2024. (Amended from April 2024). 
 

2.2.2 Proposal 2 (amended): To transfer the LSC for pupils in Years 3-6 with 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community Primary 
School to create a through provision in the Primary Phase at Perthcelyn 
Primary School taking effect from September 2024. (Amended from April 
2024). 

 
2.2.3 Proposal 3: To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention 

LSC for pupils under statutory school age with significant presenting needs 
at Abercynon Primary School taking effect from April 2024. 

 Tudalen 123



 

2.2.4 Proposal 4: To establish two Welsh medium primary phase LSCs at the 
new Welsh medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant 
ALN taking effect from September 2024. 

 
2.2.5 Proposal 5: To establish one LSC for pupils in years 7-11 with ASD at the 

new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site taking effect 
from September 2024. 

 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1  To progress the proposal in accordance with the process outlined in Welsh 

 Government legislative guidance (School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) 
(011/2018) so that an improved continuum of ALN provision can be achieved in 
RCT.  

 
3.2  To ensure that the Council undertakes its statutory duties in relation to the 

 ALNET Act (2018) that requires local authorities to keep under review the 
 arrangements for supporting pupils with ALN within their area and consider 
 whether these are sufficient, including a statutory requirement to take all 
 reasonable steps to create a bilingual system of support for pupils with ALN.  

 
3.3  To support the Council’s delivery of its Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 

 (WESP) and the Education Directorate Strategic Plan 2022-2025. 
 
4. BACKGROUND 

 
4.1     Members will recall that, at the meeting of Cabinet held on 3rd May 2023, approval 

was given to begin a process of formal consultation on a proposal to realign the 
mainstream Learning Support Class (LSC) provision within Rhondda Cynon Taf 
(RCT).  

 
4.2 For pupils with more significant needs for whom it is challenging to make 

appropriate learning provision within mainstream education, more specialist 
placements are required. RCT has a range of specialist provisions which includes: 
45 LSCs, 2 Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) and 4 Special Schools. RCT has an 
excellent range of LSC provisions attached to mainstream schools. However, it 
has become increasingly apparent that the range of LSC provisions currently 
available is disproportionate to the level of need in some areas.  

 
4.3  Data analysis confirms that:   

 

• there is currently insufficient provision in the secondary sector for pupils 
with ASD; 

• the absence of cross phase specialist provision on some school sites 
means that some learners experience unnecessary transitions; 

• one LSC would benefit from relocation to fully accessible schools that have 
benefited from the Sustainable Communities for Learning investment; 

• there is insufficient provision to meet the needs of learners in the early 
years. 
 

In light of these findings, the proposals for change seek to achieve the following 
aims: 
 

• developing a robust continuum of provision that effectively addresses a 
wide range of need across all year groups; Tudalen 124



 

• avoiding unnecessary transition across schools by establishing cross 
phase specialist provisions within individual schools where possible; 

• establishing LSC provisions in fully accessible settings that provide a 
learning environment fit for the 21st Century. 

 
4.4 Implementing this proposal will be of benefit to Welsh medium pupils with 

significant ALN across RCT and will ensure greater equality and access to 
specialist provision. The priority for the Education and Inclusion Service 
Directorate is to continue to focus on driving up standards in schools and to 
improve the outcomes for all children and young people. In light of the Welsh 
Government ALN Transformation Agenda and the Council’s vision to increase the 
number of Welsh medium learners in its schools by responding proactively to both 
national and local strategies, such  as the Welsh Government Welsh Language 
Strategy: Cymraeg 2050, Rhondda Cynon Taf’s  Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan and the current 21st Century Schools plan to increase and improve Welsh 
medium provision RCT, it is essential to enhance current Welsh medium ALN 
provision within RCT. 

 
4.5 There is a clear need to expand our Early Years and Key Stage 3/4 ASD 

provisions. In addition, the current location of the Penrhiwceiber LSC is felt to be 
no longer suitable to meet the needs of the new curriculum within a fully accessible 
environment.  The proposed relocation of Penrhiwceiber LSC will ensure that 
pupils have access to premises which are more accessible and better equipped 
to meet a range of needs. The proposal will ensure greater compliance with the 
Equality Act 2010 and access to significantly improved premises which have 
benefited from the Council’s School Modernisation Programme and investment. 

 
4.6 The relocation of the LSC for pupils with ASD from Abercynon Community Primary 

to Perthcelyn Community Primary will eliminate unnecessary transition for pupils 
needing specialist LSC provision throughout the primary phase, providing equity 
for them to remain in one setting until transition to secondary provision in line with 
mainstream peers. 

 
4.7 In Abercynon LSC, the number of pupils attending the LSCs in September 2023 

that will be affected by the proposed relocation is very low: 6 pupils (1 x year 6, 5 
x year 4). This age profile of these learners by September 2024, the proposed 
implementation date of these proposals, will be 5 x Year 5 learners.  

 In the event of parental opposition to a relocation of their children’s provision to 
the proposed Perthcelyn LSC, supported mainstream placements in the existing 
settings can be explored in partnership with the school and Access and Inclusion 
Service staff.    

 
           In Penrhiwceibr LSC there are currently 9 pupils (1 x year 1, 4 x reception, 4 x 

nursery). However, placements at Penrhiwceibr Observation and Assessment 
Class are intended to be short-term and it is highly likely that the majority of the 9 
pupils referenced above will have moved on to their long-term educational 
placement before the proposed implementation date of September 2024.  

 
5. CONSULTATION  
 
5.1 The consultation in respect of these proposals was undertaken between 5th June 

and 14th July 2023 under the arrangements outlined in the Welsh Government’s 
School Organisation Code. These arrangements stipulate that a Consultation 
Report must be prepared prior to the publication of any statutory notices which will 

Tudalen 125



 

progress the proposal. It further states that this Report must be published within 
26 weeks of the end of the consultation period, which is 12th January 2024 in this 
instance. 

 
5.2 The Consultation Report in respect of this particular proposal is attached at 

Appendix 1. A number of key issues that were raised in the consultation feedback 
have been identified as recurring themes to which the LA has provided a collective 
response in section 6 of the Consultation Report. For details of correspondence 
received please refer to Appendix 1a. Information in respect of meetings held to 
discuss the proposals, with copies of the notes taken at these meetings that 
outline the main areas of discussion are included at Appendix 1b.  

 
5.3 It is noted that there has been a good response to this consultation which 

consisted of 127 completed questionnaires in relation to all proposals, 12 
letters/emails and 3 petitions were received in relation to Proposal 2 (the relocation 
of the Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) Learning Support Class at Abercynon 
Community Primary School to Perthcelyn Primary School).  A further online 
petition in relation to Proposal 2 was submitted after the deadline and has not 
been accounted for.  53 Pupil School Council representatives attended meetings 
with Access and Inclusion Service staff and approximately 20 parents attended 
open evenings held to provide further information. 

 
5.4 Responses to the consultation are summarised below. All responses have been 

shared with Cabinet for full disclosure and transparency.  For further detail refer 
to the Consultation Response Report: 

 
• Proposal 1 - To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at 

Penrhiwceiber Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School of 
the 126 submissions received in relation to this proposal: 28 responders 
agreed to the proposal, 85 disagreed and 13 were unsure how to respond. 

 
• Proposal 2 - To transfer the LSC for pupils in years 3-6 with ASD at 

Abercynon Community Primary School to create a through provision in the 
Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary School of the 127 submissions 
received in relation to this proposal: 45 responders agreed to the proposal, 
88 disagreed and 9 were unsure how to respond. 

 
• Proposal 3 - To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention 

LSC for pupils under statutory school age with significant presenting needs 
at Abercynon Primary School of the 121 submissions received in relation 
to this proposal 45 responders agreed to the proposal, 52 disagreed and 
24 were unsure how to respond. 

 
• Proposal 4 - To establish two Welsh medium primary phase LSCs at the 

new Welsh medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant 
ALN of 120 submissions received in relation to this proposal 54 responders 
agreed to the proposal, 36 disagreed and 30 were unsure how to respond. 

 
• Proposal 5 - To establish one LSC for pupils in years 7-11 with ASD at the 

new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site of the 119 
submissions received in relation to this proposal 54 responders agreed to 
the proposal, 37 disagreed and 28 were unsure how to respond. 

 

Tudalen 126



 

5.5  The following key themes emerged from the consultation for further detail and 
responses refer to the Consultation Response Report: 

 
• Proposal 1: Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber Primary 

School to relocate to Abercynon Community Primary School. 
o The proposal was seen as positive with the proposed move providing 

access to enhanced facilities and resources for pupils in the LSC; 
o Concerns were raised regarding the number of transitions pupils need 

to undertake. However, it is highly likely that existing learners placed in 
short-term placements in the Penrhiwceiber LSC will have secured long 
term placements by the proposed implementation date.  

 
• Proposal 2: LSC for pupils in years 3-6 with ASD at Abercynon Primary 

Community School to relocate to Perthcelyn Primary School to create a 
through Primary Phase provision. 
o Parents felt that pupils attending the LSC in Abercynon Community 

Primary School had access to a variety of community resources that 
would be lost should the proposal be progressed; 

o Much praise has been given to the current provision and support within 
both Abercynon and Perthcelyn Learning Support Classes; 

o Through provision for pupils with ASD provision were widely welcomed 
however the location of the class was questioned. Parents of pupils 
currently attending the LSC in Abercynon wish for the LSC to remain 
and to relocate Perthcelyn LSC to Abercynon.  Parents of pupils 
currently attending the LSC at Perthcelyn are in support of the proposal 
to relocate the ASD provision from Abercynon to Perthcelyn to ensure 
through primary phase provision is available to their children without 
the need to transition further.  

 
• Proposal 3: One Early Years Assessment and Intervention LSC for pupils 

under statutory school age with significant presenting needs at Abercynon 
Primary School: 
o Positive responses were received regarding the increased capacity the 

LSC would provide although responders queried whether further 
capacity was needed; 

o Mixed feedback was received regarding the location of the proposed 
new LSC provision some responses were in support of the Early Years 
LSC being established at Abercynon whilst other responses suggested 
the LSC should be established at a different location. 

 
• Proposal 4: Two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh 

medium primary school at Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN: 
o Welsh medium LSCs are welcomed but concerns were raised relating 

to the LSC not having a specific ALN designation. 
 

• Proposal 5: One ASD LSC provision for pupils in years 7–11 at the new 3-
16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site: 
o The increase in Key Stage 3/4 provision was seen as positive, however 

responders felt further LSCs are needed.   
 
6. THE STATUTORY PROCESS 
 Tudalen 127



 

6.1  The statutory notices for this proposal will refer to the: 
 

• Proposal 1: Relocation of the Observation and Assessment LSC at 
Penrhiwceiber Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School 
taking effect from September 2024. 
 

• Proposal 2: Transfer of the LSC for pupils in years 3-6 with Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community Primary School to 
create a through provision in the Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary 
School taking effect from September 2024. 

 
• Proposal 3: Establishment of one Early Years Assessment and 

Intervention LSC for pupils under statutory school age with significant 
presenting needs at Abercynon Primary School. The proposal will take 
effect from April 2024. 

 
• Proposal 4: Establishment of two Welsh medium primary phase LSCs at 

the new Welsh medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with 
significant ALN. The proposal will take effect from September 2024. 

 
• Proposal 5: Establishment of one LSC for pupils in years 7-11 with ASD at 

the new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site taking effect 
from September 2024. 

 
6.2  The Statutory Notices will, if agreed, be published on 9th October 2023 and will 

allow for a 28 day period for objections, ending on 5th November 2023. If any 
objections are received, in accordance with the aforementioned Code an 
Objections Report will be prepared. This matter will then be reported to a future 
meeting of Cabinet, possibly in December 2023, for Members to receive and 
consider the Objections Report and to make a final decision on this proposal. 

 
7. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The relevant Equality Impact Assessment and Community Impact Assessment 

were published on the Council’s website together with the consultation document 
that outlined the proposal in detail. The assessments have been updated following 
the consultation. Copies of the updated assessments are attached as Appendix 2 
and Appendix 3 to this report. 

 
8. WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 A Welsh Language Impact Assessment has been prepared in respect of this 

proposal and published on the Council’s website as a part of the Consultation 
Documentation in accordance with the requirements of Welsh Government’s 
School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) (the “Code”). A copy of the 
updated assessment is attached as Appendix 4. 

 
9.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 If the proposal to realign LSC provision within RCT is authorised to proceed, 

resources will be directed to address the identified gaps in existing provision.  
 
9.2  The proposals will address capacity pressures in relation to pupils with significant 

ALN in the Early Years and years 7–11 (formerly Key Stage 3/4), reduce the Tudalen 128



 

number of transitions necessary for pupils accessing Primary Phase LSC 
provision and ensure a higher number of LSCs are situated within 21st Century 
School environments.  The proposals also seek to address the need to create 
additional Welsh medium specialist LSC provision, in line with the requirements 
of the Additional Learning Needs Education Tribunal (ALNET) Act (2018) to 
develop a bilingual Additional Learning Needs (ALN) system. 

 
9.3 Secondary schools hosting LSCs for pupils with ASD are funded via the Council 

for one specialist teacher and two learning support assistants at an approximate 
cost of £131,500k per annum per class. Primary schools hosting Early Years 
LSC’s are funded for one teacher and one learning support assistant at an 
approximate cost of £97,600k per annum.  Primary phase Welsh provisions will 
be funded for one teacher and one learning support assistant at an approximate 
cost of £97,600k each per annum. To ensure the LA is able to meet the needs of 
its ALN pupils, funding of approximately £424k is required annually and will be 
incorporated in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Planning arrangements. 

 
9.4 The creation and relocation of the LSCs will incur a transportation cost in line with 

the Council’s Learner Travel Policy, however this increase in cost is seen as a 
necessity in order to enhance provision for RCT’s most vulnerable pupils. Costs 
cannot be quantified at this time as placements are pupil led however given that 
there will be a net increase in the number of LSC provisions additional funding is 
likely to be required and will be incorporated in the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Planning arrangements. 

 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
10.1  Section 316A of the Education Act 1996 specifies that children with SEN/ALN 

should normally be educated in mainstream schools if this is compatible with them 
receiving the special educational/additional learning provision that their learning 
difficulty requires; the efficient education of other children, and the efficient use of 
resources. 

 
10.2 Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 also requires local authorities to ensure 

that SEN/ALN provision is kept under review. The ALN Code for Wales (2021) 
places a statutory duty upon the LA to keep under review the overall Additional 
Learning Provision (ALP) available in its area and supporting arrangements, to 
ensure provision is sufficient to meet the overall needs of its population of learners 
with ALN and that provision is available in Welsh. 

  
11.  LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT 
 
11.1 The proposals will ensure that two of the Council’s three key priorities will be met.  

These include: 
• Economy: Building a strong economy. 
• People: Promoting independence and positive lives for everyone. 

 
11.2 There are links to RCTCBC’s Education and Inclusion Services Strategic Plan for 

2022 to 2025 and its mission: ‘To deliver equity and excellence in Education and 
enhanced well-being for all’. The proposal will also support delivery against the 
five strategic priorities, most notably: 

Tudalen 129



 

 Strategic Priority 2: Supporting educational settings to deliver a 
transformational curriculum, high quality teaching and learning and 
improved outcomes for all. 

 Strategic Priority 3: Ensuring equity and support for vulnerable learners and 
their families. 

 Strategic Priority 5: Delivering 21st Century Learning Environments and 
innovative services for our learners and communities. 

 
11.3 The proposals will ensure there is renewed capacity to focus on prevention  which 

is a key statutory requirement of the Wellbeing and Future Generations Act and a 
key element of the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

 
11.4 Due regard has been made to all seven wellbeing goals and the five ways of 

working, as contained within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 which requires the Council to think about the long-term impact of decisions 
on communities to prevent consistent issues such as poverty, health inequalities 
and climate change. 

 
11.5 The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the seven wellbeing    

goals by: 
 

• A Healthier Wales – Accommodation at the proposed host schools will 
continue to support opportunities for enhanced outdoor spaces. As well as 
supporting the full range of curriculum activities these facilities are also 
available for community use.  

 

• A More Equal Wales – Providing enhanced opportunities for pupils to 
access specialist provision. 

 

• A Wales of More Cohesive Communities – All host schools are fully 
accessible and integrated community school with a dedicated area 
designed within so that the local community can safely use the facilities, 
both during and after the school day. 

 
• A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language – 

establishing new primary phase Welsh medium LSC provision will support 
of the Council’s WESP. 

 

• A Globally Responsive Wales – pupils will have access to extra-curricular 
activities which encourage healthy lifestyles for the school and wider 
community.  

 
11.6 The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the five ways of working 

by: 
 

• Long Term – To ensure that the Council undertakes its statutory duties in 
relation to the ALNET Act (2018) that requires local authorities to keep 
under review the arrangements for supporting pupils with ALN within their 
area and consider whether these are sufficient, including a statutory 
requirement to take all reasonable steps to create a bilingual system of 
support for pupils with ALN. 

 

• Prevention – The Council believes that the proposal represents the best 
opportunity to safeguard and sustain educational standards for the future 
and provides a platform for further improvement. 

 

Tudalen 130

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


 

• Integrations – Host schools are fully accessible and integrated community 
schools.  

 

• Collaboration – The Council will continue to work effectively with internal 
and external partners to ensure the changes brought about by these 
proposals will meet the short and long term needs of pupils, parents/carers, 
staff and the wider community. 

 

• Involvement –The proposal is made in accordance with the School 
Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) and seeks the views of a 
prescribed list of stakeholders including pupils, parents/carers, staff and the 
wider community. As such face to face meetings will be arranged with the 
staff, school councils and governing bodies. 

 
11.7 As stated in 7.1, an Equality Impact Assessment which further details the 

contribution of the proposal to the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 is being prepared. 

 
11.8 The information in the report contributes to the priorities within RCTCBC’s 

Corporate Plan, ‘Making a Difference’. 
 

11.9  The proposals will also assist the directorate in achieving Outcome 6 of the Welsh 
in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), which is to increase the provision of Welsh 
medium education for learners with ALN.  

 
12. STRATEGIC OR RELEVANT TO ELECTORAL WARDS 
 
12.1 Given the considerable changes in Wales in relation to the statutory provision 

required to meet the needs of learners with the implementation of the ALNET Act 
(2018) and the ALN Code (2021) the above proposals to secure additional 
capacity and resources will ensure that the Council successfully delivers on its 
statutory obligations, and as such is a strategic proposal relevant to all wards. 

 
13. CONCLUSION 
 
13.1 The proposals to realign LSC provision will ensure that RCT has undertaken its 

statutory duty under the ALNET Act (2018) to review arrangements for supporting 
pupils with ALN within the county borough and has identified necessary steps to 
ensure the sufficiency of its provision for pupils with significant ALN who require 
specialist placement.  

 
13.2 The proposals support the delivery of the RCT WESP and one of the core aims of 

the ALNET Act by working towards the development of a fully bilingual ALN 
system within the county borough. 

 
13.3 The proposals will ensure greater compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and 

access to significantly improved premises which have benefited from the 21st 
Century Schools Modernisation Programme and investment. 

 
13.4 Following consideration of the responses to the consultation, it is recommended 

that Members agree to the immediate publication of the attached Consultation 
Report and agree to give officers approval to publish the appropriate Statutory 
Notices to progress with the proposals, noting the modification made to the 
implementation dates of Proposals 1 and 2. 

 Tudalen 131

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-10/school-organisation-code-second-edition.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


 

 

Other Information: 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee: 
Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee 

 
Contact Officer: 
Ceri Jones, Head of Inclusion Services 

 

 

Tudalen 132



 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

A DISCUSSION PAPER FOR A PRIVATE MEETING OF THE CABINET 
 

11TH SEPTEMBER 2023 

 
 
 

Item:  CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL 
LEARNING NEEDS MAINSTREAM LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS 
PROVISION WITHIN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers 
Appendix 1  – Consultation Report 

 
 
 
Officer to contact: 
Ceri Jones, Head of Inclusion Services 

 

 

 

Tudalen 133



Tudalen wag



Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN 
ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS MAINSTREAM 

LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS PROVISION WITHIN 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JULY 2023 

 

 

Consultation Report 

CYFLAWNI TEGWCH A RHAGORIAETH MEWN ADDYSG A GWELL LLES I BAWB 

EQUITY AND EXCELLENCE IN EDUCATION AND ENHANCED WELLBEING FOR ALL 

 

Tudalen 135



 

 
 

 

Proposal: to re-align Learning Support Class (LSC) provision within Rhondda 
Cynon Taf 

 

1. Purpose of the Consultation Report 
 

This report is prepared in accordance with the Welsh Government’s School Organisation 
Code.  Its purpose is to inform the outcome of the consultation held during the period 7th 
June and 14th July 2023 between all stakeholders and interested parties listed below. 

 

2. Who did we consult?   
 

A copy of a consultation document which fully outlined and explained our proposal was 
sent to the following stakeholders. The document was also published on the Council 
website at www.rctcbc.gov.uk/schoolconsultations 
 

• The Governing Bodies, parents, 
carers and staff of Abercynon 
Community Primary School, 
Penrhiwceiber Primary School, 
Perthcelyn Primary School 

• The Temporary Governing Body 
of the new 3-16 school on the 
Hawthorn Primary/High site and 
the new Welsh medium through 
school. 

• Other Governing Bodies of 
neighbouring primary and 
secondary schools  

• School Councils of Abercynon 
Community Primary, Perthcelyn 
Primary, Penrhiwceiber Primary, 
Heol-Y-Celyn, Hawthorn Primary, 
Hawthorn High 

• The Church in Wales and Roman 
Catholic Diocesan Authorities  

• The Governing Body of Coleg Y 
Cymoedd  

• The Governing Body of the 
University of South Wales  

• Welsh Minister for Education and 
Skills  

• Assembly Members for all 
constituencies and regional 
areas serving Rhondda Cynon 
Taf  

• Members of Parliament for the 
Rhondda, Pontypridd and Cynon 
Valley  

• Estyn  
• Cwm Taf Local Health Board  
• Teaching and Support staff trade 

unions  
• Central South Consortium Joint 

Education Service  
• South Wales Police and Crime 

Commissioner  
• The Early Years and Childcare 

Partnership  
• South East Wales Transport 

Association  
• The local Communities First 

Partnerships  
• The Welsh Language 

Commissioner  
• Neighbouring local authorities  

Tudalen 136

http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/schoolconsultations


 

 
 

3. What did we consult on?  
 

The proposals consulted on included: 

Relocating key LSC provisions to ensure cross phase provisions in single sited, 
accessible school buildings. It was proposed that the following relocations take 
effect from April 2024:  
 

• Proposal 1: Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber Primary 
School to relocate to Abercynon Community Primary School. 
 

• Proposal 2: LSC for pupils Years 3-6 with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at 
Abercynon Primary Community School to relocate to Perthcelyn Primary School 
to create a through Primary Phase provision. 

 
Developing new LSC provisions. It was proposed that the new LSCs established 
from September 2024:  
 

• Proposal 3: One Early Years Assessment & Intervention LSC for pupils under 
statutory school age with significant presenting needs at Abercynon Primary 
School. 

• Proposal 4: Two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh medium 
primary school at Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN.  

• Proposal 5: One ASD LSC provision for pupils in Years 7–11 at the new 3-16 
school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site. 

 

4. The consultation process  
 

All stakeholders identified in section 2 were sent electronic copies of the consultation 
documentation with the consultation proforma link and those that requested paper copies 
received them. All feedback received are detailed in Appendix 1a. Consultation meetings 
were held for the staff, parents and pupils of the affected schools, the details and dates 
of these meetings are attached as Appendix 1b.  Summary notes taken during a range 
of consultation events are detailed in Appendix 1c. These provide a record of questions 
raised, comments and statements made, with responses provided where appropriate.  
 

 
5. Summary of responses to consultation 

 
It is noted that there has been a good response to this statutory consultation process; 
127 completed questionnaires, 12 letters/emails and 3 petitions.  A further online petition 
was submitted by the Perthcelyn Community, however it has not been considered as it 
was received after the deadline.  
 
Table 1 below reports the number of responses received to each element of the proposal, 
please note that the number of disagree responses relating to the LSC for Key Stage 3/4 
ASD pupils, the 2 proposed Welsh medium provisions and the relocation of 

Tudalen 137



 

 
 

Penrhiwceiber LSC could potentially be distorted as nearly all comments received relate 
to the proposed changes to the LSCs at Abercynon Community Primary and Perthcelyn 
Primary Schools and not the proposed addition of Welsh medium and a Key Stage 3/4 
ASD provision.  
 
In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duties, the 
Council has a legal duty to look at how its decisions impact on people because they may 
have particular characteristics. So as part of seeking views on the school organisation 
proposals, the consultation also included a question in compliance with the Council’s 
statutory obligations asking ‘how would the Council’s proposal affect you? All those that 
responded to this question stated that there would be a positive or no impact on them as 
a result of implementing the proposals. 

In addition, the consultation survey, in accordance with the Welsh Standards (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, also included further questions in compliance with the Council’s 
statutory obligations which asked could the proposals impact opportunities for people to 
use and promote the Welsh Language (Positive or Negative) and if in any way, they treat 
the Welsh Language less favourably than the English Language? Also asked were how 
positive effects could be increased, or negative effects be decreased? All those that 
responded to these questions stated that there would be a positive or no impact on the 
Welsh Language as a result of implementing the proposals. 

Table1: Responses to the proposed realignment of LSC provision within RCT 
Proposal Communication Received 

 
Nature of Responses 

Online 
Questionnaire 

Letter/
Email 

Petition Agree Disagree Not Sure 

Observation and Assessment LSC 
at Penrhiwceiber Primary School to 
relocate to Abercynon Community 
Primary School. 

126 0 0 28 85 13 

LSC for pupils Years 3-6 with 
Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) 
at Abercynon Primary Community 
School to relocate to Perthcelyn 
Primary School to create a through 
Primary Phase provision. 

127 
 

12 3 
 

45 88 9 

One Early Years Assessment & 
Intervention LSC for pupils under 
statutory school age with significant 
presenting needs at Abercynon 
Primary School. 

121 0 0 45 52 24 

Two Primary Phase Welsh medium 
LSCs at the new Welsh medium 
primary school at Rhydyfelin for 
pupils with significant ALN.  

120 0 0 54 36 30 

One Autistic Spectrum Disorder 
LSC provision for pupils in Years 
7–11 at the new 3-16 school on the 
Hawthorn Primary/High School 
site. 

119 0 0 54 37 28 

Tudalen 138



 

 
 

The table below reports the number and type of responses received for each individual 
proposal within the consultation document: 

 
6. Summary of Key Themes Raised and LA Responses 

 
In accordance with the Code, a summary of the responses received are detailed in the 
table below and where issues have been raised, these have been responded to, where 
applicable, by means of clarification with supporting reasons.  The key themes emerging 
from this analysis are detailed as follows: 
 

• Proposal 1: Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber Primary School 
to relocate to Abercynon Community Primary School 

 
Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 

 
Suggested the LSC at 
Penrhiwceiber Primary School is 
moved to Perthcelyn Primary 
School. 

This was considered however not all pupils in 
the Observation and Assessment class would 
require long term placement in an ASD LSC 
and would therefore not transition into the ASD 
LSC in Perthcelyn.  In addition, this would 
mean that pupils in Perthcelyn ASD LSC would 
still need to transition from Perthcelyn to the 
ASD LSC at Abercynon Primary School.  One 
of the underpinning aims of the proposal is to 
reduce the number of transitions incurred by 
pupils in ASD LSCs.  

Positive proposal to move the LSC 
from Penrhiwceiber to Abercynon 
due to the availability of enhanced 
facilities and resources for pupils in 
the LSC. 

Positive comments are noted and reflect the 
rationale for the proposed relocation.  

Suggested that the relocation is not 
undertaken. 

The facilities at Penrhiwceiber LSC are not 
appropriate to meet the requirements of the 
new curriculum for Wales and are not sited 
within a 21st Century learning environment. 

Number of transitions pupils are 
required to make. 
 
 

Concerns have been raised that the proposals 
will have a negative impact on pupils and may 
require some pupils to undertake additional 
transitions to another setting. However, it is 
important to highlight that all learners 
accessing Observation and Assessment 
placements do so on a short term basis whilst 
their needs are being assessed and identified 
to inform a longer term placement.  
 
Robust transition plans will be put in place for 
any pupils directly affected by the proposals, 
which will be planned collaboratively with 
parents and staff and involve additional support 

Tudalen 139



 

 
 

from specialist members of staff from Access 
and Inclusion.  

 
• Proposal 2: LSC for pupils Years 3-6 with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at 

Abercynon Primary Community School to relocate to Perthcelyn Primary School 
to create a through Primary Phase provision. 

Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 
 

Impact of proposals upon pupils due 
to transfer in September 2023 to the 
LSC currently based at Abercynon 
Community Primary School in 
September. 
 
 

The proposed change in provision has some 
implications for a small number of pupils 
(currently 3 pupils) who currently attend an 
affected LSC but were due to transfer to 
Abercynon LSC in September 2023. To 
minimise any potential negative impact upon 
individual pupils, parents have been provided 
with the option to move to Abercynon LSC or to 
remain in Perthcelyn with additional support 
provided within the current Perthcelyn ASD 
LSC in September 2023.   These arrangements 
will remain in place until a decision regarding 
the proposal has been reached, parents have 
been made fully aware of the implications of the 
option they have chosen.  

Positive provision and support within 
both Abercynon and Perthcelyn 
Learning Support Classes. 

The LA has been delighted to receive such 
positive feedback on the LSC provisions at 
Abercynon Community School and Perthcelyn 
Primary School.  It is evident that both classes 
are an integral part of the school community, 
staff and pupils are valued and that parents are 
delighted with the progress pupils are making.  

Community resources available 
within Abercynon Community 
Primary School. 

Significant emphasis has been raised in 
relation to the perceived advantages of one 
community to another.  All schools are required 
within the new Curriculum for Wales to develop 
their individual curriculum building on the 
opportunities available in the school’s locality. 
Due to this requirement each curriculum will be 
unique to each setting but there is an expected 
consistency in the range of learning 
opportunities and the specialist provision 
available in LSCs.  
 
It must be noted that both LSCs are thriving and 
as noted above it has been pleasing to receive 
such positive feedback regarding both 
provisions during this consultation. 

Perception within community that 
the proposals are as a result of 
letter submitted to the LA. 

The proposals have been undertaken in line 
with the Welsh Government requirement for 
each LA to review the sufficiency of its ALN 
provision and whilst feedback from the 
community is always welcomed and 

Tudalen 140



 

 
 

considered the proposals have not been 
unfairly influenced by specific community 
representations. A balanced and measured 
approach has been adopted with full 
transparency. 

Concerns regarding the quality of 
relocated LSC provision where LSC 
provision has currently been 
considered to be effective. 
 
 

The LA has no evidence to suggest that the 
mainstream school to which the LSCs is 
proposed to relocate will not be able to provide 
high quality, inclusive educational and extra-
curricular opportunities to the pupils in the LSC. 
The school currently successfully hosts a LSC 
and the proposed relocation would merely 
enhance their LSC provision. The proposed 
mainstream host school has a strong 
leadership team with established quality 
assurance processes within RCT and the wider 
Central South Consortium. Access and 
Inclusion also has well established Quality 
Assurance processes for monitoring and 
challenging the performance of all of its 
individual LSCs and this process would 
continue following the proposed relocation of 
provision. 

Through provision for pupils with 
ASD provision were widely 
welcomed however the location of 
the class was questioned. 

The proposed relocation will ensure that pupils 
will be able to have cross phase provisions 
within a setting that has well established LSC 
provision.  The proposal will also create 
enhanced opportunities for collaborative 
working between the LSCs within different 
phases which will benefit both pupils and staff 
in sharing expertise.  

Specific questions were raised in 
one consultation response: 
  
1. How will their children continue 

to have the same opportunities 
that they enjoy now? Such as 
weekly library visits, trips to the 
local shops, time at the organics 
garden, swimming once a week, 
horse riding attended through 
use of private minibus. 

 
2. What plans do the authority have 

to support children who have 
had negative experiences of 
Perthcelyn school in the past? 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
In line with new curriculum for Wales, the 
curriculum is designed by the school to build on 
the opportunities available in the school’s 
locality. This will be unique to each setting but 
there is an expected consistency in the range 
of learning opportunities and the specialist 
provision available in LSCs and beyond.  
 
 
As the current LSC staff will be moving with the 
pupils they will work with Access & Inclusion to 
ensure a robust transition process will be put in 
place. This will ensure there is continuity in 
staffing and support for pupils to support both 
their educational provision and wellbeing. The 
LSC will continue to be monitored 
collaboratively by school and the LA through its 

Tudalen 141



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3. What impact assessment has 

been done on the children with 
ASD who would be expected to 
move from their current school? 
(This is a small group of children 
who will be negatively impacted 
by the proposed changes and 
the parents felt very passionately 
that the proposals will have a 
devastating effect on this small 
group of children.) 

 
 
 
 
4. What provision for 7-11 year olds 

will be made at the new 
provision in Perthcelyn school? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Will the children have the same 

yard opportunities and space 
and open access to outdoors? 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

6. Will the children still have open 
access to a Sensory room? 
 
 

7. How are the local authority 
consulting children and young 
people's views? 

 

quality assurance protocol.  No issues have 
been raised with the LA regarding negative 
experiences of pupils. Perthcelyn is recognised 
as a good school by the LA and Central South 
Consortium.  
 
All the required impact assessments have been 
undertaken, LSC re-alignment will inevitably 
cause some disruption and uncertainty for 
parents and pupils for a period of time, although 
experience from previous LSC realignments 
has been positive. Access & Inclusion will 
provide support to eradicate or minimise any 
potential negative impact. This will involve 
collaboration between current LSC staff, 
Access and Inclusion staff, pupils and their 
families to ensure a person-centred approach 
is taken to meeting the educational and 
wellbeing needs of pupils. 
 
 
The new LSC will be established and resourced 
in line with other LSC provisions within RCT.  A 
broad and balanced curriculum together with 
specialist additional learning provision will be 
provided to pupils in line with the requirements 
of the new Curriculum for Wales and ALN 
legislation and a consistent approach to LSC 
provision across the County Borough. 
 
There is a quality assurance process in place 
to ensure there is equity between the different 
LSCs although this is delivered in different 
ways in line with the characteristics of the 
school the class is placed in. Pupils will have 
the same opportunities to access yard and 
outdoor learning environments. Perthcelyn 
has the capacity to accommodate another 
LSC provision. 
 
Yes, there is a sensory room in Perthcelyn 
Primary School that can be utilised by all LSC 
pupils as required. 
 
7 sessions were held with the relevant School 
Councils throughout the consultation process. 
4 parents also submitted their child’s views 
(included in appendix 1a) 

Feedback regarding this proposal 
has been mixed.   
 

All possible connotations of the proposal were 
considered prior to publication of the 
consultation report.  The option presented are 

Tudalen 142



 

 
 

Parents of pupils currently attending 
the LSC in Abercynon wish for the 
KS2 LSC to remain and to relocate 
Perthcelyn FP LSC to Abercynon. 
 
Parents of pupils currently attending 
the LSC at Perthcelyn are in support 
of the proposal to relocate the ASD 
provision from Abercynon to 
Perthcelyn to ensure through 
primary phase provision is available 
to their children without the need to 
transition further.  

believed by officers to be the most appropriate 
use of resources to realign LSC provision within 
RCT.  

Number of transitions pupils are 
required to make. 
 
 

Concerns have been raised that the proposals 
will have a negative impact on pupils and may 
require some pupils to undertake additional 
transitions to another setting. This has been 
acknowledged as a potential negative impact 
but has been mitigated with the very small 
numbers the proposals will impact (see note 
above). At the time of the proposed 
implementation date in September 2024, 
based on the current intake, a total of 5 year 5 
pupils will be potentially affected by the move. 
To mitigate risks, a person centred approach 
will be adopted to support the transition. 
Parents/carers can also opt to keep their 
children in the same school but within a 
supported mainstream placement should they 
wish to do so.  
 
However, is important that a longer term view 
is adopted and a change considered due to the 
obvious benefits for future generations of 
learners. In the longer term the proposals will 
minimise unnecessary transition for pupils with 
significant needs, provide continuity in their 
educational placements and ensure that a 
higher number of specialist LSC provisions 
provide equity for pupils in LSCs so that they 
remain in one setting until transition to 
secondary provision in line with their 
mainstream peers. 
 
Robust transition plans will be put in place for 
any pupils directly affected by the proposals, 
which will be planned collaboratively with 
parents and staff and involve additional support 
from specialist members of staff from Access 
and Inclusion.  

 

Tudalen 143



 

 
 

• Proposal 3: One Early Years Assessment & Intervention LSC for pupils under 
statutory school age with significant presenting needs at Abercynon Primary 
School. 
 

Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 
 

Positive responses were received 
regarding the increased capacity the 
LSC would provide although 
responders queried as to if further 
capacity was needed. 

Positive comments are noted and reflect the 
rationale for the proposed enhancement of 
provision. 

Mixed feedback regarding the 
location of the proposed new LSC 
provision.  Responses were 
received in support of the Early 
Years LSC being established at 
Abercynon.  Feedback was also 
received regarding the LSC being 
established at different location. 

All possible connotations of the proposals were 
considered prior to publication of the 
consultation report.  The option presented is 
believed by officers to be the most appropriate 
use of resources to realign LSC provision within 
RCT. 

Additional transition of pupils was 
noted as a concern. 

Unfortunately, there appears to have been 
some confusion with the proposed additional 
LSC at Abercynon.  This is establishing a new 
LSC so therefore no pupils will be impacted by 
the proposal.  

 

• Proposal 4: Two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh medium 
primary school at Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN.  

Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 
 

General agreement with need for  
Welsh medium LSC provision. 
 

In general responses recognised the need for 
additional LCS provisions within RCT, although 
it was evident that some responses confused 
the different elements of the proposals 

Welsh medium LSCs are welcomed 
but concerns were raised relating to 
the LSC not having a specific ALN 
designation. 

Comment is noted.   
 
The LA is required by Welsh Government and 
the ALNET Act 2018 to continuously review 
both the sufficiency of its Additional Learning 
Provision for both English and Welsh medium 
learners and work proactively towards 
developing a fully bilingual ALN system over 
time.   
 
The proposed LSC will support pupils with 
significant additional learning needs.  There 
will be agreed Placement Criteria which will be 
written in consultation with the school.  It is 
recognised that the LSC may need more than 
1 classroom area for interventions to help 
support each learner and sufficient support 

Tudalen 144



 

 
 

and expertise to support pupils with a range of 
needs.  The needs of the pupils attending the 
provision will be closely monitored by the LA 
in collaboration with the school. 

 

• Proposal 5: One ASD LSC provision for pupils in Years 7–11 at the new 3-16 
school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site. 

Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 
 

The increase in Key Stage 3/4 
provision was seen as positive, 
however responders felt further 
LSCs are needed.   

In line with the ALN Code 2021, the LA has a 
statutory duty to review the sufficiency of its 
provision.  Therefore, further reviews will be 
undertaken to ensure LSC provision within 
RCT meets the demands of pupils with ALN. 

 
 The following general themes were raised across all proposals:  

Comments/Issue raised Response to comments/issued raised 
 

Rationale for change.  
 

This is based on: 
 
Data analysis of current and projected pupil 
need to ensure that the number of LSCs meet 
identified needs. 
 
The opportunity to enhance the number of 
specialist LSC provisions within mainstream 
settings to minimise unnecessary transition for 
pupils between specialist settings in different 
schools which would provide equity for pupils in 
need of specialist provision to remain in one 
school setting as is generally available to 
mainstream peers. 
 
To ensure that a larger number of LSCs and 
their pupils access specialist provision in 
school settings that have benefited from 
significant investment from the 21st Century 
Schools Modernisation Programme.  

Proposals are not in the pupil’s best 
interests. 

The LA considers that reducing the number of 
schools transitions is in the pupil’s best 
interests and the enhanced capacity gained 
from the additional LSCs will ensure more 
children that require specialist placements can 
access this in a timely manner.  However, we 
acknowledge there will be some short-term 
disruption to a small number of pupils during 
the transition period. 

 
 

Tudalen 145



 

 
 

8. Estyn’s response to the proposal from Rhondda Cynon Taf regarding LSCs 
which will take affect from April 2024.  

 
In compliance with the School Standards and Organisation 2018 School Organisation 
Code the Estyn’s response to the consultation has been provided in full in Appendix 2. 
Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code and the Act 
places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school organisation matters. 
Therefore, as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their opinion only on the overall 
merits of school organisation proposals. 
 
Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and have produced a 
response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional information 
such as data from Welsh Government and the views of the Regional Consortia which 
deliver school improvement services to the schools within the proposal. The response 
reports the following as a summary ‘Estyn welcomes the local authority's move to 
improve provision for pupils with additional learning needs (ALN) and recognises 
the merit of many of the strategies in the consultation. This includes increasing 
full-time specialist provision for pupils with significant ALN in Welsh medium 
schools which was an aspect identified in the recent local government education 
services inspection. Overall, it is Estyn's view that the information provided 
suggests that proposals are likely to improve the provision for learners in the local 
authority. However, there are a few aspects of the proposals that need 
strengthening and these are identified in our response. 
Additionally, an in accordance with the Code, the areas of the response that require 
clarification are documented in the table below: 
 
Estyn’s comment 
 
It is unclear whether there are any proposed interim arrangements, which might be 
necessary for their implementation. 
 
Clarification 
 
 
Perthcelyn LSC – 3 pupils currently placed in Perthcelyn and due to transition to 
Abercynon in September 2023 are impacted directly by the proposals.  Parents were 
given the option to either stay at Perthcelyn until the outcome of the consultation is 
known or move to the LSC at Abercynon in September 2023.  All 3 parents have opted 
to remain at the LSC in Perthcelyn, as a result an additional full time Learning Support 
Assistant (LSA) will be in place to enhance the staffing capacity of the LSC on an 
interim basis. 
Estyn’s comment 
 
There are five separate proposals in the consultation and the document makes only 
general statements about disadvantages, such as 'The relocation of the named LSCs 
could potentially cause some limited disruption to the proposed host schools.' The 
consultation is not clear enough about potential risks associated with specific 
proposals or how the local authority will deal with them. The proposal does not set out 
clearly how the local authority will ensure that the disruption to learners is minimised, 

Tudalen 146



 

 
 

for example how it will support those pupils currently in any of the settings who are 
moved to a different provision. 
 
Clarification 
 
General risks are identified in the Consultation documentation and accompanying 
impact assessments. Overall, the proposal to open/relocate LSCs would deliver a 
significant improvement in the quality of educational provision for learners with ALN, 
having a significant positive impact upon the educational performance of pupils and 
staff morale.  The proposals will ensure that all the LSCs will be compliant with current 
requirements of planning and building control legislation and will be fully accessible 
and compliant with the Equality Act 2010 in fully integrated community schools. 
 
In response to the queries raised, specific potential risks to each proposal are detailed: 
 
Enhancing Welsh medium provision (opening of 2 primary phase Welsh medium LSCs 
at Rhydyfelin): 
• Difficulty in the recruitment of Welsh medium specialist staff to work in the LSC.  

The Council is committed to retaining staff and a there is a commitment with the 
Council’s WESP to enhance the specialist Welsh medium workforce to meet the 
needs of ALN learners bi-lingually. 

• If the proposal is not progressed RCT will not comply with the statutory duty to 
provide support for ALN learners through the medium of Welsh 

• Potential disruption for pupils who currently access Welsh medium peripatetic 
service who meet eligibility criteria for placement at LSC who may wish to attend 
the designated LSC provisions.  To minimise this the LA will involve parents/carers 
and relevant pupils as active participant in discussions regarding change of 
placement and transition if the proposals are progressed. 

 
Enhancing ASD KS3/4 (opening a LSC at the new Hawthorn Primary/High school site) 
• If the proposal is not progressed there will be insufficient ASD KS3/4 provision to 

meet the needs of learners 
 
Enhancing Early Years Provision (establishing Early Years Assessment LSC for pupils 
under statutory school age) 
• If the proposal is not progressed there will be insufficient Early Years specialist 

provision to meet the needs of learners 
 
Relocation of Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber: 
• Placement in this LSC is designed to be short term, therefore pupils currently 

accessing the provision are highly likely to have naturally moved on to their long 
term educational placement by the implementation date.  For those that remain in 
the LSC at the point of implementation, it is recognised that there may be disruption 
to the pupils moving to the new location.  However, to mitigate this, the current staff 
will be relocating with the class and pupils to provide continuity of care and support 
and a robust planned enhanced transition process will be implemented.  This will 
also ensure continuity in educational provision  

• If the proposal does not progress pupils will be unable to access an appropriate 
21st Century environment due to the limitations of the current physical environment  

 

Tudalen 147



 

 
 

Creation of through ASD primary phase LSC provision (relocation of LSC at Abercynon 
to Perthcelyn LSC): 
• If the proposal does not progress then pupils will continue to have to undertake 

additional transitions compared to mainstream peers. 
• It is recognised that there will be disruption to the pupils moving to the new location.  

However, to mitigate this the current staff will be relocating with the class and pupils 
to provide continuity of care and support and a robust planned enhanced transition 
process will be implemented.  This will also ensure continuity in educational 
provision. 

• Alternative arrangements could be considered for individual pupils, including 
learners remaining in their existing school but in a supported mainstream context – 
please refer to the conclusion below. 

• For pupils who currently attend Abercynon LSC and may need to travel further to 
Perthcelyn transport will be provided in line with the Learner Travel Policy, it is 
noted for some pupils the move to the new LSC will be closer to their home address. 

 
Robust transition plans will be put in place for any pupils directly affected by the 
proposals, which will be planned collaboratively with parents and staff and involve 
additional support from specialist members of staff from Access and Inclusion. 
 
Estyn’s comment 
 
The proposer only states that alternatives have been considered, without giving clear 
information as to what, or why they were discounted. 
 
Clarification 
 
In light of the requirements of the ALNET Act maintaining the status quo would mean 
that RCT would not be meeting its statutory duty to review the sufficiency of its ALN 
provision. This would result in the Council not meeting the needs of children and young 
people with ALN, increased pressure on parents/carers, increase in ALN tribunals and 
increase in cost in placing pupils in specialist out of county provisions. 
 
There is clearly identified need for this provision within RCT and it would be in children 
and young people’s best interest to address this. Some consideration was given to re-
directing resources to further enhance the capacity of mainstream schools to meet 
need in local community schools. However, in light of the severity and complexity of 
pupils’ identified needs this was not considered appropriate as the pupils are deemed 
to require bespoke specialist provision. 
 
Consideration was given to expanding provision within established LSCs, however this 
was discounted due to a lack of physical capacity.   
 
Consideration was also given to exploring out of county Welsh medium provision 
however this would incur a significant increase in cost of placements and transport and 
would not provide a long time solution to the Council meeting its statutory duty to 
deliver a bi-lingual system. 
 
Historically as an alternative to a Welsh medium LSC the LA has implemented a virtual 
Welsh medium LSC whereby pupils are supported by peripatetic specialist staff within 
their mainstream school.  In light of feedback from the Welsh medium sector and the 

Tudalen 148



 

 
 

requirement of ALNET to develop a fully bilingual system it is now considered 
appropriate to establish primary phase Welsh medium LSCs to provide a more 
equitable provision in line with English medium provision. 
 
The LA implements an Early Years Enhanced Transition Service for pre statutory 
school aged pupils entering mainstream nursery provision.  Whilst acknowledging the 
success of this approach in building the capacity of mainstream settings to support 
pupils with emerging ALN many EY pupils have been identified as requiring higher 
level of Additional Learning Provision (ALP) that can be provided in mainstream. Since 
the inception of the Early Years Forum in September 2021 to comply with the new 
statutory requirements of the ALNET Act for children aged 0-3 years data as at 30th 
January 2023 demonstrates that 294 pupils have been discussed by the Forum. Of 
these pupils, 40 have been allocated placements within specialist settings and an 
additional 14 pupils have changed placement from mainstream to specialist provision 
following a period of assessment. 
 
No alternatives were considered to opening the additional LSC provision at the new 
Hawthorn site due to the significant demand, severity of needs of pupils and the current 
capacity issues for specialist ASD placements in the Taf district in comparison to the 
Rhondda and Cynon districts. 
 
Abercynon was considered the best location to host 2 Early Years LSCs due to its 
geographical location in relation to other Early Years provisions within the County 
Borough together with its 21st Century environment. This in turn determined that a 
through ASD provision would also be proposed on the Perthcelyn school site. 
 
Estyn’s comment 
 
There are no projections or estimates for numbers of future pupils with ALN. For 
example, the local authority is proposing to create 18 Welsh medium places for pupils 
with ALN at Rhydyfelin but have not identified the demand for those places. Similarly, 
two of the schools in the proposal are currently being built, but the proposer has not 
provided an estimate of projected pupil numbers. 
 
Clarification 
 
During the academic year 2022/23, the Welsh Complex Needs Team supported 12 
pupils with an age range of Year 2 to Year 11. Pupils currently accessing the Welsh 
medium virtual class model will be offered a placement within the Welsh medium class, 
there is evidence of an increase in requests for involvement of Access & Inclusion 
Staff.  7% of pupils currently accessing English medium LSC provision moved from a 
Welsh medium school.  It is difficult to identify potential demand for a Welsh medium 
LSC provision as this is a newly established provision, and as such we don’t have 
historical trend data.  
 
Since the inception of the Early Years Forum in September 2021 to comply with the 
new statutory requirements of the ALNET Act for children aged 0-3 years data as at 
30th January 2023 demonstrates that 294 pupils have been discussed by the Forum. 
Of these pupils, 40 have been allocated placements within specialist settings and an 
additional 14 pupils have changed placement from mainstream to specialist provision 

Tudalen 149



 

 
 

following a period of assessment. It is important to note that this data related to both 
English and Welsh medium learners.  
 
Estyn’s comment 
 
However, the consultation document does not provide clear enough information on a 
range of educational aspects of the proposals as identified in the School Organisation 
Code, such as the impact of the proposals on the quality of teaching, the breadth, 
balance and appropriateness of the curriculum, and leadership and management. 
 
Clarification 
 
The LSCs are collaboratively line managed by the host headteacher and central 
Access & Inclusion staff.  Roles and responsibilities of the above are clearly defined in 
the LA School Learning Support Class Agreement, this includes matters relating to the 
curriculum and the quality of teaching and learning.  There is a robust quality 
assurance process in place  to ensure both the school and LSC staff are well supported 
and that LSC provision meets all necessary statutory requirements.  
 
Standards 
The LSCs will be located in modern flexible learning environments and have access to 
enhanced outdoor spaces to support the full range of curriculum activities.  In addition, 
increasing the number of LSCs will ensure that a greater number of learners with 
significant and complex ALN have access to additional learning provision that 
enhances their progress in relation to their individual targets and starting points. This 
is monitored through the LSC Quality Assurance process in collaboration with the head 
teacher. 
 
Wellbeing and attitudes to learning 
Access to specialist learning provisions where the individual needs of learners with 
complex ALN can be met through individualised additional learning provision within 
21st century environments will have a positive impact upon learner and staff wellbeing.  
Increasing the specialist provision hosted by mainstream schools will enable leaners 
with ALN to play a full part in the life and work of the school alongside their mainstream 
peers. 
 
LSC provision designed to provide specialist additional learning provision will ensure 
increased participation and engagement of learners in their learning and promote 
resilience. This will be achieved by detailed bespoke planning in line with the identified 
needs of pupils.    
 
Teaching and learning experience 
The LSCs will provide a balanced curriculum at all stages in line with the new 
Curriculum for Wales – 2022.  A 21st century learning environment would also provide 
pupils with greater flexibility and therefore greater choice and opportunities in their 
learning experience.  The LSCs will provide a range of strategies and interventions to 
meet the needs of individual learners with significant difficulties with access to a wide 
range of multi-sensory and digital resources to enhance their learning.  Bespoke 
assessment and planning to meet individual needs for example through LA maintained 
Individual Development Plans (IDPs) will ensure that pupils make progress from 
individual starting points. 

Tudalen 150



 

 
 

 
Care, support and guidance 
LSCs will have a strong focus upon supporting learners’ emotional and social needs 
and opportunities to work collaboratively with mainstream peers in their host 
mainstream schools.  This will include opportunities to access activities within their 
local community. 
 
Leadership and management 
Leadership and management of LSCs is undertaken collaboratively by the hosting 
Headteacher and Learner Support Service Co-ordinators in the Access & Inclusion 
Service to ensure high expectations for learners are achieved. This is supported by a 
comprehensive quality assurance process and a LA / School LSC agreement that 
details respective roles and responsibilities of the LA, host schools and LSC staff.  
 

 
8. Assessment of Consultation  
 
In view of the responses and comments received during the consultation period the 
proposals have been revisited and the following matters have been reassessed: 
 

• The likely impact of the proposals on the quality and standards of education;  
• The likely impact on the community; and  
• The likely effect of differing travelling arrangements.  

 
After further consideration, the proposals remain to be the most appropriate and as such 
minor modifications to Proposal 1 and 2 have been made.  The implementation date for 
both proposals has been amended to September 2024. 
 

9. Conclusion 
The proposals to realign LSC provision will ensure that RCT has undertaken its statutory 
duty under the ALNET Act (2018) to review arrangements for supporting pupils with ALN 
within the county borough and has identified necessary steps to ensure the sufficiency 
of its provision for pupils with significant ALN who require specialist placement.  
 
The proposals support the delivery of the RCT WESP and one of the core aims of the 
ALNET Act by working towards the development of a fully bilingual ALN system within 
the county borough. 
 
The proposals will ensure greater compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and access to 
significantly improved premises which have benefited from the 21st Century Schools 
Modernisation Programme and investment. 
 
Following consideration of the responses to the consultation, it is recommended that 
Members agree to the immediate publication of the attached Consultation Report and 
agree to give officers approval to publish the appropriate Statutory Notices to progress 
with Proposals 1 & 2 with amendments as follows: 

 
Proposal 1 (amended): To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at 
Penrhiwceiber Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School taking effect 
from September 2024. (Amended from April 2024) 

Tudalen 151



 

 
 

 
Proposal 2 (amended): To transfer the LSC for pupils in Years 3-6 with Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community Primary School to create a through 
provision in the Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary School taking effect from 
September 2024. (Amended from April 2024) 
 
This will reduce the number of pupils affected by the proposals. 
 
It is recommended that Members also agree to the publication of Statutory Notices to 
progress with Proposals 3, 4 & 5 without modifications as follows: 
 
Proposal 3: To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention LSC for pupils 
under statutory school age with significant presenting needs at Abercynon Primary 
School taking effect from April 2024. 
 
Proposal 4: To establish two Welsh medium primary phase LSCs at Ysgol Awel Taf the 
new Welsh medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN taking 
effect from September 2024. 
 
Proposal 5: To establish one LSC for pupils in Years 7-11 with ASD at the new 3-16 
school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site, Ysgol Afon Wen taking effect from 
September 2024. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 152



 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Appendix 1a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scanned consultation responses (letters/emails), petitions, 
on-line proforma responses 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

Tudalen 153



 

 
 

 

Appendix 1b 

 

Timetable of Consultation Events 

 

 

 

 

 

 

School Affected Group-Pupils/ 
Staff/Parents 

Date 

Abercynon Primary 
Community School 
 

School Council 
 

12th June 2023 
 

Staff 
 
Parents 
 

Perthcelyn Primary 
School 

School Council 
 

13th June 2023 
 

Staff 
 
Parents 
 

Penrhiwceiber Primary 
School 

School Council 
 

14th June 2023 

Staff 
 
Parents 
 

New 3-16 school on the 
Hawthorn Primary/High 
School site 
 
New Welsh medium 
School 

Staff/Temporary Governing 
Body 
 
 

15th June 2023 
 
16th June 2023 

Parents 

Heol-y-Celyn Primary 
School 

School Council 15th June 2023 

YGG Pontsion Norton School Council 22nd June 2023 
Hawthorn Primary 
School 

School Council 15th June 2023 

Hawthorn High School School Council 15th June 2023 

Tudalen 154



 

 
 

 

 

Notes of Consultation Events 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Abercynon Community Primary School 
Venue: Abercynon Community Primary School 
Date  12/06/2023 Number of School 

Staff: 
23 

Number of Pupils 13 Number of 
Parents: 

14 

Type of meeting: School Council, 
Staff/Governing 
Body, Parents  

Number of 
Governors: 

8 

Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Ceri Jones, Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
Ceri and Lisa provided an overview of the proposals for Abercynon. Below is a 
summary of the comments made. 
• A pupil raised concerns that the LSC pupils had spent their school life in 

Abercynon so doesn’t know if they would like a new school. They also said that 
the LSC pupils could have issues getting to school because of the move. Kate 
explained the effects of transition on ASD pupils and talked about the importance 
of reducing transitions and that the pupils may have access to transport under the 
LA Home School Transport Policy. 

• All members of the school council thought the proposals were a good idea 
although they had some concerns. 

• The pupils talked about friendships with pupils from the ASD class and believed 
that they might not be able to see them again.  

• A member of the school council thought the ASD pupils might have problems with 
settling with new friends and that could mean they won’t learn anything. Friends 
can also support the ASD pupils’ education. 

• The school council said that the ASD pupils show other staff/class their work. 
• The school council said that ASD pupils also take part in school activities to feel 

included as well as completing work in classrooms. 
• The pupils raised concerns around “Comfort teachers” potentially not moving with 

the children. Kate confirmed that the ASD teachers will be moving with the pupils. 
• One pupil questioned around “split-placement”. Kate talked again about reducing 

transitions and how a split-placement could disrupt and upset ASD pupils. 
• The school council mentioned that ASD pupils use the outdoor equipment such 

as tennis courts and the yards with pupils from the other classes. 
• The school council feel that opening younger classes is good as they can make 

friends and keep them across their time in the school. 
• Including mainstream classes with the ASD pupils is seen as positive as the 

pupils are a benefit to the school. 

Tudalen 155



 

 
 

• Hazel pupils are “very funny” and are characters around the school. All the pupils 
have particular interests. 

• The class pupils are included in gymnastics, meaning they could learn alongside 
other pupils. 

• Pupils from Hazel enjoy activities such as acting/dancing. 
Staff/Governing Body 

Ceri provided an overview of the proposals. Below is a summary of the comments 
made. 
• A question was raised regarding what will happen to the teachers if the proposals 

are accepted. Ceri confirmed that permanent LSC staff would be relocating 
alongside pupils to reduce stress and disruption of pupils transition. 

• Has an alternative for Penrhiwceiber been considered? Ceri responded that due 
to the outdoor environment restrictions then the preferred option is to re-locate the 
provision to 21st Century School environment.  

• Concerns were raised regarding the transition of older pupils currently in the class 
from Abercynon as there would be an extra transition and the potential negative 
impact of this. The staff mentioned that pupils will experience anxiety and stress 
as a consequence of the proposed move. 

• There was dialogue around the new Assessment and Observation Foundation 
Phase LSC, acknowledging placement in this LSC is short-term and that the pupil 
would be transitioning further once suitable placement had been identified. 

• Why can’t the class go from Penrhiwceiber to Perthcelyn? Ceri responded that 
placing the class in Abercynon would result in an increased geographical 
catchment area to include lower Rhondda, Cynon and Taf. The classroom 
identified within Perthcelyn is more suited for Key Stage 2 pupils as opposed to 
Early Years. 

• Concerns were raised regarding the transport of pupils, Ceri advised that 
transport would be provided in line with the LA’s Home to School Transport 
Policy. 

• The staff felt that there is an underestimation of how much the Hazel class pupils 
are included in the school. They feel the LSC is being treated by the LA as a 
separate entity. The pupils form the LSC benefit from the inclusive practises of 
the school. A&I officers reiterated that classes are considered as part of the 
school and bring benefits to mainstream provision.  

• The group highlighted the importance and benefits that community-based 
activities have on Hazel class pupils. The group felt that the community facilities 
are better in Abercynon than Perthcelyn. Kate responded that in line with new 
curriculum for Wales, the curriculum is designed by the school to build on the 
opportunities available in the school’s locality. This will be unique to each setting 
but there is an expected consistency in the range learning opportunities and the 
specialist provision available in LSCs.  

• The staff believe there will be gaps in staff expertise at Abercynon if the LSC staff 
move. It was highlighted that LSC staff are centrally employed and can be 
relocated to any LSC as required. 

• The group felt that inclusion opportunities for the proposed Early Years 
Observation class would be different to those currently in place for Hazel class. 

• A member of the governing body asked whether the previous relocations been 
successful? Ceri confirmed they were. 

• The group felt that older students are better placed in larger schools as there is 
the potential for wider opportunities. Kate explained there is a quality assurance 
process in place to ensure there is equity between the different LSCs although 

Tudalen 156



 

 
 

this is delivered in different way in line with the characteristics of the school the 
class is placed in. Ceri responded that there is no evidence of school size being 
detrimental to pupil’s learning. It is dependent on the leadership and management 
of the school working in partnership with the service.  

• A teacher felt that Perthcelyn has less to offer to the pupils. A&I officers explained 
that the expectation of the provision is the same just different classes have 
different opportunities and experiences in order to meet the pupil’s needs. Ceri 
further expanded that pupils would be developing on the same pathway but there 
will be a range of opportunities dependent on what is available in the host school. 

• LA officers were questioned why the decision has been made to relocate the 
classes. It was stated that there is an emphasis on through provision, also looking 
to modernise the classes by moving to modern and appropriate buildings. 

• Questions were raised regarding costs of relocating classes as well as making 
classes fit for purpose. A&I officers replied that the cost of any developments to 
the classroom or playground of Perthcelyn Community Primary School would be 
centrally funded.  

• Geographical aspect was addressed in relation to placements. 
• Staff questioned if the school would be able to have the classroom back if their 

numbers increased. They commented the spare classroom is being used for a 
range of activities. Ceri confirmed that research had been undertaken regarding 
projected pupil numbers and this had been taken into account when considering 
this proposal. 

• Staff commented that they believed that Perthcelyn has a spare classroom that 
isn’t used. Kate advised that the Perthcelyn classroom would be more suitable for 
Key Stage 2 provision hence the proposal. 

• LA officers were questioned if RCT would be considering opening additional 
classes in the future. It was confirmed that the service has as statutory duty to 
review the sufficiency of its ALN provision on a regular basis and further reviews 
would be undertaken. 

• A member of the group asked why the proposed move was April and if the 
proposed move should be in September as a clean start. Staff felt that the 
changes will cause upheaval for children, staff – and cause anxiety. Officers 
reiterated that this was a consultation and that their opinions would be considered 
when developing the final proposals. 

• Feels that the cost to the community is not being considered. 
• Concerns were raised regarding the increase in traffic should the proposals go 

ahead with a second LSC at the school. 
Parents 

Ceri provided an overview of the proposals. Below is a summary of the comments 
made. 
• The parents raised that pupil’s needs change across a year. Ceri responded that 

a pupil’s IDP would ensure that their needs and suitable provision were clearly 
identified and reviewed. 

• A parent raised their concern that their child had only been attending LSC for a 
year and would need to be moved again. 

• A parent asked why Abercynon is the only class being moved. Ceri explained that 
LSC provision is continuously reviewed in line with our statutory duty and further 
reviews will be undertaken in the future. A continuous aim of the service is to 
reduce the number of transitions. Ceri also explained the proposed changes to 
the LSCs were phased over several terms to ensure appropriate support could be 
provided. 

Tudalen 157



 

 
 

• Parents expressed the pupils benefit from having access to the community and 
facilities – Perthcelyn has not got a community like Abercynon. They also 
stressed that being part of the community is important as it can lead to improved 
social, emotional and communication skills. 

• A parent raised a concern that home life can be affected by transitions.  
• It was stated by the parents that the inclusion of pupils in mainstream benefits 

Hazel class pupils. 
• Parents believe that Abercynon Community Primary School has better facilities 

and are more accommodating than Perthcelyn Community Primary School.  
Parents stressed the importance of the community and friendship aspect. Parents 
stated that Perthcelyn did not have the facilities in the community to facilitate ASD 
children development – e.g. café, parks, library. 

• The parents stated that children who are younger are less likely to be affected by 
transition.  They felt that older children would be adversely affected and the 
proposal focuses on the younger pupils. “Children who are older are in their own 
ways and unlikely to adapt”. 

• Parents questioned why the school could not accommodate the 2 ASD classes + 
the Early Years. Officers explained that there were only 2 classes available to 
host LSCs. 

• Parents asked if the LA had considered moving the quieter Early Years 
Observation and Assessment LSC to a quieter school. Ceri advised the group 
that the proposal to host the Early Years Assessment and Observation LSC at 
Abercynon had been made due to the geographical area which would allow pupils 
from lower Rhondda, Taf and Cynon to access the provision.  Additionally, by 
hosting both an Early Years Assessment and an Observation and Assessment 
LSCs it would provide additional opportunities and for pupils to access both 
provisions in the same setting. 

• Parents were concerned that historically that the pupils had not been well 
supported during transition and what support will be put in place now.LA officers 
advised by parents that pupils will be supported by the LSC staff as they will be 
moving with the pupils.  

• A parent questioned why the changes are being made in April 2024. Officers 
reiterated that this was a consultation and that their opinions would be considered 
when developing the final proposals. 

• A parent raised concerns that they felt their private information had been shared 
inappropriately. Officers encouraged the parent to submit any supporting 
evidence of their concerns. 

• A parent stated they felt the proposal had been influenced by a parent from 
Perthcelyn. Lisa reassured that the proposals were written by LA officers following 
of their existing provision.   

• Parents feel that the process has not been followed and will raise it. Officers 
encouraged the parent to submit any supporting evidence of their concerns. 
 

Ceri & Lisa described in detail the process of the consultation  
• Parents feel that the outdoor facilities are a reason for the children to remain in 

current provision. 
• Parents feel that as the pupils are more established here, they should remain 

here and the new classes should be placed elsewhere. 
• Parents described the massive benefits in Abercynon Community Primary School 

compared to being placed in other units.  
• Parents feel that disruption is not short term but long term. 

Tudalen 158



 

 
 

 

• Parents raised concerns that they would not be able to access transport to the 
proposed school as they would be in the catchment area based off transport 
policy and how this would affect their child. Ceri described the gatekeeping 
process and reiterated that transport was provided in line with the LA Home to 
School Transport Policy.  Parents feel that there are financial winners and losers 
– (if you are outside of X miles you cannot claim amount). 

• Accessibility issues raised in terms of walking to proposed school due to hills. 
• Parents reiterate that there is no benefit to their children from this proposed 

change. 
• Asked if Education Psychology have reviewed these proposed changes – Could a 

medical professional make a judgment/have input on these changes? Ceri 
advised the group that no medical professional could impact on the education 
placement of a pupil. 

• Parents feel that LA is taking children with communication and social disorders 
and moving them out to the “wilderness”. 

• Parents felt that the school has everything here, praised staff, facilities and space. 
Parents can see the benefits of attending the current class in developing their 
children. 

• Parents felt that there was no reason for pupils to move from Abercynon to the 
proposed school 

Tudalen 159



 

 
 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Perthcelyn Primary School 
Venue: Perthcelyn Primary School 
Date  13/06/2023 Number of School 

Staff: 
4 

Number of Pupils: 9 Number of 
Parents: 

6 

Type of meeting: School Council, 
Staff/Governing Body, 
Parents  

Number of 
Governors  

4 

Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
School Council were provided with an overview of the proposals, officers sought their 
opinions. The following is a summary of their comments: 
• All pupils believed the proposals were a good idea. 
• School council said that the younger ASD pupils can stay in the same school and 

maintain friendships as well as make new friends across classes. 
• It was identified that Dosbath Pinc do not go into junior classes but work 

alongside other infant age classes. Junior pupils enjoy helping Dosbarth Pinc 
pupils. 

• Dosbarth Pinc is integrated within the school and included in activities – Sports 
Day, Eisteddfod, assembly, lunchtimes mix with other pupils in the yard. 

• It was highlighted that a former pupil of Dosbarth Pinc transitioned to mainstream. 
• Pupils in the ASD LSC in Abercynon Primary will be reunited with old friends if 

they move to Perthcelyn. 
• Pupils queried where the classroom would be placed. It was clarified that it will be 

joining the classroom which adjoins the Foundation Phase LSC. 
• Including another class will help them understand what life is like for pupils with 

ASD as they get older.  Including more ASD pupils will teach others that people 
are different, will add more tolerance to people who are different in the school. 

• It was suggested that older ASD pupils could help out with younger ASD pupils. 
• Pupils in the class could access local resources such as the park, community 

centre (clubs) and the fields. Perthcelyn has lots of countryside surrounding the 
school and is located close to the local village. A lot of community activities are 
available including using the paddling pool/pool committee and the church. ASD 
Rainbows is situated nearby. Pool has recently undergone huge developmental 
works and has opened. 

• It was suggested there might be holiday activities and after school at ASD 
Rainbows 

• Pupils in the class will also be able join in with school trips such as theme parks, 
Techniquest, folly farm. 

• The children look forward to having a new class, they had no concerns. 
• Questioned who would be in the class. Kate mentioned the ASD class will 

transition alongside the staff. 

Tudalen 160



 

 
 

Staff/Governing Body 
Lisa provided an overview of the consultation process. 
• A question was raised regarding surveys and feedback, how does this affect the 

proposals? The answer was provided that Cabinet will review all documentation 
received during the consultation process. The Access & Inclusion Service have a 
duty to provide a response to all comments and include them in the consultation 
response document.  

• The general consensus was that there was fear that there would be an imbalance 
of influence of the petitions due to the different sizes of the impacted communities 
as Abercynon has a larger community and school population than Perthcelyn. 
Fears that all changes could be overturned if enough noise is made. Concerns 
were raised it would set a precedent if proposals can be overturned with no 
rationale, just a large number of names on a petition. 
 

Kate provided an overview of the consultation proposals. 
• Consensus is agreement with the proposals. 
• A&I staff encouraged attendees to utilise the survey and provide further 

correspondence to express their views. 
• A&I staff emphasized that anybody who wants to provide feedback can. 
• It was identified that considerations need to be made for pupils mentioned in 

parent meeting who may need to transition to Abercynon then back to Perthcelyn 
if the proposal is accepted. 

• The staff were of the viewpoint that children from a younger age are less likely to 
deal with transition, one attendee believed that change is easier when older. 

• All members believe that the proposed changes are all positive for the younger 
pupils. 

• Staff felt parents prefer to attend the school in general due to the facilities. 
• Kate explained the location rationale and adapted classrooms as to part of the 

rationale for the accessibility aspect of the proposals. 
• School is reputable for being inclusive and staff work collectively to incorporate 

inclusion across the school. 
• Some pupils from Abercynon are former pupils so will have experienced the 

school beforehand. 
• Discussion around the importance of variety of provision to meet the demand of 

different needs across the LA. 
 

Parents 
Lisa provided an overview of the consultation process and Kate provided an overview 
of the consultation proposals. 
• Concerns were raised that children are likely to suffer due to transition. Parents 

felt pupils would be moved from Perthcelyn to Abercynon and then back to 
Perthcelyn. Parent cited long-term disruption to education and personal 
development.  Could the pupils due to transition in September stay at Perthcelyn 
if the class is to be moved. Parents discussed the preparation and the negative 
effect of transitioning. Kate answered that the individual pupil needs would be 
considered and discussed with parents in preparation for year 3. 

• Parents stated that they feel their children are thriving emotionally, academically, 
and socially and would not want any disruption to impact on progress. 

• Parents discussed their children and feel that transitioning will have negative 
impact on child’s learning. Fear of regression and long-term effects of 
transitioning. 

Tudalen 161



 

 
 

 

 

• Parents have raised funding personally to develop the facilities at Perthcelyn and 
want their children to continue to benefit from it. 
 

Lisa expanded on the consultation process as questions were asked regarding 
whether the decision has been made already. 
• A parent asked about the geographical location of the Early Years LSC. Kate 

provided explanation as to why the classes have been selected from a 
geographical perspective as well as a fully accessible environment in a 21st 
century school. 

• A parent raised concerns that the transition between foundation phase and Key 
Stage 2 had a detrimental effect on the pupil’s access to education and therefore 
supported the case for through provision. 

• Parents stated they accepted the place in the LSC as the school is smaller and 
quieter. The parents believe the pupils have thrived in the current setting and 
were concerned that moving to a much larger school would have a negative 
impact. 

• A parent questioned if Estyn reports would be taken into consideration. Access & 
Inclusion staff confirmed that we are required to seek feedback from Estyn and 
this will be detailed in the consultation response report. 

• The parent was pleased with the recognition by Estyn of the work undertaken in 
Perthcelyn in relation to pupil wellbeing. The parent felt this was the most 
important factor for her. 

• Parents talked about how different community facilities can benefit different 
children. Kate explained how the new curriculum for Wales should be adapted to 
build on local available resource. There is an expectation that a commensurate 
provision is made across all learning support classes of the same designation 
however this is adapted and developed to capitalise on the resources of the local 
community. 

• Parents raised concerns around public response to the proposed changes and 
they felt they were experiencing hostility from those objecting to the move from 
Abercynon. Parents felt that Abercynon are shouting the loudest and causing 
large disruption which could impact the outcome of the consultation. Parents felt 
that people could sign petition with no link or understanding of the proposals and 
influence the decision. 

Tudalen 162



 

 
 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Penrhiwceiber Primary School 
Venue: Penrhiwceiber Primary School 
Date  14/06/2023 Number of School 

Staff: 
4 

Number of Pupils: 6 Number of 
Parents: 

0 

Type of meeting: School Council, 
Staff/Governing Body, 
Parents  

Number of 
Governors  

3 

Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
Lisa provided overview of the proposal effecting Penrhiwceiber. The following is the 
summary of the comments made. 
• Discussions were held regarding the current outdoor play area and classroom 

size for the Penrhiwceiber LSC pupils. A pupil thought the outdoor area is too 
small and that sometimes Dosbarth Chestnut goes on the main yard. A member 
of the school council thought it would be better for Dosbarth Chestnut to have 
more space to learn outside. 

• One pupil believes the pupils should move due to larger space to move around for 
play. They spoke about a particular pupil who needs additional space.  

• The school council felt that it would be a big change for Dosbarth Chestnut. 
• The school council felt that the children may initially find it tricky to settle as they 

are not used to it. 
• It was identified that Dosbarth Chestnut pupils do not stay for long but when 

pupils are in the younger years, they play with Dosbarth Chestnut at break and 
lunch time. 

• The school council felt it would be emotional for Dosbarth Chestnut to leave. Lisa 
confirmed that the current teacher and permanent assistants would move 
alongside the class to help settle them. 

• A member said Dosbarth Chestnut could make more friends in a different school. 
• A suggestion was made by the school council that they could visit the children.  
• Discussions were held around how the school could use the space freed up from 

moving the class. Ideas included a reading corner, a homework station or making 
“the burrow” bigger. 

• One member asked if we could make the classroom bigger or rearrange other 
classrooms. The headteacher explained that there would not be enough space for 
all the current classes and that making the classroom bigger would be difficult due 
to the slope and the different height of ground outside of the classroom. 

• All members of the council said they would feel sad if Dosbarth Chestnut moved 
although they believe the proposal is a good idea. 

Staff/Governing Body 

Tudalen 163



 

 
 

Lisa provided an overview of the process; Kate provided an overview of the 
proposals. The following is a summary of the comments made. 
• A Staff member mentioned their concerns regarding school accessibility in the 

morning. Currently, there are severe disruption to pupils trying to access the 
school on foot due to taxi’s dropping off the LSC pupils and the parent’s cars. 
Alternatives have been previously explored although it is not possible to adapt the 
drop-off area due to the geography of the site. Particularly, the steep, narrow 
streets surrounding the school. 

• Accessibility issues were raised as current LSC pupils need guidance up and 
down multiple sets of steps. A&I staff informed the school’s staff that more 
children are being identified with mobility issues. An aim of the proposal is 
address this by placing the LSC in a 21st century school which is accessible by 
design. 

• Staff said that it will be sad for the class to leave although there is a need for a 
space for outdoor learning and want what is best for the children. 

• Staff pointed out to the credit of the school’s pupils that they have been very 
inclusive to Dosbarth Chestnut. 

• Following the school council, on returning to class, the pupils fed back to staff that 
they will feel sad but recognise the children’s needs need to be met. 

• Staff raised questions regarding whether the LSC pupils will adapt and if a larger 
volume of pupils will affect the LSC pupils. The staff report that some pupils 
currently do not go out if there is too much noise and so a small school is seen as 
a benefit. 

• A member identified the financial impact as the school is centrally funded and the 
school will lose a percentage of funding which helps cover site costs. This led to a 
member questioning if developments can be made on the site. Another member 
addressed this and provided rationale as to why changes could not be made 
using the same reasons as detailed above. 

• A&I staff were questioned as to what would happen to staff working in the LSC. It 
was highlighted that permanent staff in that class will move alongside the pupils. 
Staff felt that 3 members are needed to manage the class and talked regarding 
the Enhanced Capacity Funding currently being received. 

• A member believed that it’s a struggle to cater for the needs of 7 LSC pupils in 
their current classroom due to the restriction in size and lack of outdoor space. 

• A member identified additional staffing would be needed for larger Early Years 
classes. A&I officers clarified that pupil numbers would stay the same and the 
new proposed class would have its own allocated staff. A member questioned if 
there may be job opportunities for non-permanent staff as a new class is opened. 
A&I officers confirmed that the new class was increased capacity and would 
require new staff. 

• A member talked about how valuable non-permanent the staff member is as they 
understand the children’s needs. 

• The staff felt that the changing room developments made LSC classroom smaller 
in Penrhiwceiber Community Primary School. 

• The same staff member identified that the furniture is not suitable for the current 
pupil’s needs.  

• The consensus was that the move is difficult for staff and could be for children in 
transition although the children’s needs are the priority. 

• It was asked if staff could visit Abercynon to check the facilities. They also asked 
if the secure outdoor area needs to be split if multiple classes have access. A&I 

Tudalen 164



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

staff informed the staff that they could visit the provision with prior arrangement 
with A&I.  

• In response to questions about safety, A&I staff clarified if the proposal goes 
ahead, the site will be surveyed and risk assessed and adaptions such as fencing 
will be considered. 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Heol y Celyn Primary School 
Venue: Heol y Celyn  Primary School 
Date  15/06/2023 
Number of Pupils 6 
Type of meeting: School Council, Staff/Governing Body, Parents  
Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
Lisa gave an overview of the proposals. 
• School council believe that the proposals were a good idea. 
• When asked for opinions on the proposal, one pupil said that having the classes 

would mean there are new and more resources for the LSC pupils and 
themselves.   

• The school council also believe adding new classes will help them and other 
pupils understand different additional learning needs and how they can help. 

• The school council looked forward to the opening of new classes, no concerns 
were raised. 

Tudalen 165



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Hawthorn Primary School 
Venue: Hawthorn Primary School 
Date  15/06/2023 Number of School 

Council: 
6 

Type of meeting: School Council 
Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
Kate provided an overview of the proposals, the following is a summary of the 
comments they made: 
 
• All the pupils thought it was a good idea, they felt the new class would help pupils 

learn and support those that need it. 
• The group were asked what they knew about Autism, one pupil told us about a 

club that she attends where her friend has autism and how they do things 
differently to include her. 

• The pupils felt it would help themselves understand older pupils with Autism and 
they could help the pupils in the class learn. 

• Kate was asked where would the class be? Kate explained it will have its own 
class within the school but that the pupils will come into their classes, and may 
join them during playtimes and lunch breaks 

• A pupil asked Kate what do you do to help the pupils? Kate explained that there 
are teachers and learning support assistants that help the pupils with their 
learning, providing extra support to those pupils that struggle with change for 
example, they have lessons on how to learn to read emotions. The smaller 
classes gives pupils with ASD a safe place to learn, as some prefer small classes 
rather than in a mainstream class but others learn better in a larger class   

• Will it be in the new school? Yes it will open once the new school opens 

Tudalen 166



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: YGG Pontsion Norton 
Venue: YGG Pontsion Norton 
Date  22/06/2023 Number of Pupils: 7 
Type of meeting: School Council 
Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Iwan Griffiths, Ailsa Reynolds 

School Council 
Ailsa and Lisa provided an overview of the proposals. Below is a summary of the 
school council’s comments. 

• A member of the school council asked whether it’s been decided on how many 
pupils will be in the new classes? Lisa provided an explanation around the 
number of teachers and LSA’s in the class. 
A member of the school council asked what kind of needs the class will have. 
Ailsa informed the student council that the class is for children with significant 
learning needs in the medium of Welsh and that pupils with different needs 
can access the class.  Ailsa described that the pupils would come from across 
RCT and will be transported by taxis. 

• The student council have no issues with the new classes proposed and feel 
the changes are a good idea. One pupil discussed how a smaller class would 
be good for pupils that struggle in larger classes. 

• A member of the school council asked would the other boys and girls be able 
to play with the LSC pupils. Lisa advised that the school will encourage 
inclusion in all areas including, playtime, celebrations, assemblies, school trips 
and shared class lessons. 

• A member of the school council asked if the LSC pupils will do the same work 
but slower than the mainstream classes. Ailsa advised that it’s dependent on 
the pupil’s needs of the class. The LSC pupils will follow the same topics in 
school but their learning will incorporate what works best for the LSC pupils 
based off their needs. 

• A member of the school council asked if there are too many pupils in the new 
LSC class, what will happen? Lisa discussed class size as mentioned earlier 
by Ailsa. Lisa also said that if there are too many pupils, Access & Inclusion 
would look to open a new LSC in a different school. 

Tudalen 167



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: Hawthorn High School 
Venue: Hawthorn High School 
Date  15/06/2023 Number of School 

Council: 
6 

Type of meeting: School Council 
Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

School Council 
Iwan provided an overview of the proposal in relation to LSC provision within the New 
Hawthorn School, the following is a summary of the comments the council raised: 
 

• Officers were asked why was it designated KS3/4 and not primary as well? 
Kate explained that we have sufficient primary provision at the moment, pupils 
thought we should consider opening provision for younger pupils. 

• Good idea to provide help to pupils who would be struggling, a pupil believes 
the mainstream pupils of the schools will be accepting of pupils with autism. 
The pupil spoke fondly of a pupil with additional learning needs and how 
everyone had included them. 

• The pupils felt the class would allow specific support to be provided in a 
dedicated environment and would be beneficial all round to both pupils and 
staff. 

• They are used to pupils coming into their class and then leaving to go back to 
their base from the speech and language LSC. 

• A pupil explained that the Hive is used to support pupils at the moment, those 
that need to chill out or for help with English, Maths, or if they are stressed, the 
staff do activities that can help pupils.  Pupils thought that the Hive could help 
pupils in the LSC and questioned if the Hive could be expanded for the LSC 
pupils. 

• A pupil questioned if the LSC would be accessible for pupils not diagnosed 
with autism? Kate explained due to the wait list for a diagnosis following 
Covid, we look at the needs of the pupils and the support the individual 
requires to learn, equally some pupils with a diagnosis can access mainstream 
provision.  

• A pupil questioned if the pupils would have extra transition days. Officers 
responded that yes additional transition opportunities or days would be 
planned to meet individual pupil needs.  

• One pupil had a LSC in their primary school so they are used to having a 
class. 

• The group discussed the benefits of having ASD specialist within the school 
environment and how this would help all staff. 

 

Tudalen 168



 

 
 

 

 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: New Hawthorn School & New Rhydyfelin School 
Venue: Teams 
Date  15/06/2023 Number of 

Participants: 
2 – Members of 
Staff from 
Hawthorn High 
and 1 Councillor 

Type of meeting: Temporary 
Governing Bodies 
of the new 
Hawthorn 3-16 
School and New 
Welsh Medium 
School 

Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths 

Temp Gov Body 
 Lisa provided overview of the consultation process. Kate provided overview of the 
proposals. The following is a summary of the comments made. 
• A member asked if the proposals would affect the provision of the current Speech 

and Language LSC in Hawthorn High. A&I staff responded by clarifying that the 2 
LSCs are independent and so the proposal will increase provision and staffing. 

• A member of staff questioned how the class would be organised within the 
school. Kate referred to practise in the existing ASD LSCs where pupils access 
approximately 60% of their provision in mainstream. Integration into mainstream 
will be encouraged alongside specialist interventions focused on social 
communication skills. 

• It was asked how many new staff will be employed for the new LSC on the 
Hawthorn primary/high site. Kate informed the member that a LSC teacher and 
LSC assistants will be centrally funded and provided to schools.  

• It was asked if an IDP could contain 1-to-1 support. Kate discussed in detail the 
different support available for pupils with an IDP and confirmed that 1-to-1 is not 
allocated in an IDP. 

• Discussions were held around the building design of the new 3-16 school in 
Hawthorn. Lisa informed the members that the proposed LSC classroom had 
been identified when plans were drawn up, therefore the school does have 
capacity for this proposal. A member talked about the importance of making sure 
the school is fit for purpose. A&I staff discussed how provision discussions were 
held during the planning stage and so factors such as noise level and space were 
considered. 

• A member questioned whether LSC pupils will be required to sit exams. Kate 
clarified that students will sit exams. 

• A member questioned how the LA will support the school in setting up the class. 
A&I staff informed the member that once the consultation was complete and 

Tudalen 169



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

agreed on, the SEN Coordinator will work to develop the provision alongside the 
school. Resources, provision and training opportunities will be made available. 

• A member asked if the LSC posts are identified in the staffing structure of the 
school. Lisa clarified that the LSC posts are not included in the structure of the 
school. LSC staff are centrally funded and appointed in collaboration with the 
school. 

• A member identified that the emphasis of the consultation is to reduce transition 
and highlighted that the new 3-16 school in Hawthorn is an excellent example of 
where through provision could be placed. A&I staff fed back that currently there is 
sufficient primary ASD provision however, there is insufficient secondary 
provision.  A&I officers noted the suggestion. It was accepted by the member that 
not all changes can be made at the same time and suggested that this could be 
looked at in the future. 

• A member felt that the current proposals were focused on reducing transitions of 
younger pupils and not older pupils. A&I staff talked about Porth Community 
School that currently hosts LSCs at all age group levels and that in the future this 
approach may be incorporated into more schools. 

• A member praised the concept of converting the Council Offices in the Pavilions 
to a special school to increase provision. 

• The structure of the consultation response proforma was queried. Lisa clarified 
this had been rectified on the online proforma which breaks down each proposal. 

• Kate stated that the proposals are still in consultation phase and feedback is 
valued. Kate encouraged contribution from members.  

• A member was unsure why the temporary governing body and pupils were met 
with of the affected schools in the catchment area although not the existing staff 
and school governors. Member would have preferred school governors to have 
given formal input to the consultation. Lisa encouraged the member to share the 
consultation response proforma with the school governors. 

• It was asked where would the class be situated on campus? At this moment in 
time, Lisa had only seen the classroom location on a development map. The 
classroom has been allocated by 21st century in the new building. It is unclear if 
the proposed LSC will be in the same area of the school as the Hawthorn Speech 
and Language LSC. 

Tudalen 170



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Learning Support Class Review Consultation Events 2023 
School Name: New Hawthorn School & New Rhydyfelin School 
Venue: Hawthorn Leisure Centre 
Date  16/06/2023 Number of 

Participants: 
0 

Type of meeting: Parents of pupils 
that could attend 
the new Hawthorn 
3-16 School and 
New Welsh Medium 
School 

Local Authority 
Officers in 
attendance: 

Lisa Carter, Kate Hill, Iwan Griffiths, Ailsa Reynolds 

Temp Gov Body 
 No parents attended. 

Tudalen 171



 

 
 

Appendix 2 

 

Estyn Report 

Proposal to reconfigure mainstream learning support class provision within 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty's Inspectors of Education and 
Training in Wales. 
 

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and 
its associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to 
Estyn. However, Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the 
Code and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 
organisation matters. Therefore, as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 
opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. Estyn has 
considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the following 
response to the information provided by the proposer. 
 

The proposal is to: 

 

• To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber 
Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School with effect from 
April 2024. 

• To transfer the LSC for pupils in Years 3- 6 with Autistic Spectrum 
Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community Primary School to create a 
through Primary Phase provision at Perthcelyn Primary School taking 
effect from April 2024. 

• To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention LSC for 
pupils under statutory school age with significant presenting needs at 
Abercynon Primary School. The proposal will take effect from April 2024. 

• To establish two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new 
Welsh medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant 
ALN. The proposal will take effect from September 2024. 

• To establish one LSC for pupils in Years 7-11 with ASD at the new 3-
16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site taking effect 
from September 2024. 

 

Summary/ Conclusion 
 
Estyn welcomes the local authority's move to improve provision for pupils with 
additional learning needs (ALN) and recognises the merit of many of the strategies 
in the consultation. This includes increasing full-time specialist provision for pupils 
with significant ALN in Welsh medium schools which was an aspect identified in 
the recent local government education services inspection. Overall, it is Estyn's 
view that the information provided suggests that proposals are likely to improve 

Tudalen 172



 

 
 

the provision for learners in the local authority. However, there are a few aspects 
of the proposals that need strengthening and these are identified in our response. 
 

Description and benefits 
 
The local authority has given a clear rationale for the overall proposal. It aims to 
realign ALN provision to meet of needs of pupils, to establish additional Welsh 
medium learning support classes (LSCs) to enable pupils with significant ALN to 
access full-time specialist Welsh medium provision, to reduce the number of 
transitions between placements for vulnerable pupils and to meet the demand 
for early intervention. 

The consultation document contains a projected timetable for statutory 
procedures and clear end dates for each of the five proposals, for example 
identifying when new provision will open. It is unclear whether there are any 
proposed interim arrangements, which might be necessary for their 
implementation. 

The local authority has identified well the expected benefits of the proposal but 
has not set out clearly potential disadvantages. It recognises advantages 
fairly, such as improving the range of facilities and learning resources 
available to pupils. However, there are five separate proposals in the 
consultation and the document makes only general statements about 
disadvantages, such as 'The relocation of the named LSCs could potentially 
cause some limited disruption to the proposed host schools.' The consultation 
is not clear enough about potential risks associated with specific proposals or 
how the local authority will deal with them. The proposal does not set out 
clearly how the local authority will ensure that the disruption to learners is 
minimised, for example how it will support those pupils currently in any of the 
settings who are moved to a different provision. 

The proposal document identifies appropriately that doing nothing would mean 
that the local authority would not be meeting its statutory duty and that there is 
an identified need for this provision. However, the proposer only states that 
alternatives have been considered, without giving clear information as to what, 
or why they were discounted. 

The local authority has considered adequately the impact of the changes on 
learner travel arrangements and on accessibility of provision. The proposal 
identifies that transportation would be provided in line with the council's policy 
and placement made in the nearest and most appropriate specialist setting. It 
notes that if pupils are placed within a LSC they may be required to travel out 
of catchment, although they will endeavour to place pupils in the nearest 
appropriate LSC to their home address. 

 

The proposer identifies the number of pupils currently at each school and an 
estimate of future numbers. However, there are no projections or estimates 
for numbers of future pupils with ALN. For example, the local authority is 

Tudalen 173



 

 
 

proposing to create 18 Welsh medium places for pupils with ALN at 
Rhydyfelin but have not identified the demand for those places. Similarly, two 
of the schools in the proposal are currently being built, but the proposer has 
not provided an estimate of projected pupil numbers. 

The proposal takes good account of the impact of the proposals on Welsh 
medium provision within the local authority and the extent to which the 
proposal would support the targets in the local authority's Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan (WESP). 

 
Educational aspects of the proposal 
 
The local authority identifies fairly a range of benefits of the proposal and the 
potential impact on vulnerable pupils. The proposer identifies that 

• The relocation of the LSC provision to Abercynon Primary School 
should provide a more coordinated approach and improved 
continuum of ASD provision for pupils in the Cynon Valley. 

• Relocating the LSC currently hosted at Penrhiwceiber Primary School 
will ensure the pupils have access to suitable outdoor play areas 
which is fundamental to Early Years learning. 

• The proposals to create an enhanced through provision at Perthcelyn 
should ensure that pupils are not required to undertake any additional 
transitions and will allow those pupils who meet the criteria for the LSC to 
remain at the provision until the end of Year 6. 

• The creation of Welsh language ALN provision at Rhydfelin will ensure 
that the local authority addressed the current gap in primary-age Welsh 
medium LSC provision. 

However, the consultation document does not provide clear enough information 
on a range of educational aspects of the proposals as identified in the School 
Organisation Code, such as the impact of the proposals on the quality of 
teaching, the breadth, balance and appropriateness of the curriculum, and 
leadership and management. 

The proposal provides information from the most recent Estyn reports for each 
school likely to be affected. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 174



 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM INCLUDING SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY 

(Revised March 2021) 

Please refer to the current Equality Impact Assessment guidance when competing this document. If you would like further guidance 
please contact the Diversity and Inclusion Team on 01443 444529. 

An equality impact assessment must be undertaken at the outset of any proposal to ensure robust evidence is considered in 
decision making. This documentation will support the Council in making informed, effective and fair decisions whilst ensuring 
compliance with a range of relevant legislation, including: 

- Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
- Socio-economic Duty – Sections 1 to 3 of the Equality Act 2010. 

This document will also contribute towards our duties to create a More Equal Wales within the 

- Well-being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015. 

The ‘A More Equal Wales – Mapping Duties’ guide highlights the alignment of our duties in respect of the above-mentioned 
legislation. 

T
udalen 175

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-01/a-more-equal-wales-mapping-guide.pdf


 

SECTION 1 – PROPOSAL DETAILS 

Lead Officer: Lisa Carter 

Director: Gaynor Davies 

Service Area: Education and Inclusion Services, Access & Inclusion  

Date: 15/03/2023 

 

1.a) What are you assessing for impact? 
 

Strategy/Plan Service Re-Model/ 
Discontinuation of 
Service 

Policy/Procedure Practice Information/Position 
Statement 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
1.b) What is the name of the proposal? 

CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS MAINSTREAM LEARNING SUPPORT 
CLASS PROVISION WITHIN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

1.c) Please provide an overview of the proposal providing any supporting links to reports or documents. 
Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 requires LAs to regularly review arrangements for supporting pupils with SEN/ALN 
and to ensure that provision is sufficient and meets the needs of its communities. The priority for the Education and Inclusion 
Service Directorate is to continue to focus on driving up standards in schools and to improve the outcomes for all children and 
young people. In light of the Welsh Government ALNET Act and the Council’s vision to increase the number of Welsh 
medium learners in its schools by responding proactively to both national and local strategies, such as the Welsh 
Government Welsh Language Strategy: Cymraeg 2050, Rhondda Cynon Taf’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan and the 
current 21st Century Schools Programme to increase and improve Welsh medium provision RCT, it is essential to enhance 
ALN provision within RCT. 
 
The proposals will address surplus capacity issues and a lack of capacity in key provisions allowing resources to be directed 
to enhance capacity for mainstream inclusion, early intervention and preventative approaches. In addition, the proposals will 
address the current imbalance between the number of primary and secondary provisions, transition and accessibility issues. 
The proposals also seeks to address the need to create additional Welsh medium specialist LSC provision, in line with the 

T
udalen 176



requirements of the Additional Learning Needs Education Tribunal (ALNET) Act (2018) to provide a bilingual Additional 
Learning Needs (ALN) system. 
 
The proposals seek to achieve the following aims: 
• Reducing unnecessary transition across schools by establishing cross phase specialist provisions within individual 

schools where possible. 
• Developing a robust continuum of provision that effectively addresses a wide range of need across all year groups and 

builds upon effective early intervention and prevention approaches. 
• Establishing LSC provisions in fully accessible settings that provide a learning environment fit for the 21st Century. 
• Establish Welsh-medium provision to facilitate the learning of pupils with significant ALN in the Primary Phase. 

 

1.d) Please outline where delivery of this proposal is affected by legislation or other drivers such as code of practice. 
In developing the proposal, consideration has been given to the following: 
• Section 315 of the Education Act 1996 requires Councils to ensure that ALN provision is kept under review. 
• The Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018 (The ALNET Act 2018) requires Councils to 

keep under review the arrangements for supporting pupils with ALN within their area and consider whether these are 
sufficient. The ALNET Act 2018 is supported by the statutory Additional Learning Needs Code 2021. 

• Powers for Councils to develop school organisation proposals are governed by the School Standards and Organisation 
(Wales) Act 2013 which is supported by a statutory School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018). 

 
1.e) Please outline who this proposal affects: 

o Service users 
o Employees 
o Wider community 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

T
udalen 177

http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=16496


SECTION 2 – SCREENING TEST – IS A FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT REQUIRED? 

Screening is used to determine whether the initiative has positive, negative or neutral impacts upon protected groups. Where 
negative impacts are identified for protected groups then a full Equality Impact Assessment is required. 

Please provide as much detail as possible of how the proposal will impact on the following groups, this may not necessarily be 
negative, but may impact on a group with a particular characteristic in a specific way. 

Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation; advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and foster good relations between different 
groups. Please take an intersectional approach in recognising an individual may have more than one protected characteristic. 

T
udalen 178



 
Protected Characteristics Does the proposal 

have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Age (Specific age groups i.e. 
young people or older people) 
 
Reception – Yr2 (formerly 
Foundation Phase) 
Yr 3 – 6 (formerly Key Stage 
2)  
Yr 7 – 11 (formerly Key Stage 
3&4)  
 

Positive • Appropriate placements which are 
well matched to pupils’ primary 
needs. 

• Improved educational outcomes 
and pupil engagement due to 
meeting identified pupil needs 
more effectively.  

• Greater opportunities for 
mainstream inclusion in local 
community schools. 

• Improved continuum of learning 
provision which improves life 
chances for our most vulnerable 
learners. 

• Bilingual opportunity of LSC 
through provision for pupils with 
ALN. 

• Proposed additional classes will 
enhance LSC capacity across all 
age ranges. 

Since the inception of the 
Early Years Forum in 
September as at 30th January 
2023, 294 pupils have been 
discussed by the Forum. Of 
these pupils, 40 have been 
allocated placements within 
specialist settings and an 
additional 14 pupils have 
changed placement from 
mainstream to specialist 
provision following a period of 
assessment. 
 
During the academic year 
2022/23, the Welsh Complex 
Needs Team supported 12 
pupils with an age range of 
Year 2 to Year 11. 
 
It has been identified through 
data analysis that as of 30th 
January 2023, the potential 
number of pupils transitioning 
in 2023/24 (Year 6 to Year 7) 
without a Year 7 placement is 
14. 

T
udalen 179



 
Protected Characteristics Does the proposal 

have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Disability 
(people with visible and non- 
visible disabilities or long-term 
health conditions) 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+ 
 
Negative 
 

The review of LSC provision will 
allow the LA to better meet the 
needs of its ALN pupils. The 
proposed mainstream schools 
hosting the LSC will be fully 
compliant with all disability 
legislation. The increase of classes 
will enable more students to access 
fully accessible LSC provision while 
reducing unnecessary transition. 
 
 
LSC re-alignment will inevitably 
cause some disruption and 
uncertainty for parents and pupils for 
a period of time, although 
experience shows that this can be 
kept to a minimum and the children’s 
education and wellbeing does not 
suffer.  Access & Inclusion will 
provide support to eradicate or 
minimise any potential negative 
impact. 

All the required impact assessments 
have been undertaken, LSC re-
alignment will inevitably cause some 
disruption and uncertainty for 
parents and pupils for a period of 
time, although experience from 
previous LSC realignments has 

Delivery of new LSC provision 
enhances the educational 
opportunities for pupils with 
significant additional learning 
needs and will provide the 
required additional LSC 
provision. 
 
The positive impact that the 
proposal will have far 
outweighs the short-term 
negative impact. 
 
 

T
udalen 180



been positive. Access & Inclusion 
will provide support to eradicate or 
minimise any potential negative 
impact. This will involve 
collaboration between current LSC 
staff, Access and Inclusion staff, 
pupils and their families to ensure a 
person-centred approach is taken to 
meeting the educational and 
wellbeing needs of pupils. 
 
Concerns have been raised that the 
proposals will have a negative 
impact on pupils and may require 
some pupils to undertake additional 
transitions to another setting. 
However, it is important to highlight 
that all learners accessing 
Observation and Assessment 
placements do so on a short term 
basis whilst their needs are being 
assessed and identified to inform a 
longer term placement. Concerns 
were also raised regarding the 
transition of older pupils currently in 
the class from Abercynon as there 
would be an extra transition and the 
potential negative impact of this. The 
staff mentioned that pupils will 
experience anxiety and stress as a 
consequence of the proposed move. 
 
Robust transition plans will be put in 
place for any pupils directly affected 
by the proposals, which will be 
planned collaboratively with parents 
and staff and involve additional 

T
udalen 181



support from specialist members of 
staff from Access and Inclusion. 

Gender Reassignment 
(anybody who’s gender 
identity or gender expression 
is different to the sex they 
were assigned at birth 
including non-binary 
identities) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to Gender 
Reassignment. The implementation 
of this proposal will be monitored 
routinely. Should an impact arise 
relating to Gender Reassignment, 
this impact assessment will be 
updated to reflect this.  
 

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people 
that share this characteristic. 

T
udalen 182



 
Protected Characteristics Does the proposal 

have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership 
(people who are married or in 
a civil partnership) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to Marriage 
or Civil Partnership. The 
implementation of this proposal will 
be monitored routinely. Should an 
impact arise relating to Marriage or 
Civil Partnership, this impact 
assessment will be updated to 
reflect this.  

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people that 
share this characteristic. 

Pregnancy and Maternity 
(women who are pregnant/on 
maternity leave) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to Pregnancy 
or Maternity. The implementation of 
this proposal will be monitored 
routinely. Should an impact arise 
relating to Pregnancy or Maternity, 
this impact assessment will be 
updated to reflect this.  

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people that 
share this characteristic. 

Race 
(ethnic and racial groups i.e. 
minority ethnic groups, Gypsy, 
Roma and Travellers) 

Positive The proposal will have a positive 
impact on children and young 
people between the ages of 3 to 19 
with ALN.  As a result of the 
proposal, the Council is expected to 
deliver increased ALN provision. 

When looking at ethnicity 
data, 2022 PLASC data 
shows 93.9% of statutory 
school aged pupils where 
white British, 5.9% where 
classified as any other ethnic 
background whilst 0.2% 
where unknown. 

T
udalen 183



 
Protected Characteristics Does the proposal 

have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Religion or Belief 
(people with different religions 
and philosophical beliefs 
including people with no 
beliefs) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to Religion or 
Belief. The implementation of this 
proposal will be monitored routinely. 
Should an impact arise relating to 
Religion or Belief, this impact 
assessment will be updated to 
reflect this.  

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people that 
share this characteristic. 

Sex 
(women and men, girls and 
boys) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to Sex. The 
implementation of this proposal will 
be monitored routinely. Should an 
impact arise relating to Religion or 
Belief, this impact assessment will 
be updated to reflect this.  

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people that 
share this characteristic. 

Sexual Orientation 
(bisexual, gay, lesbian, 
straight) 

Neutral This proposal is not expected to 
have a direct impact on 
characteristics relating to sexual 
orientation. The implementation of 
this proposal will be monitored 
routinely. Should an impact arise 
relating to sexual orientation, this 
impact assessment will be updated 
to reflect this.  
 

There is no evidence to 
suggest that the proposal will 
have an impact on people that 
share this characteristic. 
 
Where a potential impact 
arises Access & Inclusion 
Service will ensure the host 
schools and LSCs follow 
Council guidance on support 
pupils with LGBTQ+ 
community. 

 

T
udalen 184



In addition, due to Council commitments made to the following groups of people we would like you to consider impacts 
upon them: 

 

 Does the proposal have any 
positive, negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

T
udalen 185



 
Armed Forces Community 
(anyone who is serving, has 
served, family members and 
the bereaved) 

Positive The increase in LSC 
provision will provide greater 
opportunity for pupils with 
significant ALN to access 
specialist provision. 

Increased numbers of LSC 
places will result in the ability 
to accommodate more 
children with significant ALN 

Carers 
(anyone of any age who 
provides unpaid care) 

Positive Increased potential to access 
appropriate specialist 
provision. 
 
Increase opportunity for 
parents/carers to choose 
appropriate Welsh medium 
specialist provision. 

The establishment of more 
LSC provision will result in 
the ability to support more 
children with significant ALN. 

 

If the initial screening test has identified negative impacts then a full equality impact assessment (section 4) must be undertaken. 
However, if after undertaking the above screening test you determine a full equality impact assessment is not relevant please 
provide an adequate explanation below: 

No negative impacts have been identified for protected groups. All impacts on protected groups will be either neutral or positive. 

Are you happy you have sufficient evidence to justify your decision? Yes           No 

Name: Lisa Carter 

Position: Inclusion Co-ordinator 

Date: 15/03/2023 

Please forward a copy of this completed screening form to the Diversity and Inclusion Team. 

T
udalen 186



PLEASE NOTE – there is a separate impact assessment for Welsh Language. This must also be completed for proposals. 
Section 3 Socio-economic Duty needs only to be completed if proposals are of a strategic nature or when reviewing previous 
strategic decisions. Definition of a ‘strategic nature’ is available on page 6 of the Preparing for the Commencement of the Socio- 
economic Duty Welsh Government Guidance. 

 
 
SECTION 3 – SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY) 

The Socio-economic Duty gives us an opportunity to do things differently and put tackling inequality genuinely at the heart of key 
decision making. Socio-economic disadvantage means living on a low income compared to others in Wales, with little or no 
accumulated wealth, leading to greater material deprivation, restricting the ability to access basic goods and services. 

Please consider these additional vulnerable groups and the impact your proposal may or may not have on them: 
 
 
 

 
• Single parents and vulnerable families 
• Pensioners 
• Looked after children 
• Homeless people 
• Students 
• Single adult households 

• People living in the most deprived areas in Wales 
• People with low literacy and numeracy 
• People who have experienced the asylum system 
• People misusing substances 
• People of all ages leaving a care setting 
• People involved in the criminal justice system 

T
udalen 187

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-07/preparing-for-the-commencement-of-the-socio-economic-duty.pdf


 
Socio-economic 
disadvantage 

Does the 
proposal have 
any positive, 
negative or 
neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Low Income/Income Poverty 
(cannot afford to maintain 
regular payments such as 
bills, food, clothing, transport 
etc.) 

Neutral The advantages of implementing the 
proposed change includes: 
• An enhanced focus on improved 

mainstream LSC provision which 
provides improved life chances for our 
most vulnerable learners. 

• Appropriate continuum of provision 
which is well matched to pupils’ 
primary needs. 

• Improved educational outcomes and 
pupil engagement due to effectively 
meeting pupil needs. 

• Greater opportunities for mainstream 
inclusion in a local community school. 

 
A disadvantage could potentially 
include additional travel for some 
pupils. However, transport would be 
provided in line with the Council’s 
Learner Travel Policy and placement 
made in the nearest and most 
appropriate specialist setting. If placed 
within a LSC pupils may be required to 
travel out of catchment although 
Access & Inclusion will endeavour to 
place pupils in the nearest appropriate 
LSC to their home address. ITU also 
have a Gatekeeping process to 
consider requests for transport that fall 
outside of the policy where it is felt that 

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in the capacity of 
the LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 

T
udalen 188

https://gov.wales/relative-income-poverty


it would be reasonable for parents to 
provide home school transport. 

T
udalen 189



 
Socio-economic 
disadvantage 

Does the proposal 
have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Low and / or No Wealth 
(enough money to meet basic 
living costs and pay bills but 
have no savings to deal with 
any unexpected spends and 
no provisions for the future) 

Neutral The advantages of implementing 
the proposed change includes: 
• Ensuring that LSC provision is 

situated within an education 
setting that is accessible and 
appropriate for pupils with wide 
ranging needs, including physical 
and medical need. 

• Improving the range and quality 
of facilities and learning 
resources available to the benefit 
of all pupils. 

• Compliance with a core aim of 
ALNET Act to create a bilingual 
ALN system. 

• The new LSC provisions will be 
hosted by schools that have the 
capacity for the development of 
an additional class due to 
surplus spaces and can 
accommodate the additional 
pupils who will be placed in the 
school.  

 
A disadvantage could potentially 
include additional travel for some 
pupils. However, transport would be 
provided in line with the Council’s 
Learner Travel Policy and placement 
made in the nearest and most 
appropriate specialist setting. If 
placed within a LSC pupils may be 

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in capacity of the 
LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 

T
udalen 190



required to travel out of catchment 
although Access & Inclusion will 
endeavour to place pupils in the 
nearest appropriate LSC to their 
home address. 

 

T
udalen 191



 
Socio-economic 
disadvantage 

Does the proposal 
have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Material Deprivation 
(unable to access basic goods 
and services i.e. financial 
products like life insurance, 
repair/replace broken 
electrical goods, warm home, 
hobbies etc.) 

Positive The advantages of implementing 
the proposed change includes: 
• An enhanced focus on improved 

mainstream LSC provision which 
provides improved life chances 
for our most vulnerable learners. 

• Appropriate continuum of 
provision which is well matched 
to pupils’ primary needs. 

• Compliance with one of the 
underpinning principles of the 
ALNET Act that all pupils should 
access mainstream education 
where possible. 

• Improved educational outcomes 
and pupil engagement through 
effectively meeting pupils’ needs. 

• Ensuring that LSC provisions are 
situated within education settings 
that are accessible and 
appropriate for pupils with wide 
ranging needs, including 
physical and medical needs. 

• Improving the range and quality 
of facilities and learning 
resources available for the 
benefit of all pupils.  

• Compliance with a core aim of 
ALNET Act to create a bilingual 
ALN system. 

• The new LSC provision will be 
hosted by schools that have the 

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in capacity of the 
LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 

T
udalen 192

https://gov.wales/material-deprivation-and-low-income


capacity for the development of 
an additional class due to 
surplus spaces and can 
accommodate the additional 
pupils who will be placed in the 
school.  

T
udalen 193



 
Socio-economic 
disadvantage 

Does the proposal 
have any positive, 
negative or neutral 
impacts 

Provide detail of the impact What evidence has been 
used to support this view? 

Area Deprivation 
(where you live (rural areas), 
where you work (accessibility 
of public transport) 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Negative 

The LSCs will be hosted in an 
accessible location to allow pupils 
across the LA access to the 
specialist provision. Transport to the 
provision will be provided in line with 
RCT Learner Travel policy so no 
pupils will be adversely impacted by 
distance.  The increase in LSCs will 
provide additional opportunities for 
pupils with significant ALN to access 
local LSC provision.  
 
If placed within a LSC pupils may be 
required to travel out of catchment 
although Access & Inclusion will 
endeavour to place pupils in the 
nearest appropriate LSC to their 
home address.  
 
Significant emphasis has been 
raised in relation to the perceived 
advantages of one community to 
another.  All schools are required 
within the new Curriculum for Wales 
to develop their individual curriculum 
building on the opportunities 
available in the school’s locality. 
Due to this requirement each 
curriculum will be unique to each 
setting but there is an expected 
consistency in the range of learning 
opportunities and the specialist 

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in the capacity of 
the LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It must be noted that both LSCs 
are thriving and as noted above 
it has been pleasing to receive 
such positive feedback 
regarding both provisions 
during this consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 194

https://gov.wales/welsh-index-multiple-deprivation-full-index-update-ranks-2019


provision available in LSCs.  
 
During the consultation the following 
question was asked: How will their 
children continue to have the same 
opportunities that they enjoy now? 
Such as weekly library visits, trips to 
the local shops, time at the organics 
garden, swimming once a week, 
horse riding attended through use of 
private minibus. 
 
 
School Council at Perthcelyn 
Community Primary School noted 
that pupils in the LSC could access 
local resources such as the park, 
community centre (clubs) and the 
fields.  Perthcelyn has lots of 
countryside surrounded the school 
and is located close to the local 
village.  A lot of community activities 
are available including using the 
paddling pool and the church.  

 
 
In line with new curriculum for 
Wales, the curriculum is 
designed by the school to build 
on the opportunities available in 
the school’s locality. This will be 
unique to each setting but there 
is an expected consistency in 
the range of learning 
opportunities and the specialist 
provision available in LSCs and 
beyond.  
 

T
udalen 195



 
Socio-economic 
background 
(social class i.e. parents 
education, employment and 
income) 

Positive Improving specialist provision for 
pupils in RCT has been at the heart 
of the decision-making process in 
relation to the proposal.   
 
All decisions have been made with 
a full understanding of the needs of 
the pupils and with the aim of 
providing high quality, fully 
accessible 21st Century specialist 
provision for pupils who require 
specialist provision in a LSC within 
a fully inclusive mainstream setting. 
 
ALN to benefit from having the 
opportunity to be taught in brand 
new facilities fit for the 21st century. 
 
The new host schools will be fully 
accessible and compliant with the 
Equality Act 2010. Accommodation 
will consist of: 
• modern, flexible learning 

environments for all pupils, a 
hall/dining area, and a multi-
purpose learning resource area; 

• enhanced outdoor spaces to 
support the full range of 
curriculum activities; 

• traffic management systems 
including on-site pupil bus drop 
off, and on-site staff parking. 

 
 

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in the capacity of 
the LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 T
udalen 196



Socio-economic 
disadvantage 
(What cumulative impact will 
the proposal have on people 
or groups because of their 
protected characteristic(s) or 
vulnerability or because they 
are already disadvantaged) 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Negative 

The new LSCs will positively impact 
pupils with significant additional 
learning needs and their 
parents/carers. 
 
The proposed changes to the 
current and establishment of new 
LSC provisions provides pupils with 
significant learning needs the 
bilingual opportunity for pupils to 
attend LSC provision in mainstream 
schools. 
 
There is no negative impact to any 
individual who may be financially or 
materially disadvantaged, as the 
new provisions will provide 
additional opportunities for children 
to access Welsh medium, Early 
Years and Autistic Spectrum 
Disorder specialist provision. 
 
For those pupils attending provision 
that will be relocating there will be 
some short term disruption that may 
incur a level of anxiety to both 
parents and pupils. This was raised 
by School Council at Penrhiwceiber 
Primary School who felt the children 
may initially find it ‘tricky’ to settle as 
they are not used to it.  However, 
they also noted that the children 
would be able to make more friends 
in a new school and should move 
due to larger space to move around 
for play.   

• Previous establishment of 
new LSC provision 
throughout the county 
borough. 

• Increase in the capacity of 
the LA to support pupils with 
additional learning needs. 

• Positive impact of 
establishing the LSCs on 
the school and wider 
communities. 

 

T
udalen 197



 
Those affected will be supported by 
Access & Inclusion during the 
transition phase. Those staff 
working in a LSC that is proposed to 
be relocated will move with the LSC 
pupils to ensure their expertise is 
maintained and that the pupils have 
continuity of staff supporting them. 
 
The proposed change in provision 
has some implications for a small 
number of pupils (currently 3 pupils) 
who currently attend an affected 
LSC but were due to transfer to 
Abercynon LSC in September 2023. 
To minimise any potential negative 
impact upon individual pupils, 
parents have been provided with 
the option to move to Abercynon 
LSC or to remain in Perthcelyn with 
additional support provided within 
the current Perthcelyn ASD LSC in 
September 2023.   These 
arrangements will remain in place 
until a decision regarding the 
proposal has been reached, parents 
have been made fully aware of the 
implications of the option they have 
chosen. 

 
  

T
udalen 198



SECTION 4 – FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

You should use the information gathered at the screening stage to assist you in identifying possible negative/adverse impacts and 
clearly identify which groups are affected. 

 
 
4.a) In terms of disproportionate/negative/adverse impacts that the proposal may have on a protected group, outline 

the steps that will be taken to reduce or mitigate the impact for each group identified. Attach a separate action plan 
where impacts are substantial. 
Overall no substantial negative impacts have been identified in this equality impact assessment. However, a potential 
negative impact has been identified in relation to the short term disruption of pupils attending the LSCs proposed to 
relocate. To mitigate this potential impact, staff working in a LSC that is proposed to be relocated will move with the LSC 
pupils to ensure their expertise is maintained and that the pupils have continuity of staff supporting them. 
 

4.b) If ways of reducing the impact have been identified but are not possible, please explain why they are not possible. 
The potential negative impact has been mitigated as detailed above. 
 

4.c) Give sufficient detail of data or research that has led to your reasoning, in particular, the sources used for 
establishing the demographics of service users/staff. 
o Data analysis is based on data derived from the Access & Inclusion data systems and PLASC where appropriate.  
o Qualitative reasoning gathered from the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 21st Century Schools 

Team and Access and Inclusion Team and the Council’s Corporate Estates Team. 
 

4.d) Give details of how you engaged with service users/staff on the proposals and the steps taken to avoid any 
disproportionate impact on a protected group. Explain how you have used feedback to influence your decision. 
In line with the School Organisation Code detailed cabinet reports, consultation documentation and consultation 
feedback reports have been written at each stage of the process to support the proposed realignment of LSC provision.  
All reports clearly identify the need for additional LSC provision and the data rationale behind the proposal. The 
consultation was undertaken between the 5th June and 14th July 2023 the consultation report will shortly be shared with 
cabinet and all relevant stakeholders. It is noted that there has been a good response to this statutory consultation 
process; 127 completed questionnaires, 12 letters/emails and 3 petitions.  A further online petition was submitted by the 
Perthcelyn Community, however it has not been considered as it was received after the deadline. Meetings have been 
held with all impacted Schools Councils, Governing Bodies and staff.  The feedback received has informed amendments 
to the proposal for Cabinet to consider further.  Details can be found in the Consultation Feedback Report. 

 

T
udalen 199



 

4.e) Are you satisfied that the engagement process complies with the requirements of the Statutory Equality and Socio-
economic Duties? 

Yes                    No 

T
udalen 200



The consultation was undertaken on 5th June 2023 - 14th July 2023. 
 
Face to face meetings were held with the staff, School Councils and Governing Bodies of the special schools across RCT. 
 
A Consultation Response Form has also been available at on the Council’s website on the ‘Get Involved’ page. The Consultation 
Response Form enabled consultees to indicate if they wished to be notified of the publication of the Consultation Report, once 
presented to the Council’s Cabinet. 

 
Consultees have also been welcomed to put their views, comments, and any questions in writing to: 

 
Director of Education and Inclusion Services 
Access & Inclusion Service 
Ty Trevithick 
Abercynon 
CF45 4UQ 

 
Or 

 
E-mail: A&IService@rctcbc.gov.uk  
 
Children and young people have a right to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their views to be heard and 
considered in accordance with their age and maturity. As such, the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
Access & Inclusion Service held meetings with the School Councils of all potentially impacted host schools, children and young 
people will be encouraged to be active participants throughout this process.  

A drop in session was arranged so that members of the public could discuss the proposal with Officers from the Councils 
Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services. 
 
This Equality Impact Assessment was updated following the completion of the consultation to include any necessary feedback. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 201

mailto:A&IService@rctcbc.gov.uk


SECTION 5 – MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
5.a) Please outline below how the implementation of the proposal will be monitored: 

The proposal is made in accordance with the School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018). Section 2.1 of the School Organisation 
Code 2018 refers to elements of school organisation that require the publication of proposals, including: 
• The opening of a maintained school (including special school). 
• The closing of a maintained school (including special school). 
 

The consultation started on 5th June 2023 and completed at 17:00 on 14th July 2023. 

Face to face meetings were arranged with the staff, School Councils and Governing Bodies of the host schools across RCT. 

A Consultation Response Form was available at on the Council’s website on the ‘Get Involved’ page. The Consultation Response 
Form enabled consultees to indicate if they wished to be notified of the publication of the Consultation Report, once presented 
to the Council’s Cabinet. 

 
The Council’s Access & Inclusion Service will be fully engaged in supporting the head teacher and governing body to establish 
the LSC provision through its well-established line management and quality assurance processes relating to its management 
of LSC provisions. In line with the requirements of the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal Act (ALNET) and 
Education Act 1996, the LA will continue to keep its LSC provision under review to ensure that it meets the identified needs of 
its learners with ALN in RCT.  

Interested parties have been welcomed to put their views in writing to: 

Director of Education and Inclusion Services  
Access & Inclusion Service 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
Ty Trevithick 
Abercynon 
CF45 4UQ 
or e-mail A&IService@rctcbc.gov.uk  

 
Children and young people have a right to express their views in all matters affecting them and for their views to be heard and 
considered in accordance with their age and maturity. As such, the Councils Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services 
Access & Inclusion Service held meetings with the School Councils of all potentially impacted host schools, children and young 
people will be encouraged to be active participants throughout this process.  

T
udalen 202

mailto:A&IService@rctcbc.gov.uk


A drop in session was arranged so that members of the public could discuss the proposal with Officers from the Councils 
Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services. 
 

5.b)     When is the evaluation of the proposal due to be reviewed? 
The Council’s Cabinet will consider the Consultation Report and decide, based on the feedback, whether to proceed with the 
proposal, amend the proposal or not proceed with the proposal. If the Council’s Cabinet decides not to proceed, that will be the 
end of the proposal. 
 
If the Council’s Cabinet decide to proceed with the proposal, a Statutory Notice will be published providing a 28 day notice period 
for objections. The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2018 requires that anyone wishing to make objections to a 
school organisation proposal can do so. To be considered as statutory objections, objections must be made in writing or by 
email, and sent to the Council within 28 days of the date on which the Statutory Notice was published. 
 
The Council’s Cabinet will consider the outcome of the Statutory Notice at the next available Cabinet meeting and determine the 
proposal. 
 
If there are objections, the Council’s Director of Education and Inclusion Services will publish an Objection Report providing a 
summary of the objections and the response to them within seven days of the day of the determination of the proposal. 
 
If the Council’s Cabinet approve the proposal, it will be implemented in accordance with the date stated in the Statutory Notice 
or any subsequently modified date. In the case of the proposal, the implementation date will be no later than the 2026 academic 
year. 

 
5.c) Who is responsible for the monitoring and review of the proposal? 

Officers from the Access & Inclusion Service will monitor the proposal throughout the consultation and implementation 
period. 
 

5.d) How will the results of the monitoring be used to develop future proposals? 
The Access & Inclusion Service will undertake a ‘Lessons Learnt’ review at the end of the implementation phase and this will 
feed into future projects so that each project improves and benefits from lessons learnt (positive and negative) during 
previous projects. 

T
udalen 203



 

SECTION 6 – REVIEW 

As part of the Impact Assessment process all proposals that fall within the definition of ‘Key Decisions’ must be submitted to the 
Review Panel. This panel is made up of officers from across Council Services and acts as a critical friend before your proposal is 
finalised and published for SLT/Cabinet approval. 

 
If this proposal is a Key Decision please forward your impact assessment to Councilbusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk for a Review Panel to 
be organised to discuss your proposal. The EqIA guidance document provides more information on what a Key Decision is. 

 
It is important to keep a record of this process so that you can demonstrate how you have considered equality and socio-economic 
outcomes. Please ensure you update the relevant sections below: 

 
 

 
Officer Review Panel Comments Date 

Considered 
Brief description of any amendments made following 
Officer Review Panel considerations 

• In general, the Impact Assessment could be 
strengthened by using the information 
contained within the consultation report as 
there is a wealth of information from Estyn, 
School Council etc to make it more robust 
and demonstrate due regard. 

• Disability section – requires more 
information given the nature of the proposal 
as ASD counts as disability under the 
Equality Act. 

• Page 125 – Transition plans and mitigation 
to be included; 

• Page 141 – Transition comments from 
teachers could be included.  

• Disability section – It notes that individuals 
may experience uncertainty for a period of 
time but this could be more specific and 
there is an opportunity for more clarity as to 
why it is both a positive and a negative i.e. 
is one long term, etc. 

5th 
September 
2023 

Review Panel Comments have been noted and actioned 
as appropriate.   
 
Narrative from the Consultation Feedback Report has been 
included within the assessment including pupils’ comments 
where appropriate. 
 
Review Panel comments regarding transport have been 
noted but as agreed in the panel discussions pupils will not 
be disadvantaged as the home to school transport policy 
will be applied equitably.  However, the assessment has 
been strengthened by including reference to the 
Gatekeeping process undertaken by ITU. 

T
udalen 204

mailto:Councilbusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk


• Socio-economic – more data from the 
consultation would make it more robust 
(location and transport need to be 
addressed). 

• Pages 125-127 - Area deprivation – There’s 
several comments in respect of the move to 
Abercynon – include 125/126/127 
mitigations and the opportunities for 
children – Estyn comments 133 could be 
added.  

• Pages 127 and 141 - Pupil comments to be 
included to show you’ve engaged. 

• Good use of the Welsh Index for Multiple 
Deprivation within the socio-economic 
section. 

• Area Deprivation section - Transport has 
been flagged but is there a need to be more 
specific on numbers and if there’s a 
financial detriment to families as parents 
have raised this in the consultation? 
Opportunity to state that parents aren’t 
losing out financially, that it is consistent 
with mainstream pupils and in line with 
existing home to school policy. 

• Section 4B has merged with 4A - HD to 
send LC/CJ a clean copy of an EIA to 
ensure the correct format is used; 

• Section 4C needs to be clear with the 
amount of engagement undertaken. 

• Section 6 needs to be updated to 
demonstrate that a number of potential 
negatives and mitigations have been put in 
place. 

Consultation Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following 
consultation 

No comments have been received during the LSC 
consultation process regarding this assessment. 

5th June – 14th 
July  

 

T
udalen 205



SECTION 6 – SUMMARY OF IMPACTS FOR THE PROPOSAL 

Provide below a summary of the impact assessment. This summary should be included in the equality and socio-
economic impact section of the Cabinet report template. The impact assessment should be published alongside the 
report. 

In summary, the Equality Impact Assessment identifies positive and neutral impacts, and mitigations have been provided for any 
potential negative impacts upon pupils with protected characteristics. 

• The impact on age is extremely positive as they will have the full benefit of  being educated in specialist LSC 
provision based in fantastic facilities fit for the 21st Century. Providing an inclusive model of specialist provision 
hosted by a mainstream school that can meet their identified needs within their local community. 

• The buildings will be fully compliant with the Equality Act 2010 thereby ensuring that no pupil, staff member, parent/carer or 
member of the wider community is prevented from fully accessing the whole extent of the new facilities. 

• There will be positive impact on the Welsh language as the proposal seeks to establish more Welsh medium specialist LSC 
provision, in line with the requirements of the Additional Learning Needs Education Tribunal (ALNET) Act (2018) to develop 
a bilingual Additional Learning Needs (ALN) system. It also aims to assist with the delivery of strategic priorities within 
RCTCBC’s WESP. 

There is an expectation that pupils in all LSCs will have mainstream inclusion opportunities.  The LSCs are integral to the ethos of 
the host schools and families and pupils are treated equitably alongside mainstream peers. The realignment of LSCs and 
establishment of the proposed LSCs will ensure the LA has bilingually provided suitable provision to support children with ALN. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 206



SECTION 7 – AUTHORISATIONS 

Lead Officer:  
 
Name: Lisa Carter 

Position: Inclusion Co-ordinator 

Date: 15/03/2023 

I recommend that the proposal: 

- Is implemented with no amendments  
- Is implemented taking into account the mitigating actions outlined 
- Is rejected due to disproportionate negative impacts on protected groups or socio-economic disadvantage 

 
 
Head of Service/Director Approval: 
 
Name: Ceri Jones 

Position: Head of Inclusion Services 

Date: 19th April 2023 

 

Please submit this impact assessment with any SLT/Cabinet Reports. 

T
udalen 207



T
udalen w

ag



APPENDIX 3 

Community Impact Assessment 
 
 
This Community Impact Assessment is prepared in accordance with the School 
Organisation Code – 2018 (011/2018). It is to be read alongside the Consultation 
Document, the Welsh Language Impact Assessment and the Equality Impact 
Assessment as the information in all documents is related and the themes within them 
are cross-cutting. 
 
Section 2.3 of the School Organisation Code – 2018 refers to regulated alterations to 
a school which includes: 
 

• The introduction or removal of SEN/ALN provision or any change in the type of 
such provision. This is where the provision is in a mainstream school but the 
pupils who are admitted are in addition to admission number of the school. The 
provision must also be recognised by the local authority as reserved for pupils 
with SEN/ALN;  

 
The proposals include:  
 

• To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber Primary 
School to Abercynon Community Primary School taking effect from April 2024. 

• To transfer the LSC for Years 3-6 pupils with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) 
at Abercynon Community Primary School to create a through provision in the 
Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary School taking effect from April 2024. 

• To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention LSC for pupils under 
statutory school age with significant presenting needs Abercynon Primary 
School. The proposal will take effect from April 2024. 

• To establish two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh 
medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN. The 
proposal will take effect from September 2024. 

• To establish one LSC for pupils Years 7-11 with ASD at the new 3-16 school 
on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site taking effect from September 2024. 

 
The proposals are to be consulted on between 5th June and 14th July 2023. A detailed 
Consultation Document has been circulated to all prescribed stakeholders and the 
Community Impact Assessment is an appendix of this main document.  Copies will be 
forwarded to the Welsh Government in compliance with consultation and publication 
guidelines.  
 
 
Proposal:  
 
1. To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber 

Primary School to Abercynon Community Primary School taking effect 
from April 2024. 
 
RCT is proposing to relocate its Observation and Assessment class from 
Penrhiwceiber to Abercynon. This proposal will ensure greater compliance with 
the Equality Act 2010 and relocation to significantly improved premises which 

Tudalen 209



have benefited from 21st Century Schools Modernisation and Investment 
Programme. The provision will continue to accommodate 8 pupils aged 3-7 
years old and placements within the LSC will be agreed in the Access and 
Inclusion ALN panels. 

 
 
2. To transfer the LSC for pupils in Years 3-6 with Autistic Spectrum 

Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community Primary School to create a 
through provision at the Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary School 
taking effect from April 2024. 
 
The proposal to relocate the class at Abercynon to Perthcelyn will minimise 
unnecessary transition for pupils with ASD, provide continuity in their 
educational placements and ensure that a higher number of specialist LSC 
provisions provide equity for pupils in LSCs so that they remain in one setting 
until transition to secondary provision in line with their mainstream peers. The 
provision will continue to accommodate 10 pupils and placements within the 
LSC will be agreed in the Access and Inclusion ALN panels. 

 
3. To establish one Early Years Assessment and Intervention LSC for pupils 

under statutory school age with significant presenting needs at 
Abercynon Primary School. The proposal will take effect from April 2024. 

 
RCT is proposing to enhance the Early Years Assessment and Intervention 
provision within the County Borough by creating an additional LSC to support 
pre-statutory school age pupils with significant presenting needs. The class will 
support 8 pre-statutory school aged pupils. 

 
 
4. To establish two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh 

medium primary school in Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN. The 
proposal will take effect from September 2024. 

 
The proposal is to enhance the Welsh medium Additional Learning Needs 
provision within the County Borough by creating LSC provision for pupils in 
Reception Years 6 currently at the school, therefore creating specialist Welsh 
medium provision for pupils with significant ALN from Reception – Year 11. The 
classes will support 8 pupils within reception to Year 2 and 10 pupils in Years 
3-6. 

 
 
5. To establish one LSC for pupils in academic Years 7-11 with ASD at the 

new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site taking effect 
from September 2024. 

 
To address the current capacity issues, it is proposed RCT opens an additional 
LSC for pupils in Years 7-11 with ASD at the new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn 
Primary/High School site. This is to ensure the LA meets the demands for 
specialist ASD provision in its secondary phase. 

Tudalen 210



Community Impact 
 
The reasons for consideration of these proposals are fully outlined in the consultation 
document that will be widely distributed; this document clearly outlines the background 
to the proposals and why it has been necessary to bring it forward at this point in time. 
 
The creation of the new provisions is seen as positive. The proposals will not have any 
significant impact on local communities as more local pupils will be able to access 
specialist provision within their local community. However, where it is proposed to 
relocate existing LSCs it is acknowledged that there will be short term impact upon the 
immediate local communities as they will lose their current inclusive specialist 
provision. The LSCs will make effective use of any surplus space within the school 
and develop a resource that will be of benefit to vulnerable pupils and their 
parents/carers. The proposed establishment of the LSCs will enhance the overall 
ability of the host schools to meet a diverse range of needs as there will be further 
specialist ALN expertise within the school.  
 
Impact on Health and Wellbeing 
 
It is anticipated that the proposals will have a significantly positive impact on the health 
and wellbeing of pupils with significant ALN attending Welsh medium provision as it 
will enhance the current inclusive model provided by the specialist Welsh medium 
Peripatetic Team and address the current gap in full time specialist Welsh medium 
ALN provision. The relocation of classes will allow pupils to access buildings that have 
benefited from the modernisation programme and the creation of additional Early 
Years and ASD provision will meet the rising demand for specialist provision in these 
specific areas of need in RCT. For the few pupils currently attending the two LSCs 
proposed to relocate to new host schools, there will be some short term disruption. 
Impact upon pupils and their families will be mitigated though the relocation of the 
same staff to the new host schools, thus providing consistency and continuity to 
support pupils and families through the transition process. Central Access and 
Inclusion staff will also provide enhanced support to the affected LSCs during this 
period. 
 
Current ‘Out of hours’ Usage 
 
Any services currently provided by the schools to parents, pupils and the communities 
will remain unaltered for example; breakfast and afterschool clubs.  
 
Community Safety 
 
The host schools will be a fully accessible and within fully integrated community 
schools. No concerns regarding community safety are anticipated. 
 
Transport and Travel Implications 
 
There is a statutory duty placed upon all Local Authorities in Wales to provide pupils 
with free transport to their nearest suitable school if they reside beyond ‘safe walking 
distance’ to that school. The term suitable school applies to the catchment area 
English, Welsh, dual language or voluntary aided mainstream primary school, 

Tudalen 211



secondary school or special school/class as appropriate. The law relating to safe 
‘walking distance’ is defined as two miles for pupils of compulsory school age receiving 
primary education and three miles for pupils of compulsory school age receiving 
secondary education. If placed within the LSC pupils may be required to travel out of 
catchment.  
 
Further information in relation to the Council’s Home to School transport provision 
can be viewed and downloaded from the council website via: 
 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/SchoolandCo
llegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx 
 
 
Community Engagement 
 
Members of the public wishing to find out more information on the proposed changes 
can view the proposal documents under the ‘Get Involved’ section of the RCT 
corporate website. Members of the public are also encouraged to provide feedback on 
the consultation using the online proforma 
(https://RCTCBC.welcomesyourfeedback.net/r9g1ao). Parents/Carers, School 
Council, School Staff and the School Governing Bodies directly affected by these 
changes are invited to a consultation event where they can discuss the proposals with 
Officers from the Council’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services. Below is 
a timetable of the stakeholder events including the time, date and location of each 
event. 
 

School Affected Group-Pupils/ 
Staff/Parents 

Time Date Venue 

Abercynon 
Primary 

Community 
School 

 

School Council 
 

13:15 – 
14:00pm 

12th June 
2023 

 

Abercynon Primary 
Community School 

 Parents  14:00 – 
15:00pm 

Staff/Governing 
Body 

 

16:00 – 
16:45pm 

Perthcelyn 
Primary School 

School Council 
 

14:15 – 
15:00pm 

13th June 
2023 

 

Perthcelyn Primary 
School 

Parents  15:15 – 
16:00pm 

Staff/Governing 
Body 

 

16:00 – 
16:45pm 

Penrhiwceiber 
Primary School 

School Council 
 

14:15 – 
15:00pm 

14th June 
2023 

Penrhiwceiber 
Primary School 

Parents  15:15 – 
16:00pm 

Staff/Governing 
Body 

 

16:00 – 
16:45pm 

Tudalen 212

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/SchoolandCollegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/ParkingRoadsandTravel/Travel/SchoolandCollegeTransport/SchoolandCollegeTransport.aspx
https://rctcbc.welcomesyourfeedback.net/r9g1ao


 
 
 
 
 

 New 3-16 school 
on the Hawthorn 

Primary/High 
School site 

 
New Welsh 

medium School 

School Council 
Heol-y-Celyn 

Primary School 

9:15 – 
10:00am 

15th June 
2023 

 

Heol-y-Celyn 
Primary School 

School Council 
YGG Pontsion 

Norton 

10:15 – 
11:00am 

15th June 
2023 

 

YGG Pontsion 
Norton 

School Council 
Hawthorn Primary 

School 

11:30 – 
12:15pm 

15th June 
2023 

 

Hawthorn Primary 
School 

School Council 
Hawthorn High 

School  

12:30 – 
13:15pm 

15th June 
2023 

 

Hawthorn High 
School 

Staff/Temporary 
Governing Bodies 

 

16:00 – 
16:45pm 

15th June 
2023 

Via Teams: 
Click here to join the 

meeting 
 

Parents  15:15 – 
16:00pm 

16th June 
2023 

Hawthorn Leisure 
Centre 

Tudalen 213

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZGY4ZGQ1ZTUtZDJkOC00NzAxLThkZDAtMmEzY2Y0ZGI4MTM1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e75db9ba-aa17-4e00-a54e-3ad437d7409e%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b6db2e23-d0d0-4472-99dd-11db1b0a6dee%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZGY4ZGQ1ZTUtZDJkOC00NzAxLThkZDAtMmEzY2Y0ZGI4MTM1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e75db9ba-aa17-4e00-a54e-3ad437d7409e%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b6db2e23-d0d0-4472-99dd-11db1b0a6dee%22%7d


Tudalen wag



 

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT TOOL 
 

This Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIS) tool enables RCT Council to consider the principles and requirements of the Welsh Language 
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 to ensure compliance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. 

Stage 1 – Information Gathering  
 
NOTE:  As you complete this tool you will be asked for evidence to support your views. Please see Welsh Language Impact Assessment 
Guidance for more information on data sources.  
 

Proposal Name: 
 

CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO REALIGN ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS MAINSTREAM 
LEARNING SUPPORT CLASS PROVISION WITHIN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

Department 
 

Access & Inclusion Service 

Service Director 
 

Gaynor Davies, Director of Education and Inclusion Services 

Officer Completing the WLIA 
 

Lisa Carter 

Email 
 

Lisa.c.carter@rctcbc.gov.uk  

Phone 
 

01443 744344 

Brief Description 
 

To realign current provision to meet the demand for specialist placements. This will be achieved by the following 
adjustments to LSC provision: 

• To relocate the Observation and Assessment LSC at Penrhiwceiber Primary School to Abercynon 
Community Primary School taking effect from April 2024. 

• To transfer the LSC for pupils Year 3-6 with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) at Abercynon Community 
Primary School to create a through provision at Primary Phase at Perthcelyn Primary School taking effect 
from April 2024. 

• To establish one Early Years Assessment & Intervention LSC for pupils under statutory school age with 
significant presenting needs at Abercynon Primary School. The proposal will take effect from April 2024. 

• To establish two Primary Phase Welsh medium LSCs at the new Welsh medium primary school in 
Rhydyfelin for pupils with significant ALN.  The proposal will take effect from September 2024. 

T
udalen 215

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2015/996/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/1/contents/enacted
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx
mailto:Lisa.c.carter@rctcbc.gov.uk


 

• To establish one LSC for pupils Year 7 – 11 with ASD at the new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn 
Primary/High School site taking effect from September 2024. 

 
Date  

 
16th March 2023; updated 6th September 2023. 

Please outline who this 
proposal affects?  

(Service Users, Employees, 
Wider Community) 

 

Pupils with Additional Learning Needs requiring specialist provision, their parents/carers and the wider 
additional learning needs community.  

 

What are the aims of the 
policy, and how do these 

relate to the Welsh 
Language? 

The aim of these proposals is to realign current ALN provision to meet the demand for specialist placements. 
At present, learners with significant additional learning needs attending Welsh medium schools who meet the 
criteria for Primary Phase LSC provision are supported by a specialist peripatetic team through an inclusive 
delivery support model. The Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal Act (ALNET) 2018 stipulates 
that all local authorities must develop bilingual ALN provision. The establishment of 2 Welsh medium LSCs in 
the new Welsh medium school in Rhydyfelin will ensure Welsh support is available to learners with ALN who 
meet the LSC criteria. The LSCs will support 18 pupils with significant additional learning needs in the Primary 
Phase. 

Who will benefit / Could the 
policy affect Welsh language 

groups?  
If so, list them here.  

• Welsh medium learners with significant additional learning needs. 
• Early Years pre-statutory school age pupils presenting significant needs. 
• Year 7-11 (formerly Key Stage 3/4) English medium pupils with ASD. 
• Pupils at the hosting schools. 
• Parent/carers of pupils attending hosting schools and those with children/young people with significant 

additional learning needs. 
• Staff at hosting schools. 
• The hosting schools are: Abercynon Primary Community School, Perthcelyn Primary School, new Welsh 

medium primary school at Rhydyfelin, the new 3-16 school on the Hawthorn Primary/High School site. 
Current linguistic profile of 

the geographical area(s) 
concerned 

The 2021 Census figures regarding the Welsh language show a decrease in the percentage of Welsh speakers 
across Wales to 17.8%. There was, however, a small increase in RCT – the percentage of the population of the 
county borough who can speak Welsh increased from 12.3% to 12.4%. Numerically, RCT saw a 2.8% increase 
in the number of Welsh speakers in the county borough, from 27,779 speakers to 28,556 speakers. RCT was 

T
udalen 216



 

also one of only four LAs in Wales to see an increase in the percentage of Welsh speakers – the others were 
Cardiff, the Vale of Glamorgan and Merthyr Tydfil. All of these are neighbouring county boroughs, which could 
demonstrate that our region is seeing some positive trends in terms of increases in Welsh speakers, and that 
there may be a resulting increase in demand for services through the medium of Welsh. As further, more 
detailed, data from the Census becomes available for RCT (e.g. LSOA data), we will need to consider what 
impact it may have on the services we provide. 
 
The table that follows illustrates the Welsh language skills of residents living in the County Borough of Rhondda 
Cynon Taf and is obtained from the 2021 Census. 
 
Table 1: Welsh Language Skills of Residents (Census 2021) – (%) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 County Borough of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf 

All Wales 

Can Speak, Read and 
Write Welsh 

10.1% 14.8% 

Can Speak and Read 
but Cannot Write 
Welsh 

0.7% 1.2% 

Can Speak but Cannot 
Read or Write Welsh 

1.4% 2.4% 

Can read but cannot 
speak or write Welsh 

1.6% 1.4% 

Can write but cannot 
speak or read Welsh 

0.2% 0.2% 

Can read and write but 
cannot speak Welsh 

0.5% 0.6% 

Can Understand 
Spoken Welsh Only 

4.0% 5.5% 

Other Combination of 
Skills 

0.1% 0.2% 

No Skills  81.3% 77.1% 
Total 100.0% 100.0% 

T
udalen 217



 

The Annual Population Survey collects information about respondents’ Welsh speaking ability and includes a 
question on how often people speak Welsh. It is updated quarterly, so is a more up-to-date source than the 
Census. The most recent Annual Population Survey, for the year ending 31 March 2023, reported that 20.2% 
of respondents living in the County Borough of Rhondda Cynon Taf said they could speak Welsh, compared to 
the-all Wales percentage of 29.7% of respondents. This can be further broken down to the data contained in 
the table that follows. 
 
Table 2: Welsh Language Skills of Residents (Annual Population Survey) 
 

Welsh Language Skills of Residents – (%) 
 County 

Borough of 
Rhondda 
Cynon Taf 

Wales 

Can read Welsh 18.8% 26.0% 
Can write Welsh 17.2% 23.9% 
Can understand spoken Welsh  23.0% 33.5% 

 
The data demonstrates that in each Welsh language skill area, the all-Wales percentages are notably higher 
than the County Borough percentages.   
 
When asked about their frequency of speaking Welsh, the table that follows shows a breakdown of responses 
of respondents living in the County Borough of Rhondda Cynon Taf compared to the-all Wales responses. 
 
Table 3: Welsh Language Skills of Residents (Annual Population Survey) 
 
Welsh Language Skills of Residents – (%) 
 County 

Borough of 
Rhondda 
Cynon Taf 

Wales 

Speak Welsh daily 7.4% 15.0% 

T
udalen 218



 

Speak Welsh weekly 5.1% 5.8% 
Use it less often or never 5.2% 8.9% 

 
The data demonstrates that the percentage of respondents that speak Welsh daily is far lower for the County 
Borough than the-all Wales percentage.  
 
The Welsh Language Use Survey for the years 2013 to 2015, contains detailed information about Welsh 
speaker’s fluency and their use of the Welsh language in a range of settings. When looking where respondents 
living in Wales learned to speak Welsh, the majority, 45.0%, learned to speak Welsh at home, followed by 
26.0% who learned to speak Welsh at nursery school and primary school between the ages of 2 to 10 and 
14.0% who learned to speak Welsh at secondary school at the age of 11 plus. The remaining 2.0% learned to 
speak Welsh in other settings, including at ‘Welsh for Adults’ courses.  
 
The data above clearly shows that there is a gap in the Welsh language skills of residents of Rhondda Cynon 
Taf when compared to the whole of Wales. Proposals such as this significantly improve the opportunities 
available for Welsh learners with ALN through providing targeted specialist Welsh medium LSC provision for 
learners with significant additional learning needs in a 21st Century School environment. The headteacher of 
the new school will be encouraged and supported to consider using the community use facilities at the school 
to increase participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity for parents, carers and other 
members of the community to attend Welsh classes and/or other opportunities for community engagement 
through the medium of Welsh. The school will be designed to be a fully accessible and there will be a dedicated 
area within the school itself so that the local community will be allowed to safely utilise the facilities at the school. 
 
In recent years, support has been given to promote and increase learners’ use of the Welsh language in primary 
and secondary schools and in social contexts. This has been done through the Welsh Language Charter (Siarter 
Iaith/Cymraeg Campus), developed by Gwynedd Council, and various other projects, in partnership with the 
CSCJES and the Urdd to provide opportunities for learners to use the Welsh language in different contexts. In 
terms of the schools involved in this proposal - 
• Perthcelyn Primary School have received their bronze and silver Cymraeg Campus awards and are working 

towards achieving the gold award. 
• Abercynon Primary School have engaged with the Cymraeg Campus provision and are working with 

CSCJES to achieve their bronze award. 

T
udalen 219



 

• Hawthorn Primary School have received their bronze Cymraeg Campus award and are now working towards 
achieving the silver and Hawthorn High School have engaged with the programme and are working towards 
achieving the bronze award.  
 

An evaluation conducted in July 2023 whilst gathering information and data for the WESP Annual Review Report 
evidenced the positive impact the Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus programme has had on the use of the Welsh 
language in English medium schools. 13 English medium primary schools from different areas of the County 
Borough were contacted and all reported an increased use of incidental Welsh throughout the school with more 
children playing yard games through the medium of Welsh and more assemblies being held with focus on the 
Welsh language, history and heritage. The Siarter Iaith Cymraeg Campus programme has been rolled out to all 
special schools and units in Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council and many have already begun their 
journey to receiving the awards. The continued roll out of this programme will support the Welsh Government’s 
target of one million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the targets set out in the Council’s new WESP (2022 
to 2032). 

Other relevant data or 
research 

 

Having reviewed internal data it was noted that due to a lack of Welsh medium LSC provision, 7% of the total 
number of pupils accessing specialist settings have previously attended Welsh medium provision.  
 
The most recent data available from PLASC 2023 shows that there are currently 1,926 (6.28%) learners with 
ALN attending English medium schools and 256 (3.58%) learners with ALN attending Welsh medium schools 
across the County Borough. When comparing this with data available from PLASC for the previous year, the 
number of learners with ALN in schools across Rhondda Cynon Taf has increased, please see table below. 
 
Table 4: Learners with ALN attending schools across the County Borough (PLASC) 
 

Number and Percentage of Learners with ALN Attending Schools in RCT 
 2021 - 2022 2022 - 2023 

Number % Number % 
English Medium Education 1,508 4.87% 1,926 6.28% 
Welsh Medium Education  200 2.77% 256 3.58% 

 
In line with the Council’s new WESP, in order to achieve the targets of the WESP we will continue to ensure the 
benefits of the Welsh language and Welsh medium education are promoted to parents/carers from the initial 
early years, through to primary and secondary education and onwards through to higher and further education 

T
udalen 220



 

for all learners, whatever their learning need. In line with Outcome 6 of the WESP, the Council are committed 
to increasing the provision of Welsh medium education for learners with ALN (in accordance with the duties 
imposed by the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act 2018).  
 
The continuing development of Welsh medium ALN provision will form part of the Local Authority’s Access and 
Inclusion Services’ action planning, monitoring, evaluating and reviewing processes. This will ensure the 
sufficiency of Welsh medium additional learning provision for learners with ALN in Rhondda Cynon Taf is kept 
under review to ensure arrangements are sufficient to meet the needs of learners and to identify any emerging 
needs or gaps in provision.  
 
Section 63 of the ALNET Act (2018) highlights the Duty on local authorities to keep under review the 
arrangements that they and the governing bodies of maintained schools in their area make for children and 
young people with ALN. This includes considering the extent to which the arrangements are sufficient to meet 
the ALN of the children and young people for whom they are responsible. Local authorities must have regard to 
the additional learning provision that may reasonably be arranged by other bodies (such as health bodies).  It 
also requires local authorities to consider the sufficiency of additional learning provision in Welsh and the size 
and capability of the workforce available.  If a local authority considers that the arrangements are not sufficient 
in any way, it must take all reasonable steps to remedy the matter.  Local authorities must consult any persons 
that they consider appropriate in order to inform the consideration and review, and at times which they consider 
appropriate. 
 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  
 
In this section you need to consider the impact, the evidence and any action you are taking for improvement. This is to ensure that the 
opportunities for people who choose to live their lives and access services through the medium of Welsh are not inferior to what is afforded to 
those choosing to do so in English, in accordance with the requirement of the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. 
 
Please note there is a separate impact assessment for Equality and Socio-Economic duty that must also be completed for policy proposals. 
 
Remember that effects that are positive for some groups could be detrimental to others - even among Welsh language groups. Consider the 
effects on different groups. For example, a proposal may be beneficial to Welsh learners, but not to Welsh speakers. 
 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 

T
udalen 221



 

 Does the 
proposal 
have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 
 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

impact on the Welsh 
language. 

What evidence do you have 
to support this view? 

What action(s) can you 
take to mitigate any 

negative impacts or better 
contribute to positive 

impacts? 

Opportunities for persons 
to use the Welsh language 

 
 e.g. staff, residents and visitors  

 
The rights of Welsh speakers and 

learners to use Welsh when 
dealing with the council and for 

staff to use Welsh at Work  
 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The proposals included in this 
proposal are to relocate, transfer 
and establish English medium 
LSCs at different locations 
throughout the County Borough 
where there is identified need 
and demand for specialist 
provision should not have a 
negative impact on the Welsh 
language. The proposals to 
relocate and transfer LSCs 
between Perthcelyn Primary 
School and Abercynon Primary 
School is being proposed in 
order to improve the continuum 
of ALN provision in this area of 
the County Borough by creating 
a through provision at primary 
phase. The establishment of an 
Early Years Assessment & 
Intervention LSC for pupils 
under statutory school age at 
Abercynon Primary School 
further supports the Council’s 
hopes to improve the continuum 
of ALN provision in this area of 

Data gathered by the Access 
and Inclusion team shows 
that 7% of the total number of 
pupils accessing specialist 
settings have previously 
attended Welsh medium 
provision, are now accessing 
English medium LSC 
provision due to there being a 
lack of Welsh medium LSC 
provision available in the 
County Borough. 
 
The Welsh Language Use 
Survey (2013 – 2015) 
reported that over half of the 
Welsh speaking respondents 
who completed the survey 
reported that they try to use 
Welsh in the workplace with 
colleagues and when dealing 
with public organisations. 
This demonstrates the 
importance of staff, residents 
and visitors having fair 

• The impact of 
establishing the LSC 
provision in the new 
Welsh medium school in 
Rhydyfelin will be 
evaluated and demand 
monitored to ensure the 
opening of these classes 
have a positive impact on 
the Welsh language. If 
positive, opportunities to 
develop more LSCs like 
this across the County 
Borough will be 
considered. Ensuring 
inclusion with mainstream 
pupils is a key principle to 
ensure learners with ALN 
have equal opportunities 
to learn the language and 
receive their education 
through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

T
udalen 222



 

the County Borough where there 
is identified need.  
The establishment of a 
specialist LSC for pupils in Year 
7 – 11 with ASD at the new 3 -
16 school which is being built on 
the current site of Hawthorn 
High School should not 
negatively impact the Welsh 
language as this will be a 
specialist provision.  
The establishment of two 
Primary Phase Welsh medium 
LSCs at the new Welsh medium 
primary school in Rhydyfelin will 
transform the Welsh medium 
opportunities available to 
learners with significant ALN in 
this area of the County Borough 
as this will be the first of its kind 
in the County Borough and can 
only have a positive impact on 
the language. Alongside this, 
the newly established Welsh 
medium LSC provision at Ysgol 
Garth Olwg will open to the 
secondary aged learners from 
September 2023, providing 
opportunities for learners to 
remain in Welsh medium 
education and continue to 
receive their education through 
the medium of Welsh in this 
area of the County Borough. 

access to opportunities to use 
the Welsh language. 
 
In line with the Council’s 
Statutory Welsh Language 
Standards, any Council 
publications, documentation 
and correspondence must be 
bilingual with a message 
included to state that 
correspondence in Welsh is 
welcomed and corresponding 
with us in Welsh will not lead 
to a delay. The Council also 
applies this to any new 
school builds so that signage 
in English schools is bilingual. 
New school builds now also 
incorporate bilingual braille 
on signage throughout the 
school.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Work with the 
headteacher of the new 
Welsh medium school in 
Rhydyfelin and Welsh 
medium organisations to 
utilise the facilities to 
deliver Welsh medium 
learning sessions for 
parents, carers and the 
wider community. 

 
• If a person is unable to 

speak Welsh, they must 
call on a colleague in the 
building who is able to 
speak Welsh if this is 
being requested. 

 

T
udalen 223



 

The establishment of Welsh 
medium provision at different 
stages of education can only 
positively impact the Welsh 
language. Welsh medium ALN 
provision and the demand for 
this type of provision will be 
evaluated and monitored 
closely. If deemed successful, 
the Council’s Access and 
Inclusion Services will explore 
options to develop further 
provision like this in different 
areas of the County Borough. 
 
The proposal to create 2 Welsh 
medium primary phase LSCs at 
the new Welsh medium school 
in Rhydyfelin will have a positive 
impact on the Welsh language. 
This will be the first Welsh 
medium provision of its type in 
the County Borough and will 
widen the opportunities 
available to learners with ALN to 
learn the Welsh language. 
Learners accessing the 
provision will be able to access 
a range of additional extra-
curricular activities in line with 
their peers through the medium 
of Welsh. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 224



 

Opportunities for community and 
third-party use of the facilities at 
the school will be encouraged to 
offer Welsh medium learning 
classes for adults which will be 
promoted in the local community 
and throughout the County 
Borough. This will contribute 
towards Welsh Government’s 
ambitious goal of creating a 
million Welsh speakers in Wales 
by 2050 and the Council’s 
WESP by providing 
opportunities for persons to use 
the Welsh language. 
 
Welsh Government’s Welsh 
Language Use Survey (2013 – 
2015) reported the largest 
increases in the number of 
fluent Welsh speakers in Wales 
in Rhondda Cynon Taf and in 
our neighbouring authority 
Cardiff. By working with the 
headteacher of the proposed 
new special school, 
opportunities for community and 
third-party use of the facilities at 
the school to offer Welsh 
medium learning classes for 
adult will be promoted in the 
local community and throughout 
the County Borough. This will 
contribute towards Welsh 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 225



 

Government’s ambitious goal of 
creating a million Welsh 
speakers in Wales by 2050 and 
the Council’s WESP by 
providing opportunities for 
persons to use the Welsh 
language. 
 
The Council has opportunities 
for internal staff across all 
services to access free training 
to improve their Welsh language 
skills. Welsh Language Services 
are working to develop 
technological support for Welsh 
speakers and learners within the 
Council to be able to deliver 
services through the medium of 
Welsh. All newly recruited 
Council staff are required to 
undertake Welsh language 
Level 1 training. This will 
support the opportunities 
available for the Council to 
create a bilingual workforce with 
the ability to work and deliver 
services bilingually. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  
 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 
 Does the 

proposal 
Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

What evidence do you have to 
support this view? 

What action(s) can you 
take to mitigate any 

T
udalen 226



 

have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 

impact on the Welsh 
language. 

negative impacts or 
better contribute to 
positive impacts? 

Numbers and / or 
percentages of Welsh 

speakers  
e.g Welsh Medium Education / 
Study Opportunities. Links with 

the Welsh Government’s 
Cymraeg 2050 Strategy / 

RCTCBC Five Year Welsh 
Language Strategy 

 

Positive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Welsh Government’s ambitious 
Cymraeg 2050 strategy calls for 
far-reaching changes and 
boundaries being pushed to 
increase the numbers learning 
and using Welsh. To achieve 
the Cymraeg 2050 targets of 
reaching a million Welsh 
speakers in Wales by 2050, 
each local authority needs to 
transform how Welsh is taught 
to all learners. The headteacher 
of the new Welsh medium 
school in Rhydyfelin will be 
supported and encouraged to 
utilise the facilities available to 
offer opportunities to deliver 
Welsh for Adults classes for 
parents, carers and other 
members of the community. 
This will support the Welsh 
Government’s Cymraeg 2050 
strategy, and the targets set out 
in the Council’s WESP. 
 
In recent years, support has 
been given to promote and 
increase learners use of the 
Welsh language in social 

Welsh for Adults courses for the 
academic year 2022/23 are being 
held at Coleg y Cymoedd 
Llwynypia campus, Gartholwg 
Lifelong Learning Centre and 
Treorchy Library. Through 
utilising the facilities to deliver 
Welsh for Adults lessons at the 
new Welsh medium school in 
Rhydyfelin, this will encourage 
parents and carers to consider 
undertaking Welsh lessons. 
These types of lessons would be 
marketed and promoted 
throughout the community and 
neighbouring schools to 
encourage an uptake amongst 
parents, carers and the wider 
community.  
 
The Welsh for Adults classes are 
currently well attended. Learn 
Welsh Glamorgan have been 
engaging with schools throughout 
the County Borough to encourage 
schools to offer their facilities to 
deliver Welsh for Adults sessions 
for the next academic year. 
 

• Ensure that parents, 
carers and the wider 
community are 
signposted to the 
Welsh for Adults 
classes. Marketing 
and promotion of the 
classes will be 
implemented via the 
Council’s website and 
corporate social 
media platforms.  

 
• The school-based 

workforce will 
continue to be 
supported with 
continued 
professional learning 
and networking, 
utilising opportunities 
to share best 
practices. 

 
• To continue working 

with the CSCJES to 
promote and increase 
learners’ use of the 

T
udalen 227

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-12/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/WelshServices.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/WelshServices.aspx


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

contexts through implementing 
the Welsh Language Charter 
(Siarter Iaith/Cymraeg Campus) 
in Welsh and English medium 
primary and secondary schools 
in partnership with the CSCJES. 
The Siarter Iaith has been 
implemented in both primary 
and secondary Welsh medium 
schools in order to develop 
learners’ use of the Welsh 
language in different contexts. 
As of July 2023, all Welsh 
medium primary schools have 
achieved the bronze award, 13 
have achieved the silver award 
and 5 have achieved the gold 
award. Two Welsh medium 
secondary schools have 
achieved the bronze award and 
1 has received the silver. The 
Cymraeg Campus has been 
implemented in both primary 
and secondary English medium 
schools in order to develop 
learners’ use of the Welsh 
language. As of July 2023, 40 
English medium primary schools 
have achieved the bronze 
award, 10 have achieved the 
silver award and 2 have 
achieved the gold award. A total 
of 5 English medium secondary 

The WESP Outcome 7 sub-group 
provides an effective focus on the 
challenges faced in terms of the 
school-based workforce. The 
group includes local, regional and 
national officers who are working 
collaboratively to implement 
strategies to work towards 
creating more Welsh speakers to 
ensure we have a school-based 
workforce of sufficient size and 
capability. 
 
Monitoring reports prepared by 
local authorities throughout 
Wales who currently have 
established Welsh language 
immersion provision report 
positive outcomes for learners 
who have accessed the support, 
leaving them equipped to start 
learning in the mainstream Welsh 
medium classroom. 
 
Data and information relating to 
the Welsh Language Charter is 
shared with the Council each 
quarter via the CSCJES Welsh 
Language Officer.  
 
 
 
 
 

Welsh language in 
primary and 
secondary schools 
with all English 
medium schools 
being supported to 
achieve the Cymraeg 
Campus awards.  

 
• The Council’s WESP 

Co-ordinator to work 
collaboratively with 
partners in 
developing and 
implementing 
strategies in line with 
the Council’s WESP 
to support the 
delivery of the Welsh 
Government’s 
Cymraeg 2050 vision 
of a million Welsh 
speakers, and to 
contribute towards 
the development of 
strategies which 
promote the Welsh 
language and Welsh 
medium education 
across the County 
Borough. 

 

T
udalen 228



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

schools have achieved the 
bronze award. 
 
More recently, CSCJES have 
begun working with special 
schools, learning support 
classes and pupil referral units 
in Rhondda Cynon Taf to 
implement the Welsh Language 
Charter (Cymraeg Campus) 
programme. To date, 3 special 
schools/units have achieved the 
bronze Cymraeg Campus 
award. 
 
In contributing towards the 
vision of achieving a million 
Welsh speakers in Wales by 
2050 and in line with the 
commitments outlined in the 
Council’s WESP, ensuring a 
school-based workforce of 
sufficient size and capability is 
vital. In order to create more 
Welsh speakers, our education 
system is dependent on its 
school-based workforce, we 
must work locally, regionally and 
nationally to ensure a workforce 
with robust linguistic skills with 
the ability to inspire and 
motivate learners in Welsh 
medium education.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 229



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Neutral 
 

The aim is to embed positive 
habits and attitudes towards the 
Welsh language through 
purposeful planning and 
promoting the information use of 
the Welsh language amongst 
learners across the education 
sector. Facilitating the use of the 
Welsh language across the 
curriculum and in wider contexts 
is key to ensuring a continuum 
of linguistic progression to 
support learners throughout 
each key stage, offering all 
learners the opportunity to 
become fully bilingual in 
alignment with the Curriculum 
for Wales – 2022. 
 
Whilst pupils who meet criteria 
to access the Welsh medium 
peripatetic complex needs 
service within their mainstream 
school settings may opt to 
remain within their Welsh 
medium mainstream setting 
rather than accessing the new 
Welsh medium settings due to 
the potential increased travel 
time.  7% of pupils with other 
identified ALN who previously 
attended Welsh medium 
mainstream settings now attend 
English medium specialist 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Having reviewed internal data it 
was noted that due to a lack of 
Welsh medium LSC provision, 
7% of the total number of pupils 
accessing specialist settings have 
previously attended Welsh 
medium provision.  
 
 

T
udalen 230



 

settings.  Pupils will now have 
increased options to access 
Welsh medium specialist 
settings. 

Opportunities to promote 
the Welsh language 
e.g. status, use of Welsh 

language services, use of Welsh 
in everyday life in work and in the 

community 
 

Actively encourage and promote 
the use of our services in Welsh 
to see an increase in demand 

over time  
 

Positive The Welsh language now has 
official status and legislation in 
place which provides rights for 
Welsh speakers to receive 
Welsh language services. The 
challenge is to expand the 
opportunities for people to be 
able to use the Welsh language 
in their daily life through creating 
the right conditions for new 
learners of all ages to develop 
and use their skills from early 
years, through every stage of 
compulsory education and post-
16 provision, to opportunities for 
adults to learn Welsh. 
 
As mentioned above, the Siarter 
Iaith Cymraeg Campus 
programme is having a positive 
impact on the promotion of the 
Welsh language in schools 
engaged with the programme 
through providing increased 
opportunities for learners to use 
the Welsh language. 
Although the proposals for the 
Cynon area of the County 
Borough and the proposals for 
Hawthorn Primary 

Currently learners with significant 
ALN are receiving English 
medium specialist support due to 
the lack of Welsh medium 
provision available. The opening 
of these LSCs can only benefit 
the promotion of the Welsh 
language.  
 
The demand for Welsh for Adults 
classes is evidenced by the 
popularity of current classes 
being held, for example at the 
Gartholwg Lifelong Learning 
Centre. 
 
The new school will be fully 
compliant with the Equality Act 
2010 and the ALNET Act 2018 
and such opportunities will be 
within the heart of the community, 
so that the local community can 
safely utilise the facilities. 
 
Representatives from Welsh 
Language, Youth, Leisure, Arts 
and Culture and Musical Services 
all form part of the WESP 
Outcome 5 sub-group which 
focuses on creating more 

• The impact of 
establishing the LSC 
provision in the new 
Welsh medium 
school in Rhydyfelin 
will be evaluated and 
demand monitored to 
ensure the opening of 
these classes have a 
positive impact on the 
Welsh language. If 
positive, opportunities 
to develop more 
LSCs like this across 
the County Borough 
will be considered. 
Ensuring inclusion 
with mainstream 
pupils is a key 
principle to ensure 
learners with ALN 
have equal 
opportunities to learn 
the language and 
receive their 
education through the 
medium of Welsh. 

 

T
udalen 231



 

School/Hawthorn High may not 
directly promote the Welsh 
language, the statutory changes 
to ALN provision in line with the 
ALNET Act 2018 and the 
introduction of the New 
Curriculum for Wales tied with 
the rollout of the Siarter Iaith 
Cymraeg Campus programme 
in these schools ensures an 
increased opportunities for all 
learners to use the Welsh 
language, which in turn will 
support promoting opportunities 
to use Welsh. 
 
The proposal to establish two 
Primary Phase LSCs at the new 
Welsh medium school in 
Rhydyfelin will allow for young 
children to access Welsh 
medium education at an 
inclusive school of brand new 
build, completed to 21st Century 
standard. Establishing Welsh 
medium LSC provision for 
children with significant ALN 
from this young age will 
enhance pupils’ opportunities to 
continue to learn via the medium 
of Welsh but in a dedicated 
class setting alongside their 
peers who also have additional 

opportunities for learners to use 
Welsh in different contexts in 
school, therefore information is 
provided directly. The work 
underway not only supports the 
use of Welsh in different contexts 
in school, but also extends the 
use of Welsh in different contexts 
across all service areas and in 
the wider community which 
supports the Welsh 
Government’s Cymraeg 2050 
vision of increasing the use of the 
language and ultimately the 
number of Welsh speakers. 
 
 

• Ensure that parents, 
carers and the wider 
community are 
signposted to the 
Welsh for Adults 
classes. Marketing 
and promotion of the 
classes will be 
implemented via the 
Council’s website and 
corporate social 
media platforms.  

 
• Support the 

headteacher of the 
new school to 
promote community 
use of the facilities for 
the purpose of 
delivering a range of 
opportunities through 
the medium of Welsh 
with support of Welsh 
language 
organisations such as 
Menter Iaith and the 
Urdd to assist in the 
promotion of the 
Welsh language.  

 

T
udalen 232



 

learning needs rather than via 
peripatetic teaching. 
 
As a result, we will work with the 
headteacher of the new Welsh 
medium school in Rhydyfelin to 
provide opportunities to offer 
Welsh for Adults classes for 
anyone looking to learn the 
language and other 
opportunities for community 
engagement through the 
medium of Welsh. The school 
will be designed to be fully 
accessible in line with the 
Equality Act 2010 and the 
ALNET Act 2018, and a fully 
integrated community school 
with dedicated community use 
areas that the local community 
can safely utilise. 
 
The Council will continue to 
adhere to The Welsh Language 
(Wales) Measure 2011 which 
requires the Council to produce 
a five year strategy outlining 
actions which will facilitate and 
promote the Welsh language.  
 
The Council’s Five Year Welsh 
Language Promotion Strategy 
(2022 – 2027) has been taken 
into consideration in order to 

T
udalen 233



 

encourage and facilitate long 
term growth for the Welsh 
language and Welsh medium 
education. The strategy outlines 
the Council’s commitment to 
working towards Welsh 
Government’s Cymraeg 2050 
vision of increasing the number 
of Welsh speakers, increasing 
the use of the language in the 
workplace, via Council services 
and throughout the community 
and creating favourable 
conditions. Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Welsh Language Services, 
Youth Services, Leisure 
Services and Arts and Culture 
Services and Musical Services 
are all working proactively 
towards developing 
opportunities for learners and 
the wider community to use the 
Welsh language. These include 
but are not limited to: 
 
Welsh Language Services: 
- Developing materials to 

provide to school-based staff 
to support with their Welsh 
language skills.  

 
- Exploring the feasibility of 

Welsh medium 
learning/support applications 

T
udalen 234



 

being placed on every 
member of staffs’ devices.  

 
Youth Services:  
- Running trips for Welsh 

medium learners to provide 
opportunities to use Welsh in 
different contexts. 

 
- Creating promotional 

materials to be placed in 
youth clubs throughout 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. 

 
- Working in partnership with 

the Urdd and Menter Iaith to 
develop Welsh Language 
Youth Forums in all Welsh 
and English medium. 
secondary schools along 
with the local college. 

 
Leisure Services: 
- Working with the Urdd to 

deliver sport activities for 
Welsh medium schools and 
exploring extending this to 
incorporate English medium 
schools on a bilingual model 
of delivery. 

 
- Working with Menter Iaith to 

develop opportunities to 
introduce the Welsh 

T
udalen 235



 

language into leisure 
sessions. 

 
Arts and Culture Services: 
- Collaborating with Youth 

Services on a programme of 
provision across community 
and cultural venues to 
encourage the use of the 
Welsh language and 
incorporating the Welsh 
language into community 
based events.  

 
Musical Services: 
- Engaging with both Welsh 

and English medium schools 
to encourage an uptake in 
musical services, learners 
who show an aptitude for 
any instruments are being 
encouraged and supported 
into taking part in the 
Eisteddfod.  

 
The Council will continue to 
ensure a clear alignment with 
the Five Year Welsh Language 
Promotion Strategy. This 
commitment to promoting the 
Welsh language, increasing the 
number of Welsh learners and 
improving the Welsh language 
skills of staff and pupils across 

T
udalen 236



 

schools in Rhondda Cynon Taf 
is reaffirmed in the Education & 
Inclusion Directorate’s 
Education Strategic Plan for 
2022 – 2025. 
 
 

Stage 2 – Impact Assessment  
 
Will the proposed action affect any or all of the following? 
 
 Does the 

proposal 
have any 
positive, 

negative or 
neutral 

impacts? 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or neutral 

impact on the Welsh 
language. 

What evidence do you have to 
support this view? 

What action(s) can you 
take to mitigate any 
negative impacts or 
better contribute to 
positive impacts? 

Compliance with the 
Council’s Statutory 

Welsh Language 
Standards  

e.g 
increasing or reducing the 
Council’s ability to deliver 

services through the Medium of 
Welsh. 

 
Consider the rights of Welsh 
speakers to use Welsh when 

dealing with the Council and for 
staff to use Welsh at Work 

 
 

Positive All processes associated with 
this proposal will be in 
accordance with the Council’s 
Statutory Welsh Language 
Standards.  
 
The proposal to open 2 LSCs in 
the new Welsh medium school 
will create Welsh medium ALN 
job positions for 2 teaching staff 
and 2 non-teaching staff, 
increasing the Council’s ability 
to deliver services through the 
medium of Welsh and 
contributing towards expanding 

Contractual arrangements will 
ensure that all consultations are 
undertaken bilingually and all 
public correspondence in relation 
to these proposals will be sent 
out bilingually with Welsh 
positioned first.  
 
The new job positions generated 
as a result of the LSCs being 
established will help with 
increasing the workforce 
available to support learners with 
ALN, which is a key target of our 
WESP, mainly outcome 7 which 

• Instil contractor 
awareness of the 
Council’s Statutory 
Welsh Language 
Standards and 
ensure compliance 
with these standards.  
 

• Work with the new 
Welsh medium 
school to ensure new 
members of staff 
have received 
sufficient training to 
deliver the level of 

T
udalen 237

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/WelshServices.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/WelshServices.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/WelshServices/WelshServices.aspx


 

the Welsh medium ALN 
workforce available in the 
County Borough. 
 

focuses on increasing the 
workforce available to teach 
Welsh as a subject and subjects 
through the medium of Welsh. 
 
The duties imposed upon us 
under the Additional Learning 
Needs and Education Tribunal 
Wales (ALNET) Act 2018 
requires all local authorities to 
ensure there is sufficient 
provision available through the 
medium of Welsh for learners 
with ALN. 
 

support required 
through the medium 
of Welsh. 

 

Treating the Welsh 
language, no less 

favourably than the 
English language 

 

Positive The opening of these LSCs at 
the new Welsh medium school 
in Rhydyfelin will have a positive 
impact on treating the Welsh 
language no less favourably 
than English as at present there 
are 45 English medium LSCs in 
the County Borough, whereas 
there are no Welsh medium 
primary phase LSCs and this 
will be the first of its kind here in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. Providing 
opportunities for learners who 
would previously not be able to 
access these opportunities will 
only positively impact on the 
Welsh language. 
 

The Sustainable Communities for 
Learning Band B Programme 
contains a wide range of schools, 
both Welsh and English medium, 
in various parts of the County 
Borough. This will be the first 
Welsh medium primary phase 
LSC provision in the County 
Borough. If deemed successful, 
the Council’s Access and 
Inclusion team will explore 
options to develop more 
opportunities for learners with 
ALN to access Welsh medium 
opportunities.  
 

• Ensure that parents, 
carers and the wider 
community are 
signposted to the 
Welsh for Adults 
classes. Marketing 
and promotion of the 
classes will be 
implemented via the 
Council’s website and 
corporate social 
media platforms.  

 

T
udalen 238



 

The new Welsh medium school 
is being constructed as part of 
the Council’s Sustainable 
Communities for Learning 
programme which is jointly 
funded by the Council and 
Welsh Government. The 
purpose of this programme is to 
ensure there are good schools 
so all children and young 
people, whatever their learning 
need is, have equitable access 
to good Welsh and English 
medium education. This 
proposal will help us in 
achieving this purpose. 
 
The new school will incorporate 
facilities for community use to 
offer opportunities through the 
medium of Welsh and staff will 
be encouraged and supported 
to undertake any additional 
learning to improve their Welsh 
language skills. 
 

Stage 3 - Strengthening the proposal  
 
Having listed actions in section 2 which may mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to positive impacts – please record below which 
ones you will imbed into the policy proposal and who will be responsible for them. 
 
Also consider is the proposal necessary? Would it be possible to meet demand without any new developments? Could other existing provision 
be used? Where should the development be?  
 

T
udalen 239



 

What are you going to do? When are you going to do it? Who is responsible? 
 

Consultation and engagement with stakeholders 
(as set out in statutory Consultation Document).  
 

The consultation was held between 5th June and 14th 
July 2023. The feedback from the consultation has been 
collated and summarised, and a report presented to the 
Council’s Cabinet in September 2023. 

Access & Inclusion Service 

Learners at hosting schools 
 

The Council has acknowledged that the voice of children 
and young people is about involving them as active 
participants in the development, delivery, management 
and improvement of their educational and learner 
experience.  
 
Children and young people have a right to express their 
views in all matters affecting them and for their views to 
be heard and given due consideration in accordance 
with their age and maturity. As such, the Council’s 
Access & Inclusion Service will ensure that suitable 
arrangements are made to involve learners as active 
participants throughout this consultation process, and if 
a decision is made to progress the proposal, throughout 
the implementation process. 

Access & Inclusion Service 

Stage 4 – Review 
 
As part of the Welsh Language, Equalities and Socio Economic Duty Impact Assessment Process all proposals that fall within the definition of 
Significant Key Decision should present at the Officer Review Panel. This panel is made up of officers from across Council Services and acts 
as a critical friend before your report is finalised and published for SLT/Cabinet approval.  
 
If this proposal is a Key Strategic Decision please forward your impact assessment to CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk for an Officer Review 
Panel to be organised to discuss your proposal. See our guidance document for more information on what a Significant Key Decision is.  
 
For all policy proposals, whether it is a Significant Key Decision or not you are required to forward this assessment to Welsh Language 
services in the first instance for some initial guidance and feedback.  
 

T
udalen 240

mailto:CouncilBusiness@rctcbc.gov.uk
http://inform/en/supportservices/translationandwelshservices/welshlanguageimpactassessments/welshlanguageimpactassessments.aspx


 

It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable Welsh language 
considerations wherever possible. Please ensure you update the relevant sections below  
 

Welsh Language Services Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following Welsh 
Language Services feedback 

 
• Welsh Language pupils with significant ALN that 

meet the criteria for English provision are supported, 
but there needs to be clarity on why English medium 
criteria is used for Welsh Language pupils. 

• The wording throughout could be amended to 
inspire a pro-active approach. For example, it notes 
that Welsh Language provision may be extended if 
the need arises but you could put the provision in 
place, rather than when the need emerges. 

• There is an opportunity to include a comparison 
between the proposal and the service in place 
previously i.e. relocation could have an impact on 
travel time and may impact where they choose to 
learn. 

• The new service will provide 22 new English 
placements and 18 new Welsh placements, which in 
terms of the demographic of the area, is positive but 
why isn’t it seeking complete equality? An 
opportunity to state that there will be 44 English 
classes and 3 Welsh classes. 

5th 
September 
2023 

Comments have been noted and revisions made:  
• The criteria based on the severity and complexity of pupils 

identified ALN and are language neutral.  
• The ALN Code 2021 stipulates that LAs must develop 

bilingual ALN provision over time.  Section 3.2 of the Code 
states that one of the principles underpinning the ALN 
system is A bilingual system where all reasonable steps are 
taken to deliver ALP in Welsh for children and young people 
who require support thought the medium of Welsh, with 
scope for increasing the delivery of ALP in Welsh over time. 

• Numbers and/or percentages of Welsh speakers has been 
updated. 

• The ALN Code 2021 stipulates that LAs must develop 
bilingual ALN provision over time.  Section 3.2 of the Code 
states that one of the principles underpinning the ALN 
system is A bilingual system where all reasonable steps are 
taken to deliver ALP in Welsh for children and young people 
who require support thought the medium of Welsh, with 
scope for increasing the delivery of ALP in Welsh over time. 

Officer Review Panel Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following Officer 
Review Panel considerations 

As above. 
 
 

5th 
September 
2023 

 

Consultation Comments Date 
Considered 

Brief description of any amendments made following 
consultation 

T
udalen 241



 

No comments have been received during the LSC 
consultation process regarding this assessment. 
 

5th June – 
14th July  

 

Stage 5 – Monitoring, Evaluating and Reviewing  
 
How and who will you monitor the impact and effectiveness of the proposal? 

Officers from the Access & Inclusion Service will monitor the proposal throughout the consultation and implementation period. 

The Access & Inclusion Service will undertake a ‘Lessons Learnt’ review at the end of the implementation phase and this will feed into future 
projects so that each project improves and benefits from lessons learnt (positive and negative) during previous projects. 
 
Stage 6 – Summary of Impacts for the Proposal  
 
Provide below a summary of the impact assessment.  This summary should be included in the Welsh Language Considerations section of the 
SLT/Cabinet report template.  The impact assessment should be published alongside the report. 
 

In summary, the Welsh Language Impact Assessment identifies only positive impacts with no negative or neutral impacts upon the Welsh 
Language. 

• The impact on Welsh medium Primary Phase pupils with significant additional learning needs is extremely positive as they will 
have the full benefit of  being educated in Welsh medium specialist LSC provisions  alongside their mainstream peers through 
an inclusive model, hosted by a mainstream school. 

• The proposal seeks to create Welsh medium specialist LSC provision, in line with the requirements of the Additional Learning Needs 
and Education Tribunal (ALNET) Act (2018) to develop a bilingual Additional Learning Needs (ALN) system. It also aims to assist with 
the delivery of strategic priorities within RCTCBC’s WESP 

• There is an expectation that pupils in all LSCs will have mainstream inclusion opportunities.  The LSCs are integral to the ethos of the 
host schools and families and pupils are treated equitably alongside mainstream peers. The development of Welsh medium LSCs will 
ensure the LA has LSCs based in a fully accessible and high quality educational environments that has benefited from significant 21st 
Century Modernisation and Investment. 

• The proposals also have a positive impact for pupils attending English medium provision due to the proposed increase in Early Years 

T
udalen 242



 

and ASD placements. 

Stage 7 – Sign Off  
 

Name of Officer 
completing the 

WLIA 

 
Lisa Carter Service Director Name: 

 
Gaynor Davies 

Position 
Inclusion Co-ordinator 

I recommend that the proposal: 
(Highlight decision) 

Is implemented with no amendments. 
 
 

 

Is implemented taking into account the 
mitigating actions outlined. 
 
Is rejected due to disproportionate negative 
impacts on the Welsh language. 
 

Signature 

 
 Service Director Signature 

 
 

 

Date 
07.09.23 Date 

 
 

07.09.23 

 

T
udalen 243



T
udalen w

ag


	Agenda
	GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

	2 COFNODION
	4 CYNNIG I DDATBLYGU YSGOL ARBENNIG NEWYDD YN RHONDDA CYNON TAF
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATIONS
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad a
	What do you have to consider?
	The views of children and young people

	Atodiad b
	Atodiad c

	5 YMGYNGHORIAD AR Y CYNIGION I AD-DREFNU DARPARIAETH DOSBARTHIADAU CYNNAL DYSGU PRIF FFRWD - ANGHENION DYSGU YCHWANEGOL YN RHONDDA CYNON TAF
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATIONS
	Atodiad a
	Atodiad 1
	Proposal to reconfigure mainstream learning support class provision within Rhondda Cynon Taf.
	Summary/ Conclusion
	Description and benefits
	Educational aspects of the proposal

	Atodiad 2
	EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM INCLUDING SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY
	SECTION 1 – PROPOSAL DETAILS
	SECTION 2 – SCREENING TEST – IS A FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT REQUIRED?
	Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011
	In addition, due to Council commitments made to the following groups of people we would like you to consider impacts upon them:
	SECTION 3 – SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY (STRATEGIC DECISIONS ONLY)
	SECTION 4 – FULL EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
	SECTION 5 – MONITORING AND REVIEW
	SECTION 6 – REVIEW
	SECTION 6 – SUMMARY OF IMPACTS FOR THE PROPOSAL
	SECTION 7 – AUTHORISATIONS

	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4


